
 
 
 
 
 

29 June 2020 
 

AUDIT AND ETHICS COMMITTEE – 7 JULY 2020 
 
A meeting of Audit and Ethics Committee will be held at 5.30pm on Tuesday 7 July 2020 
via Microsoft Teams.  
 
Due to the current COVID19 pandemic, members of the public may view the meeting via 
the livestream available on the Council’s website. 
 
Mannie Ketley 
Executive Director 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART 1 – PUBLIC BUSINESS 
 
 
1. Minutes 
 

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2020. 
 

2. Apologies 
 

To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 
3. Declarations of Interest 
 
 To receive declarations of: 
 
 (a) non-pecuniary interests as defined by the Council’s Code of Conduct for 

Councillors; 
 
 (b) pecuniary interests as defined by the Council’s Code of Conduct for Councillors; 

and 
 
 (c) notice under Section 106 Local Government Finance Act 1992 – non-payment  
 of Community Charge or Council Tax. 
 

Note: Members are reminded that they should declare the existence and 
nature of their non-pecuniary interests at the commencement of the meeting 
(or as soon as the interest becomes apparent). If that interest is a pecuniary 
interest the Member must withdraw from the room unless one of the 
exceptions applies. 
 
  



Membership of Warwickshire County Council or any Parish Council is classed 
as a non-pecuniary interest under the Code of Conduct. A Member does not 
need to declare this interest unless the Member chooses to speak on a matter 
relating to their membership. If the Member does not wish to speak on the 
matter, the Member may still vote on the matter without making a declaration.  

 
4. Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20. 

 
5. 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan – Progress Update. 

 
6. Annual Governance Statement 2019/20. 

 
7. Strategic Risk Register Update. 

 
8. Motion to Exclude the Public under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 
 
 To consider passing the following resolution: 
 

“Under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be excluded 
from the meeting for the following items on the ground that they involve the likely 
disclosure of information defined in paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act.” 
 

PART 2 – EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
1. Whistle Blowing Incidents – Standing Item – to receive any updates. 
 
2. Fraud and Corruption Issues – Standing Item – to receive any updates. 
 

Any additional papers for this meeting can be accessed via the website. 
 

The Reports of Officers are attached. 
  
Membership of the Committee: Mr P Dudfield (Chairman), Mr J Eves (Vice-Chairman), 
Councillors Cranham, McQueen, Mistry and Pacey-Day 
 
Named Substitutes: Councillors Butlin, Mrs O’Rourke, Roodhouse and Stokes 
 
If you have any general queries with regard to this agenda please contact Veronika 
Beckova, Democratic Services Officer (01788 533591 or e-mail 
veronika.beckova@rugby.gov.uk). Any specific queries concerning reports should be 
directed to the listed contact officer. 
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AGENDA MANAGEMENT SHEET 
 
Report Title: Draft Statement of Accounts 2018/19 
  
Name of Committee: Audit and Ethics Committee 
  
Date of Meeting: 7 July 2020 
  
Report Director: Interim Chief Financial Officer  
  
Portfolio: Corporate Resources 
  
Ward Relevance: All 
  
Prior Consultation: N/A 
  
Contact Officer: Jon Illingworth, Financial Services Manager and 

Interim Chief Financial Officer 
jon.illingworth@rugby.gov.uk, 01788 533 410 

  
Public or Private: Public 
  
Report Subject to Call-In: No 
  
Report En-Bloc: No 
  
Forward Plan: No 
  
Corporate Priorities: 
 
(CR) Corporate Resources 
(CH) Communities and Homes 
(EPR) Environment and Public 
Realm 
(GI) Growth and Investment 
 

This report relates to the following priority(ies): 
 To provide excellent, value for money 

services and sustainable growth 
 Achieve financial self-sufficiency by 2020 
 Enable our residents to live healthy, 

independent lives 
 Optimise income and identify new revenue 

opportunities (CR) 
 Prioritise use of resources to meet changing 

customer needs and demands (CR) 
 Ensure that the council works efficiently and 

effectively (CR) 
 Ensure residents have a home that works for 

them and is affordable (CH) 
 Deliver digitally-enabled services that 

residents can access (CH) 
 Understand our communities and enable 

people to take an active part in them (CH) 
 Enhance our local, open spaces to make 

them places where people want to be (EPR) 
 Continue to improve the efficiency of our 

waste and recycling services (EPR) 

mailto:jon.illingworth@rugby.gov.uk
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 Protect the public (EPR) 
 Promote sustainable growth and economic 

prosperity (GI) 
 Promote and grow Rugby’s visitor economy 

with our partners (GI) 
 Encourage healthy and active lifestyles to 

improve wellbeing within the borough (GI) 
 This report does not specifically relate to any 

Council priorities but       

Statutory/Policy Background: The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, The 
Code of Audit Practice, Accounts and Audit 
(Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 

  
Summary: The purpose of this report is to present the draft 

Statement of Accounts for consideration by 
Audit and Ethics Committee prior to the external 
audit. 

  
Financial Implications: There are no financial implications for this 

report. 
  
Risk Management Implications: There are no risk management implications for 

this report. 
  
Environmental Implications: There are no environmental implications for this 

report 
  
Legal Implications: There are no legal implications for this report 
  
Equality and Diversity: There are no equality and diversity implications 

for this report 
  
Options: None 
  
Recommendation: The committee notes the summary of the Draft 

Statement of Accounts 2019/20 and makes any 
comments it feels necessary to officers in 
advance of the external audit. 

  
Reasons for Recommendation: The Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) 

(Amendment) Regulations 2020 require the 
approval of the statutory Statement of Accounts 
by 30 November 2020 
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Audit and Ethics Committee - 7 July 2020 

 
Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

 
Public Report of the Interim Chief Financial Officer 

 
Recommendation 
 
The committee notes the summary of the Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20 and 
makes any comments it feels necessary to officers in advance of the external audit. 
 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1. This report introduces the draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20 for review by the 

committee  
 

2. Background 

2.1. Following the Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 
the publication for the, final, audited accounts has been moved to the 30 
November 2020.  

 
2.2. The draft 2019/20 Statement of Accounts will be available for public inspection by  

1 July 2020. The inspection period will conclude on 14 July 2020, during which, 
and up to the conclusion of the audit, any local government elector within the 
Rugby Borough is able to question or make objections to the Council’s external 
auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP.  

 
2.3. The external audit by Grant Thornton will take place during July, after which the 

Statement of Accounts will be formally published. Any material changes as a result 
of the audit will be reported to the Audit and Ethics Committee at the earliest 
opportunity once the Accounts have been signed off by the External Auditor. 

 
2.4. The draft Statement of Accounts is included in Appendix A (a verbal update will 

be provided to the committee if there are any material amendments to the 
document before the commencement of the public inspection period). 

 
2.5. A briefing paper summarising key information regarding the movement from 

2018/19 – 2019/20 is included in Appendix B.  
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3. The Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

3.1. The statement of accounts, comprises of the following financial statements.  
 
i) The Narrative Report – includes financial summaries which detail the actual 

spend and income for the year compared with the original budget; financial and 
non-financial performance; risks and a financial outlook  

 
ii) Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – records all of the 

Council’s income and expenditure for the year, in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting standards. The top half of the statement provides an 
analysis by service area, in-line with the Council’s structure. The bottom half of 
the statement deals with corporate transactions and funding  

 
The account is prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) however, regulations allow local authorities to reverse or 
replace certain items of income and expenditure. These items are summarised in 
the MIRS.  

 
iii) Movement in Reserves Statement – this shows the amounts transferred 

to/from the various reserves held by the Council in order to provide services 
throughout the year, having taken account of statutory adjustments for financing.  

 
iv) Balance Sheet statement is a “snapshot” of the Council’s assets, liabilities, cash 

balances and reserves at the year-end date.  
 
v) Cash Flow Statement – details the main revenue, capital, investment and 

financing cash movements during the year. Additional information is included 
within the notes to the accounts. 

 
vi) Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Statements – in accordance with the 

statutory ring-fence, these show the income and expenditure relating to the 
provision of Council housing and also the overall amount taken from/contributed 
to HRA balances for the year.  

 
vii) Collection Fund Statement – shows the transactions relating to business rates 

and council tax and illustrates the way in which they have been distributed 
between the Council, Central Government, Warwickshire County Council and the 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Warwickshire.  

 
3.2. The notes of the main financial statements provide additional information to the 

readers on the figures included within the statements. 
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Name of Meeting:  Audit and Ethics Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  7 July 2020 
 
Subject Matter:  Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
 
Originating Department: Corporate Resources 
 
 
DO ANY BACKGROUND PAPERS APPLY   YES   NO 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
Doc No Title of Document and Hyperlink 
  
  
  
  
  
  

The background papers relating to reports on planning applications and which are 
open to public inspection under Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972, 
consist of the planning applications, referred to in the reports, and all written 
responses to consultations made by the Local Planning Authority, in connection with 
those applications. 

 
 

 Exempt information is contained in the following documents: 
 
Doc No Relevant Paragraph of Schedule 12A 
            
            
            
            
            
            

 
 



Statement of Accounts 

Rugby Borough Council ⚫ 2019/2020
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NARRATIVE REPORT 

Narrative Report of the Interim Chief Financial Officer 

Financial Year ended 31 March 2020 
 

Introduction 
 

Dear Reader,  

 

I am pleased to present the Rugby Borough Council Statement of Accounts (the Accounts) for the financial 

year 2019/20 and I hope you will find them of interest.    

 

The purpose of the Accounts is to summarise the financial performance for the year 2019/20 and the overall 

financial position of the Council.  It is intended that these Accounts will provide a useful and important source 

of financial information for the community, stakeholders, council members and other interested parties. 

 

The style and format of the Accounts complies with Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

(CIPFA) standards and the presentation is designed to make them user-friendly and accessible.     

 

The Narrative Report provides information about Rugby, including the key issues affecting the Council and its 

Accounts. It also provides a summary of the financial position at 31 March 2020 and is structured as follows: 

 

1. About Rugby  

2. About Rugby Borough Council  

3. Governance 

4. Our Priorities  

5. How your Council is performing  

6. Financial Overview of 2019/20 

7. Financial Performance in 2019/20 

8. Future Financial Outlook 

9. Reserves Balances and Future Strategy 

10. Coronavirus Pandemic 

11. Explanation of the Financial Statements    

12. Further Information  

 

 

Jon Illingworth CPFA 

Interim Chief Financial Officer 

29 June 2020 
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1. About Rugby 

 
Located near the centre of England and 

stretching from Coventry to the west and to the 

county borders of Northamptonshire and 

Leicestershire in the east, the Borough of Rugby is 

excellently placed for both local economic 

growth within the West Midlands as well as 

benefitting from the impact of growth in 

businesses focussing in logistics.  The Borough 

benefits from excellent transport links with easy 

access to key motorways with the M6, M1 and 

M45 directly on Rugby’s doorstep and rail services 

offering residents quick alternative commuting 

options to Birmingham just over 20 minutes and 

London within 50 minutes.   

 

Consequently, the borough has also seen 

increased 6% growth in population over the last 5 

years and currently covers the town of Rugby and 

40 rural parishes, with a total population of 107,194 

and covering an area of 88,000 acres. The 

Borough is one of the fastest growing in England 

with new growth in Houlton, Eden Park, 

Technology Drive and Cawston. 

 

Population  

Office for National Statistics Mid-year estimates for 2018 reported that Rugby’s estimated population was 

107,194 with the age profile as presented in the following chart. 

 

20.13% 

(21,578)

60.88% 

(65,255)

18.99%

(20,361)

Composition of Rugby Population

0-15 Years

16-64 Years

65 Years &

Older

Appendix A



 

6 

 

The borough is home to some major organisations including Cemex, the London Taxi Company, Amazon, and 

Jaguar Land Rover and now the aerospace, defence and energy engineering group Meggitt PLC.  Meggitt 

have built their new international headquarters at Ansty Park, and the site is due to be fully operational from 

October 2020.  The new base is a significant investment in the long-term future of Meggitt in the area and will 

be a hub for next-generation aerospace innovation and R&D within a world-class manufacturing 

environment.    

Rugby is known all over the world as the birthplace of the game of rugby football. We continue to 

demonstrate our commitment to invest in the town’s heritage  with our partnership with World Rugby around 

the Hall of Fame which opened in November 2016 and has since hosted three inductions of rugby stars in to 

the Hall of Fame from nations across the world.   

  

2. About Rugby Borough Council 

 
Rugby is the primary local authority for the Borough, providing services such as waste collection, housing, 

leisure and culture, and development control. The Council is an active partner in the Coventry and 

Warwickshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), the Coventry, Warwickshire and Hinckley and Bosworth joint 

committee for economic growth and prosperity and is a non-constituent member of the West Midlands 

Combined Authority. We use our influence within these organisations to facilitate benefits for the borough 

including investment in jobs and infrastructure. 

 

Political Structure in the 2019/20 Municipal Year 

The borough of Rugby has 16 wards and the Council consists of 42 Members and is a Conservative controlled 

authority.   The following table shows the results of the local elections on 2 May 2019 compared to 2018/19: 

 2018/19 Change 2019/20 

Conservative Group 24 - 24 

Labour Group 9 - 9 

Liberal Democrat Group 9 - 9 

Independents 0 - 0 

 

Management Structure 

Supporting the work of Councillors is the organisational structure of the Council headed by the Senior 

Management Team, led by Executive Director Adam Norburn.   

 

 

 

 

 

 
The management structure of the organisation will change in 2020/21 with the pending retirement of Adam 

Norburn who will be replaced by the current Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial Officer, 

Mannie Ketley. 

Executive Director 

Head of Growth & 
Investment

Head of Corporate 
Resources & Chief 
Financial Officer 

Head of 
Environment & 

Public Realm 

Head of 
Communities & 

Homes
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3. Governance  

The Annual Governance Statement, which accompanies these financial statements, sets out our governance 

framework and an assessment of our effectiveness. The statement was prepared by the Corporate Assurance 

and Improvement Manager and concludes that the overall governance framework continues to provide a 

substantial level of assurance of effectiveness. 

Several further enhancements were made to our governance arrangements during 2019/20 including: 

• Enhancements to the Information Governance framework, including introduction of a clear desk 

policy and update of the IT Code of Conduct. 

• Requiring employees to confirm they had read and understood the requirements of the Fraud 

Response Plan. 

• Provision of mandatory LGBT+ training to all officers and members. 

• Delivery of independent scrutiny training to senior managers, democratic services officers and 

members. 

• Publication of decisions taking under delegated authority. 

During our emergency response to the Coronavirus pandemic, we responded rapidly to ensure that key 

decisions could continue to be taken with appropriate scrutiny and transparency. This included having weekly 

question and answer sessions between officers and members, and the introduction of virtual Council meetings 

which are live streamed to the public. As part of our response we implemented strategic senior management 

oversight and an operational management tactical group. We also developed a corporate Coronavirus risk 

register, which supported the effective delivery of our response to the pandemic. 

We are committed to ensuring continuous improvement in our governance year-on-year and an action plan 

has been developed for 2020/21; this includes development of a more effective approach to the use of data, 

and further development of our information governance framework. 

Equality impact assessments are a key element of our governance framework for decision making, and we 

continue to hold an accreditation of “excellent” under the equalities framework for local government. In 

2020/21 we will be carrying out a self assessment under the framework, which will then be subject to 

independent review and validation. 
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Our Priorities 

 
On the 25 April 2017 the Council approved the Corporate Strategy 2017-20, setting out our priorities for the 

next three years.   Our corporate strapline, “proud of our past, fit for the future,” is helping us to focus on 

providing facilities and growth that give us a strong and prosperous future while preserving and celebrating 

the best of our past. As a result of the Coronavirus pandemic our strategy will be extended by a further year 

and will become a recovery strategy, further details can be found in section 10.  

 

Under our strapline we have set three overarching corporate priorities that reflect the need for public services 

to change and reform. 

These are: 

• Provide excellent, value for money services and sustainable growth 

• Achieve financial self-sufficiency by 2020 

• Enable our residents to live healthy, independent lives 

 

  

PORTFOLIO: CORPORATE RESOURCES 
We will: 

• Optimise income and identify new revenue opportunities 

• Prioritise use of resources to meet changing customer needs and demands 

• Ensure that the council works efficiently and effectively 

 

PORTFOLIO: COMMUNITIES AND HOMES 

We will: 
• Ensure residents have a home that works for them and is affordable 

• Deliver digitally-enabled services that residents can access 

• Understand our communities and enable people to take an active part in them 

 

PORTFOLIO: ENVIRONMENT AND PUBLIC REALM 

We will: 
• Enhance our local, open spaces to make them places where people want to be 

• Continue to improve the efficiency of our waste and recycling services 

• Protect the public 

 

PORTFOLIO: GROWTH AND INVESTMENT 

We will: 
• Promote sustainable growth and economic prosperity 

• Promote and grow Rugby’s visitor economy with our partners 

• Encourage healthy and active lifestyles to improve wellbeing within the borough 

 

 

These portfolios, allied with the “can do” approach of our workforce, is allowing us to deliver services that 

underpin our aspiration to be proud of our past, and fit for the future.  

Appendix A
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 Workforce 
  
How well are we doing in staff wellbeing and 

recruitment and retention; 
  
  
  

5 
 Communities & Wellbeing  

  
The number of Green Flag awards for the 

Parks & Open Spaces of Rugby; 
 

 

In addition, continued support from 

volunteers within our Parks services are at a 

record high of 15,000hrs, which represents a 

21% increase compared with 2018/19. 
  
  
  

2 

       Self Sufficiency, Growth & Prosperity 
  
Rugby is a pro-growth authority and has seen 

substantial growth in new builds within the 

borough. 

 

 

 

 

 
The housing trajectory in line with the local 

plan projects that a further 1,111 homes will 

be built within the borough of Rugby in 

2020/21.  
  

6 

HRA Housing Stock  
  
The Council owns its own housing stock which 

has developed during the year as follows: 
 

 
 This breaks down as follows: 
 

 

 

4 
 Homelessness 

  
The amount of Homelessness 

preventions/reliefs made by RBC has risen by 

25% from the previous year. 

 

 
  
  

 
 

The Private Sector Leasing Scheme (PSLS) 

accommodation increased to 92 units in year, 

which will house local people in housing need. 

 

1 

                  Financial Sustainability 
 
The General Fund financial position is an 

underspend of £0.375m before providing for 

carryforwards into 2020/21of £0.331m This 

leaves a net £0.044m underspend. 
 
 

 
 

At the end of 2019/20: 

General Fund balances are at £2.250m 

Earmarked Reserves are at £9.754m 
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4. How your Council is performing  

 
Rugby has seen continued growth and investment in the local economy in recent years which includes; 

The 151-year-old family-owned firm Stepnell have completed phase one of a new £8 million business park 

development at their Lawford Road site in Rugby.  Stepnell Park will bring new commercial and industrial units 

and up to 100 jobs to the area.     

The new international headquarters of Meggitt PLC at Ansty Park will be fully operational from October 2020 

and serve up to 1,000 employees.   The Ansty Park super-site, coupled with the Meggitt Apprenticeship 

Programme launched in partnership with the Manufacturing Technology Centre, is a significant investment in 

the long-term future of Meggit in the local area.  

Housing development has continued across the Borough, particularly at Houlton & Rugby Gateway (Eden 

Park) creating new communities, as well as providing greatly needed affordable housing in Ryton on 

Dunsmore.   

However, this presents challenges resulting from increased demand for Council Services, cost of growth and 

how this is delivered within the limited available resources.  

 

In addition, due to austerity measures and changes in funding methodology we have been impacted 

by funding cuts over the last 10 years with significant reductions in core funding streams, most notably: 

• Revenue Support Grant (RSG) has reduced from £3.200m in 2013/14 to zero in 2019/20.   

• A loss of £2.500m New Homes Bonus (NHB) income due to the phased reduction in legacy 

payments from six years in 2016/17, five years in 2017/18, to four years from 2018/19 onwards.  

 

Consequently, members have been required to make some difficult decisions to ensure that Rugby is fit for 

the future. The outcome of these decisions continually enable the Council to prepare for the anticipated 

radical Government funding changes in future years. However, the anticipated fair funding review expected 

in 2020/21 has been delayed because of the focus on Brexit and the impact of the Coronavirus pandemic 

but does not take away the  expected  significant adverse impact to Shire districts and Borough councils. 

Section 8 provides greater detail on this. 

 

Our commitment to monitoring and future planning has been vital both from an operational and financial 

perspective to ensure that there is a balanced approach to the medium term which considers the financial 

challenges and the council’s ability to deliver value for money services to an increasing population.  

 

This has been achieved to date through conducting service reviews and restructures to adapt to the 

changing environment, taking a more commercial approach to services that we offer and the charges that 

we make, investment in digitalisation which is enabling us to deliver outcomes in a more effective and 

efficient way and financial planning that provides for potential risks with a controlled and measurable 

approach. 

 

During 2019/20 we have experienced both financial and operational pressures and opportunities which have 

been either mitigated or developed and included within the budget setting process for 2020/21. These 

include; 

• The reduction in cost in B&B and Nightly Self-Contained Accommodation 

• Increased planning income above anticipated budget levels  

• The removal of the key decision surrounding kerbside waste collection  
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• The increased cost seen for Land Fill Tax following an updated calculation method for the 

Commercial Waste service 

• The impact of loss of income from free parking for evenings and weekends in the town centre 

 

 

The Council’s commitment to continuous improvement and lean ways of working is seen in services across 

the organisation with the following summarising the notable achievements in 2019/20  and later sections 

providing a more detailed overview of value for money. 

 

 

• We wish to strengthen our relationships with local schools to encourage local young people to see 

Rugby Borough Council as an employer of choice. Part of this work has involved the HR team 

supporting careers events locally and continue to support requests for work experience. 

 

• Efficiencies through continued improvements and solution in digitalisation with the largest being 

the replacement of the platforms and websites in respect of the content management system 

and customer relationship management. 

 

• Improved services to the residents of Rugby Borough through online services which are now 

available to the community through the self-service portal increasing the number of people 

utilising out of hours interactions leading towards a more accessible council: 

 

• Find My Bin Day – Residents can check online when their bins are due for collection. 

 

• Grant Applications – Organisations can now access the Community Grants scheme 

through the online portal resulting in a complete digitalisation of the Rugby Grants process, 

including application, consideration, and feed through to grants party and grant award. 

 

• Fly tipping report – Allows residents to fill out an online form to report incidences of fly 

tipping any time of the day/night. 

 

• Open Portal – Allows residents to check their council tax bill, print it, check the progress of 

their housing benefit claim, view or print a copy of their housing benefit or council tax 

reduction award calculation and report a change of circumstances online. 

 

• The pilot to use chat-bots which utilise Artificial Intelligence to simulate conversation with human 

users was completed but found that the technology was unable to cope with anything other than 

extremely basic requests, and overall resulted in increased failure demand on other channels. 

Though Artificial Intelligence offers significant potential, the technology is insufficiently advanced 

to bring any benefits at this time. The council will instead focus resources on implementing a digital 

experience platform that will harmonise the customer relationship management and website 

content management systems and offer scope for further rationalisation of council systems. 

 

• Forward planning to meet the overall priority to become financially self sufficient with any 

anticipated excess growth in business rates allocated to reserves to help manage the expected 

cliff edge created from the funding changes in future years from Business Rates Baseline and Fair 

Funding.  
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How our activities align with our Corporate Priorities 

Corporate Resources – Portfolio Performance 
 
Optimise income and identify new revenue opportunities 

The 2019/20 budget included additional income proposals of £0.219m which combined optimising existing 

charges by ensuring they kept up with inflation, recognising where services had successfully increased their 

sales volumes, such as trade waste, as well as expanding the lifelines service.  

 

Our commitment to working in partnership and sharing good practice has continued to generate cash 

efficiencies through income generation and cost recovery.  

 

This is strengthened within the Medium Term Financial Strategy through the requirement to perform an annual 

review of charges where it makes it clear that ‘as a minimum’ the fees and charges will be increased in line 

with inflation rates. 

 

We have improved our Treasury Management performance as follows: 

• Reducing our Net Cost of Borrowing by £0.203m in 2019/20 

• Increasing our average rate of return on investments by 0.07% year-on-year to 1.23%, or 0.60% greater 

than our benchmark, 3-month LIBID ( the rate at which  major global banks lend to one another in the 

international interbank market for short-term loans.) 

 

In addition, as part of the budget setting process there are proposals which will explore opportunities to 

generate further income during 2020/21 with budget proposals for both Sports and Leisure and Trade Waste 

services. This annual review enables us to provide reassurance we are continuing to take opportunities where 

necessary to not only recover costs in additional services provided by the Council that are deemed as 

chargeable over and above Council Tax but also deliver our priority to ‘Achieve financial self-sufficiency ’   

 

 

Prioritise use of Resources to meet changing customer needs and demands 

 

Digitalisation 

 

The efficiencies and cost savings will continue to be realised as new online services are developed and 

implemented. Already we have realised savings through the use of online services like Green Waste 

channel which was seen an increase in signups over 70%. To accompany this increase we have provided 

integration of councils Secure Card Portal payment system into back end systems to allow seamless 

transactions for Bulky Waste, Garden Waste and Street Waste. 

Another success story has been the development and launch of the Rugby App, which integrates directly 

into our processes and provides push notifications of bins days to residents amongst other functions. 
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Rugby has become an early adopter for Civica Cx and represent the first authority to go live with the 

Licencing system.  As part of the success of this project we were nominated for a Technology Award for our 

partnership in the development of the system.    

 

As we are nearing the end of the Disaster Recovery project which will provide resilience of the council’s IT 

infrastructure in the case of an emergency, this offsite facility also enhances councils strive toward cloud 

technologies. 

 

The Digital refurbishment of the Council Chamber Audio Visual equipment has enabled members to embrace 

a paperless environment and enable savings with printing, paper and officers time. 

 

As at 31 March 2020 we had 56% of accounts signed up for e-billing for Non Domestic Rates (NDR) and 29% 

signed up for e-billing for Council Tax.  We have had 3,964 Open Portal sign-ups up to 31 March 2020, which 

takes the total number of tax payers registered to manage their accounts online to 10,893. 

 

Our Staff 

Our staff are our most valuable asset and 2019/20 saw us continue to 

promote the HR strategy consisting of 6 principles; 
 

• Attract and retain a CAN DO workforce  

• Develop leadership 

• Build workforce skills and capability  

• Nurture employee engagement and wellbeing 

• Continuous review of terms and conditions and remuneration 

• Provide an excellent HR service  
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We continue to promote and embed our corporate values which recognise the value and importance of 

Council staff in every aspect of our work and sets out our expectations.  We have embedded our CAN DO 

Corporate Values in a number of different ways including through employee 1:1 meetings, development 

initiatives and training alongside a commitment to ensure staff well-being is prioritised.  

We as a Council continue to monitor and investigate the reasons for sickness with  the top reason for sickness 

due to stress, depression and anxiety this year.  As a Council we are taking a proactive approach to support 

our staff and have now introduced Mental Health First Aiders within the Council who are members of staff 

who have received significant training to enable them to support and signpost our employees experiencing 

mental health issues. 

In addition, a new scheme was launched to help recognise achievements and share appreciation of our 

staff, the new scheme means that staff can send and receive praises from other colleagues, managers and 

even on behalf of external customers.  The scheme means that praises can be expressed in the way of a 

badge of honour of which there are nine types to choose from, five are aligned directly to our CAN DO 

Corporate Values whilst there are an extra four for items such as “Team Player” and “Problem Solver”      

 

During 2019/20 staff received: 

- 1,125 training places on 75 internal courses 

- 35 staff took 129 E Learning courses 

The Council employs 6 apprentices working towards either their level 2 or 3 customer care  

qualifications with a further 14 staff receiving training funded by the apprenticeship levy. 
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Ensure that the Council works efficiently and effectively 

Optimise the use of our land and assets 

The Council have commenced a project to support the regeneration of the town centre. This is at an early 

stage but will gain further traction and speed in the coming year as the council develops its approach for its 

local recovery plan following the Coronavirus pandemic. 

  

Last year the council obtained a grant of £0.165m from the government under the One Public Estate scheme 

to support the review of the Town Hall site. This project includes a wide range of public sector partners 

including Warwickshire County Council, the West Midlands Combined Authority, the Department of Work and 

Pensions, blue light services, NHS partners, third sector partners, private companies, and other local 

stakeholders. 

 

During 2019 the grant money has supported initial specialist consultancy work. This included a condition survey 

of the Town Hall, a workplace assessment, and an initial options appraisal. Options range from the 

refurbishment of existing council assets to the sale of the site and provision of a new shared services 

buildings/arrangements including a new Rugby Hub building. This work is planned to continue during 2020 

and will include consultation on the proposals. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Architects Impression of a Potential New Rugby Hub building  

 

The council own 4.25 acres of vacant land near the railway station. After offering the land to the open market 

and receiving many bids the council entered an exclusivity agreement with a developer with a view to selling 

the land for development. The developer is currently pursuing a proposal for 360 new private rental sector 

properties through the planning system. The council hope to conclude the sale in 2020 and see the new 

homes built out soon after. 
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New Council houses  

Over the last year the council has purchased or exchanged contracts on 20 brand new section 106 houses 

(houses designated affordable units under planning consents) from developers and purchased a further 18 

houses in the open market.  In addition to existing funding of £3m to facilitate the replacement of homes lost 

through Right-to-Buy, the council allocated £12.9m for a Housing Acquisitions Fund to alleviate the costs of 

temporary accommodation during 2018//19 and will continue with acquisitions throughout the forthcoming 

year. 

 

Bell House project  

The council have secured planning permission for 18 affordable apartments on a former extra care home 

which it owns (the extra care facility has been demolished). The council intend to build out these new homes 

using local contractors and its own in-house project management expertise. 

 

The council have appointed the design team and will tender the project to contractors in the coming year 

 

High Rise Projects  

The council has approved the regeneration of 5 high rise blocks in the borough at Biart Place and Rounds 

Gardens. The council has led UK wide research working with the Building Research Establishment on large 

panel structures such as these to understand the condition of the building before making the decisions. 

 

Biart Place Project 

The blocks have been fully decanted and de-construction works commenced on site. The contractor has 

commenced the de-construction (although the works are currently suspended because of Coronavirus 

restrictions). The council undertook a public consultation prior to commencing work on site and is currently 

preparing detailed proposals for the regeneration project. The Council has also worked with the Fire service 

in tackling a fire situation in high rise buildings as a regional training exercise. 

 

Rounds Gardens Redevelopment  

The council approved the decant of tenants out of the three blocks over a three-year period and to fully 

regenerate the site. The decant of tenants is progressing well (although currently on hold due to Coronavirus 

-19 considerations) and the council has successfully found suitable alternate accommodation for tenants 

they have decanted already.  

 

 
Current Rounds Gardens site 

 

The Rounds Gardens site consist of three high rise blocks (Ashwood Court, Beechwood Court, Royal Court) 

and 32 low level independent living (sheltered) flats. The aim of the redevelopment is to replace or exceed 

the number of homes offered on the site. 
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The Phase 1 Feasibility study has been completed which included a detailed analysis of the existing site and 

early design options to accommodate the council’s specific requirements. 

The Council is now out to tender to procure a design team  

 

 
Artists impression of potential Rounds Gardens redevelopment 

Improved service delivery via customer focused reviews 

We have employed Systems Thinking methodology for many years to deliver improvements for our customers. 

This has helped us to operate as efficiently and effectively as possible, whilst ensuring the customer is at the 

heart of our service provision and delivery.  During 2019/20 the following areas were reviewed: 

• The introduction of a Chatbot to its website and Facebook Messenger to assist in the queries arising 

from refuse and recycling. 

• Housing processes alongside the introduction of new Housing Management System  

• The Community Advice and Support Team (CAST) as part of an overall service redesign to meet 

increased pressures in demand for services 

• An end-to-end review of Audit processes. 

 

In addition, the Council has many teams across the organisation that undertake responsive works, 

planned/preventative and compliance activities in respect of assets. The implementation of a Corporate 

Asset Management System aims to provide centralised system management of all council assets and also 

any non-council owned asset works undertaken, to realise benefits of working in a more joined up, consistent, 

efficient and effective manner and the provision of comprehensive data to support strategic and operational 

decision making.  

 

 

 

 

Appendix A



 

 
 

18 

 

Communities and Homes – Portfolio Performance 

Ensure residents have a home that works for them and is affordable 

Our housing 

The following investment has been made in our housing stock this year:  

• 36 communal blocks had door replacement and enhanced security measures fitted  

• A total of 132 bathrooms were upgraded  

• Heating upgrades of approximately £1.181m, equating to around 530 new installs for combination 

boilers.  

In relation to supporting and managing the tenants of our own housing stock: 

• We sustained 38 of 47 tenancies referred to court who were at serious risk of losing their home as a 

result of rent arrears, anti-social behaviour or breach of tenancy. 

• 173 customers accessed the Tenancy Coach or Tenancy Sustainment Service whereby the team 

worked with individual customers to develop a sustainment plan, complete income maximisation 

exercises, and access specialist support. Many of these cases involved mental health, drug & 

alcohol misuse and domestic abuse. 

Homelessness 

 

The focus on providing homes that are affordable includes the priority to reduce homelessness, making better 

use of existing homes and helping to ensure that residents live independently in their homes.   

One of the key success for the team during the year was the 

significant progress made in reducing the number of clients having 

to be placed in Bed and Breakfasts establishments. In 2018/19, the 

numbers of placements rose to a high of 36 in June 2018. Despite 

continuing high demand on the service, the number of 

placements throughout 2019/20 were reduced to between zero 

and three at any one time until mid-March 2020. This resulted in 

costs for Bed and Breakfast placements reducing from £0.374m in 2018/19 to £0.066m in 2019/20. Part of the 

success in this was the increase in properties sourced via the Housing Acquisitions Fund that was created in 

2018/19. During the year the fund has acquired £4.9m worth of land and property which provided 38 homes 

for families and individuals.  

However, the use of commercial hotels and other establishments increased significantly from mid-March with 

the unconditional placing of homeless households as part of the Council’s response to the Coronavirus 

Pandemic. This will continue into 2020/21. 

Universal Credit 

Universal Credit is now firmly established within the Borough and provides support to those of working age to 

pay their rent (replacing Housing Benefit), with the total number of claims increasing from 3,600 in March 2019 

to 4,600 in February 2020. This number is expected to increase significantly during 2020/21 as a result of the 

economic downturn caused by the COVID-19 Pandemic.  

Sheltered Housing 

NHS surveys suggest one in three adults over the age of 65 who live alone will have at least one fall a year. 

Our sheltered housing accommodation enables individuals to live as independently as possible, aided by our 

assistive technology, ‘Lifeline’.  The service provides a 24-hour emergency helpline with a unique responsive 

Number of homeless prevention 

reliefs made by Rugby Borough 

Council 

2018/19 416 

2019/20 521 
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call-out when emergency contacts cannot be reached. The knowledge that help is at hand at all times 

provides peace of mind to individuals and their families. The expansion of the service through the sale to the 

wider public has proved successful in reducing service charges to tenants and generating a funding stream 

to the General Fund. The customer base was increased in 2019/20 and estimates for 2020/21 include provision 

for a further expansion of the service. 

 

Understand our communities and enable people to take an active part in them 

 

Rugby Lotto 

Rugby Borough Council partnered with the lottery provider 

Gatherwell to launch the Rugby Lotto; a community lottery 

to support local good causes.  The lottery was officially 

launched in February 2019 with the first draw in May 2019, 

the Lotto now celebrates its first year and has raised more 

than £30,000 for charities and community causes. 
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Environment and Public Realm – Portfolio Performance 

Enhance our local, open spaces to make them places where people want to be 

During this year we have implemented changes to our grounds maintenance service following a review to 

ensure that it is operating efficiently whilst still delivering a cost effective service for our residents.  We have 

also spent a considerable amount of time working with our Planning colleagues looking at the Local Plan to 

ensure these areas provide environmental benefits such as opens spaces to our new and emerging 

communities.   

Ambitious Masterplan  

2019/20 saw us launch our ambitious masterplan detailing a range of improvements to the recreation ground 

at Featherbed Lane including a picnic area, wildflower meadows and dozens of trees.  We then launched a 

public consultation to invite residents to let us know what they thought about the plans, and following this we 

will now finalise the plan before looking to secure funding for the project.  

2019/20 was also a successful year for our parks and open spaces, with recognition for:  

• Well managed parks and green spaces - 

A Green Flag award for Caldecott Park, 

Centenary Park, Millennium Green, 

Rainsbrook Cemetery and Crematorium 

and Gladstone Green Pocket Park. Which 

includes Caldecott Park securing this 

award for the twelfth year in a row. 
 

• Britain in Bloom – Rugby Borough 

achieved a Gold Award in the regional 

Heart of England in Bloom campaign.  
 

• Bees Needs – The Council was awarded 3 

Bees Needs Awards from the Department 

for the Environment, Farming and Rural 

Affairs (DEFRA) for all our efforts in helping 

sustain pollinators. 
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Continue to improve the efficiency of our waste and recycling services 

The impact of digital solutions and more efficient ways of working in 2019/20  has enabled the waste and 

recycling service to make continued progress in all aspects of the service.  

Operational 

The service has not only seen a 50% reduction in reported missed bins for specific collection services but also 

accommodated increased participation in our garden waste collection service with Recycling and green 

waste tonnages having increased during the year, showing an improvement to the disposal of household 

waste through more separation.  In addition, the Commercial Waste service has maintained subscription 

levels from previous years with approximately 990 local businesses subscribing to the service.  

Corporate 

There is a new suite of service level KPIs created and implemented leading to improved service 

accountability which is supported by new business continuity plans created and actioned in March 2020 

Health and Safety has been prioritised for all operational services leading to reductions in accidents and 

working time lost, in addition to improved Health and Safety Management and Action plans specifically 

created and implemented for waste collection services 

A new Waste and Environmental policy document has been issued covering all service requirements and 

the 2019 fleet procurement programme was delivered in full with a 15 year procurement programme now 

developed 

From a Regional and National perspective, the Council is an active participant and project partner in the 

proposed regional materials recycling facility in partnership with neighbouring and regional local authority 

partners. Leading to the Joint Waste Agreement (1 & 2) being signed allowing for the procurement 

commencing for the design and build of the facility to be delivered in 2022/23. 

Protect the public 

There are a number of initiatives that have been undertaken to continue to protect the public. 

• Private Sector Housing Charter – the Council has adopted the Private Sector Housing Charter. It 

sets out standards that the law demands from all private landlords and agents, including lettings 

procedures, tenancy deposits, complaints, and health and safety. Rugby Borough Council and 

all partner organisations signed up to the charter with the aim of ensuring that landlords meet the 

standards. 

• Public Open Spaces – New Public Spaces Protection Orders were adopted in 2019/20 with regards 

to several key areas; dog control, use of intoxicating substances in the town centre, and tackling 

nuisance behaviours at Newbold Quarry. 

• Licensing – A number of joint operations led by Rugby Borough Council with support of colleagues 

from the DVLA and Warwickshire County Council were held in 2019/20 where school vehicles and 

Hackney and Private Hire vehicles were inspected and removed from the road if found to be 

unsafe.  

• Community Wardens – Restructuring was completed which provides a major service 

improvement for local residents and businesses and the Community Wardens can now provide 

community based customer services 7 days per week. Services include responding to anti-social 

behaviour, nuisance, dog warden services, car park support and  enforcement. The service has 

been extended to support other teams within the council that do not have out of hours cover. 
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Growth and Investment – Portfolio Performance 
 
Promote sustainable growth and economic prosperity 

Adopt an ambitious Local Plan  

The Local Plan was adopted on 4 June 2019, the plan sets out sites for 12,400 homes to be built by 2031, and 

208 hectares of employment land, some of which has already been completed this year.  The adoption of 

the plan follows extensive consultation involving residents, businesses, developers and other interested parties, 

an independent examination by a government-appointed planning inspector and a series of public hearings 

overseen by the inspector.  Adoption of the Local Plan fulfils a key strategic objective of the council and is 

vital to help shape future growth and investment in the borough. 

 
Promote and grow Rugby’s visitor economy with our partners 

The continued success with our partners to promote and drive visitor economy into the borough has once 

again seen mass appeal for events such as: 

 

• Rugby Festival of Culture – This three-week event has grown to one of the largest cultural events in 

Warwickshire and showcases a wide range of local artistic talent across the town centre’s cultural 

buildings, businesses, and public spaces. 

 

• Rugby Bikefest – This family-friendly festival is the busiest one-day event of the year. It includes a ride-

in, bike displays, stalls, children’s activities, funfair, music and food. The highlight was the ‘Extreme 

Wheelie’ machine, both a motorcycle simulator and a virtual reality experience. 

 

• Heritage Open Days – Rugby Visitor Centre co-ordinated and promoted the Borough’s events offer 

as part England’s largest free festival of history and culture. Highlights included a town tour on a 

Midland Red vintage bus, a trip to the Cemex plant, a behind-the-scenes visit of Rugby Theatre and 

Rugby School tours. 
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Hall of Fame 

The World Rugby Hall of Fame which was opened in November 2016 and continues to attract visitors since 

opening its doors.  During the 2019 summer holidays saw the Hall of Fame offer “Kids Go Free” with a paying 

adult and tied this in with a number of activities held at the Hall of Fame.  

In December 2019 former Welsh 

international and record try-scorer Shane 

Williams launched the “Handoff 

Challenge” inviting rugby fans to visit the 

Hall of Fame and try beat his record.  The 

Handoff Challenge consists of speed and 

a reactions test where challengers have 

30 seconds to use their hands to hit as 

many targets as possible. 

To celebrate the 2019 Rugby World Cup 

a programme of events ranging from 

music and theatre to rugby talks and 

movies were held during the tournament 

to celebrate the spirit of the game with a 

focus on the host country Japan.  

 

 

Celebrate our cultural and artistic heritage through Rugby Art Gallery and Museum, The BENN Hall and 

events and festivals 

Rugby Art Gallery and Museum held a range of successful exhibitions this year attracting visitors into the town 

centre from the borough and across the country. Highlights include Curious Cures and Marvellous Medicines 

which showcased the weird and wonderful medical instruments in the collection dating from the late 

Victorian to mid-20th century that have recently been assessed pharmaceutical experts. February half term 

activities connected to the exhibition were inspired by the Roald Dahl’s George’s Marvellous Medicine, with 

special permission from the publishing house. The exhibition was visited by nearly 6,000 visitors which has had 

a positive impact on visitors into the Town Centre and provided an overall benefit to the local economy.  

The Benn Hall has continued to develop through new split deals with theatre companies and agents to 

increase the calibre of acts offered at the Benn Hall increasing further footfall to both the Town Centre and 

the Benn Hall.  A number of sold out shows throughout the year including the likes of Showaddywaddy, Jethro 

and The Bohemians (leading Queen Tribute Act) has further installed the Benn Hall as one of the top venues 

in Rugby.  
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Encourage healthy and active lifestyles to improve wellbeing within the borough 

Our encouragement of healthy and active lifestyles to improving overall wellbeing in the borough is 

demonstrated by:  

 

• Sports Development – Continue to work with local partners to provide physical activity sessions 

including Table Tennis and Kurling for the older residents.  The team also continue to provide the 

summer activity progamme to young people during school holidays with activities such as Golf, 

Sailing and Trampolining.  

 

• Family Lifestyle Programme –  The service has continued to meet its targets set by Warwickshire 

County Council and as a result Rugby Borough Council has secured a new 3 year contract  

which will see the Family Weight Management Programme expand to the Healthy Lifestyles 

service which will now include a wider audience of 4-19 year olds. 

 

• On Track & Play Rangers – Both of these service continue to engage with younger people, On 

Track continues to develop with its partners to offer community and mentoring sessions to young 

people and pupils.  The Play Ranger service also continues to develop with new exciting 

opportunities such as offering Forest Schools.    

• Good Times Programme – Now in its 5th year the programme aimed at people living with 

dementia enables a wide range of users and carers to engage with a monthly craft session at 

the RAGM with sessions also held at the Rugby Age Uk centre and St Cross Hospital. 
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Approach to partnership working 

 
We endeavour to work collaboratively with other public service organisations to provide a seamless service 

to the customers we serve and to ensure that Value for Money is achieved with the limited resources 

available.  In addition, there is continued liaison and collaborative working arrangements with community 

and voluntary to ensure that customers feel empowered, protected and satisfied.  Some examples include; 

• LGBT+ - Rugby Borough Council and Warwickshire Pride have adopted a joint action plan aimed at 

making sure LGBT+ communities in Rugby feel safe and supported. Flying the rainbow flag on key 

dates was one action, while others included providing training for council staff and other public 

sector agencies and providing support services and safe places for LGBT+ communities.  

• Volunteering - Supported a record 15,981 hours of volunteering within both our green spaces and 

Rugby Art Gallery and Museum. 

• Environmental Crime - There has been continued support for other local authorities with expertise 

given in envirocrime enforcement to Harborough District Council and Warwick District Council to 

provide training, advice and enforcement services including fly tipping and houses in multiple 

occupation waste offences. 

• Coventry Warwickshire and Solihull Resilience Team - This was the first year of an agreement for the 

provision of a Joint Emergency Planning Officer (JEPO), with numerous successes emerging from the 

arrangement including a review of the Major Emergency Plan, access to specialist training and 

exercising for Council staff and the Council's response to other emergencies which have occurred 

throughout the year. 

• Rainsbrook Crematorium - This is jointly operated between Rugby and Daventry Councils and has 

now successfully completed its 6th year of operation. 

• GDPR – With the introduction of General Data Protection Regulations Rugby Borough Council 

provides support to Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough Council with the new General Data Protection 

Regulations. 

• Warwickshire Fire & Rescue - Providing use of the empty Biart Place multistory flats for realistic training 

exercises. 

Further details of our partnership working can be found within the Related Parties note 35. 
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5. Financial Overview of 2019/20 

 
The approved budget for 2019/20 was £16.740m and included (£0.687m) savings and Key decisions, in 

addition to (£0.219m) income proposals.  These proposals have either been successfully achieved or are in 

progress with mitigating actions taken to mitigate the financial impact of this during the year. However, the 

key decision of £0.105m in respect of waste collection to review of non-kerbside collections was not 

delivered and later removed during the budget setting process for 2020/21. This decision followed further 

consultation and a detailed service review that was carried out during 2019/20. 

Some of the targets which members set for delivery as part of that savings strategy were: 

• £0.182m staffing related savings and Key decisions including redundancies and disestablished 

posts following service redesign 

• £0.166m saving in budgeted bad debt provision due to a reduction in the overall level of debt 

associated with Housing Benefit overpayments, primarily due to the transition to Universal Credit. 

• £0.149m from increased demand for chargeable Waste Services £0.100m increase in the 

corporate savings target 

• £0.040m relating to a fees and charges review which reflected the CPI increase of 2%. 

Whilst the Council continues to make efficiencies and drive forward the key corporate priority of self-

sufficiency, this does not take away from the significant challenges that are faced in future years as 

reported in the 2018-2022 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

Our Medium Term Financial Strategy 

On 24 April 2018, the 2018-22 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was approved by Council.  The MTFS 

outlines the key principles and financial policies required to enable us to meet our objectives and achieve 

the ambition of becoming financially self-sufficient by the end of the decade.  This has been defined as: 

“…necessary to remove reliance on arbitrary funding from central Government, which does not sufficiently 

keep pace with changes in local factors and the needs of the population.  Instead, sources of income for 

the Council need to result from decisions the organisation makes; be that from service charges, local 

taxation, economic growth or investment income.  Alongside income, it is equally important to be able to 

directly control the Council’s expenditure; by reducing exposure to changes from other organisations and 

ensuring procurement is smart.” 

 

Achieving financial self sufficiency 

Our pro-growth agenda has put us well on our path to achieving self-sufficiency, however the future financial 

outlook with anticipated significant changes to Government funding for the sector means we need to adapt 

our uncertain funding streams to create our own certainty within this unstable financial environment.   

To achieve financial self-sufficiency, we will need to reduce the reliance of these riskier funding streams in our 

base budget.  The MTFS explains how we will adapt these more uncertain funding streams to start to create 

our own certainty within this unstable finance environment. 
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Business Rates 

The main financial risk we face is the reset of the current retained business rates retention system which is 

assumed to take place on 1 April 2021. The reset presents twin risks, specific to the resets of both the ‘funding 

baseline’ and the ‘business rates baseline’.  These risks are expanded in the following sections. 

Funding Baseline 

Funding baselines for local authorities are based on an assessment of local authorities’ relative needs and 

resources.  The methodology behind the funding allocations was introduced over ten years ago and has not 

been updated since the introduction of the 50% business rates retention system in 2013/14.  

Since that time, demographic pressures have affected local areas in different ways, as has the cost of 

providing particular services. In recognition of these pressures, the Government in 2016/17 announced a 

review to address concerns about the fairness of current funding distributions. The outcome of this review will 

enable the Government to reconsider how the relative needs and resources of local authorities should be 

assessed in a world in which they will continue to have greater control over the money that they raise.  

The design of this system or the direction and magnitude of the reallocation of funding will not be known until 

the final outcome of the review which has now been delayed.   The Review of Relative Needs and Resources 

will no longer be implemented in 2021/22 as planned in order to allow councils to focus on meeting the public 

health challenge posed by the Coronavirus Pandemic. 

 

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) approved by Full Council in February 2020 assumed an estimated 

financial impact of the business rates reset with the Council’s funding baseline 2020/21 and future years 

averaged at £2.400m and as such this amount of funding is at risk from the outcome of the Fair Funding 

Review. 

 

Business Rates Baseline 

We are a pro-growth authority and have taken a proactive approach to generate growth in our local 

economy. Consequently, we have benefited from retaining a proportion of the additional business rates 

generated in the borough and therefore we are above our business rates baseline level.   

However, there are several risks that the Council faces due to the forthcoming funding reform, the most 

significant are:  

  

• The impact of Coronavirus Pandemic on the performance and sustainability of business in the 

local economy. 

• Loss of all existing growth due to the Business Rates Reset  

• The outcome of the Fair Funding Review providing a reduction in our assessed funding need    

• Significant changes to and possible end of the New Homes Bonus scheme.  

  

This uncertainty makes financial planning for future years extremely challenging, as even the smallest of 

changes to one of the many variables can result in very different outcomes.  If all of these came into effect, 

cumulatively the potential losses aggregate to a sizeable financial loss.  
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The following chart shows the assessment, made in February 2020, of the different financial outcomes that 

might arise for Rugby Borough Council across the medium term.   

 
 

The dotted blue line represents the funding position, as per the approved 2020-24 Medium term financial plan 

(MTFP).  It shows that during the early stages of the MTFP, the Council's funding does drop from 

£16.5m (excluding Parish precepts) to £12.600m between 2020/21 and 2021/22. However, later into MTFP the 

Council again begins to benefit from growth in the business rates funding increases to the £12.700m position 

by 2023/24.  

  

The red line presents a scenario where a negative or unfavourable outcome from the funding reform is 

delivered, but where there is no transitional protection in place.  Under such a scenario, the Council would 

see its deeper reductions in its resources reduce from approximately £16.500m to £12m between 2020/21 and 

2023/24. This would represent a £4.800m or 29% reduction in total resources.   

  

The solid blue line presents a scenario where a positive or favourable outcome from the funding reform is 

delivered for Rugby Borough Council. In such a scenario the Council’s funding reduction is smoothed over 

the medium term through transitional funding and assumes that there will be some continuation of funding to 

replace the changes expected in the NHB grant.  The Council would see its reductions in resources 

reduce from £16.500m to £14.500m in the longer-term.  

 

The Coronavirus Pandemic is expected to have a negative impact on the Council’s ability to collect income 

in 2020/21, including council tax and business rates.   It is too early to draw any firm conclusions of the impact 

on the Council’s revenues for current and future years at this point.  However, this will continue to be 

monitored to help identify the emerging trends and route cause and then enable more accurate forecasts 

moving forwards. 
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Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

Rents 

2019/20 was the final year of the requirement to reduce social rents by 1% annually introduced via the Welfare 

Reform and Work Bill 2016. To fund the income deficit during the 4 years covered by this policy, a mixed 

approach was adopted of identifying savings across the housing service and restructuring the HRA debt 

portfolio profile. Following consultation, the new Rents of Social Housing policy guidance has now been issued 

by government and will allow registered providers to increase rents by CPI + 1% (2.7%) in 2020/21.  

Future Limits on Borrowing (“the debt cap”) 

Following lobbying from the sector regarding the financing capacity to deliver new homes, the Government 

removed the limit on indebtedness (“debt cap”) from the HRA in October 2018. The cap for Rugby Borough 

Council had been £83.000m. 

In the absence of a regulated debt cap we have examined alternative measures to ensure the Council 

complies with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities. The Code advocates a principles-

based approach which allows each local authority to determine its own prerequisites, whilst taking account 

of any statutory requirements.  

Within the registered social housing provider sector, the nearest peer group to local authorities are housing 

associations. When seeking investment housing associations are typically assessed by commercial funding 

bodies on their interest cover metric. This examines the level of net rent generated by the organisation in 

comparison to its forecast debt costs. Typically, a ratio of 2:1, that is, net rent at double the level of debt costs 

is considered prudent to mitigate risks. Rugby Borough Council’s current HRA interest cover level is 7:1, that is 

net rent is seven times more than its debt costs. Sensitivity analysis was undertaken regarding future interest 

rate expectations in conjunction with treasury advisors to gauge the level of sustainable borrowing. At rent 

setting in February 2020, assuming a central case of future interest costs at 3.30%, the Council agreed a new 

local limit of £152m set with regard to the HRA’s interest cover ratio. The local limit will be reviewed at regular 

intervals and Council approval sought for any changes. 

Without the lifting of the debt cap, and in the absence of significant Government funding, the scale of the 

redevelopment schemes at Biart Place and Rounds Gardens would most likely have required special 

dispensation from the Secretary of State to breach the cap.  
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7. Financial Performance in 2019/20 

General Fund 
In 2019/20 the total Portfolio expenditure was £15.831m against a revised budget of £15.790m, resulting in a 

pressure of £0.041m, of which £0.331m has been requested to be carried forward to 2020/21.      

After adjusting for carry forwards, net cost of borrowing, the Minimum Revenue Provision for the repayment 

of debt and other corporate items the net underspend on Total Net Revenue Expenditure is £0.072m.  

 

Portfolio expenditure 

The year-end position on portfolio net expenditure is set out in the following table. 

 

      Reported   
 

Reported 

Portfolio Revised Budget Actual 

Carry 

forward to 

2020  /21   
  

Net 

Variance   

 

P14 

changes 

to General 

Fund 

Balances 
  £000s £000s £000s £000s  £000s 

Growth & Investment 2,956 2,914 38 (4)  -  

Environment & Public Realm 7,673 7,650 243 220  1 

Communities and Homes 2,158 1,967 42 (149)  -  

Corporate Resources  1,051 1,004 8 (39)  4 

Executive Director 1,952 1,965 - 13  -  

Net Portfolio Expenditure 15,790 15,500 331 41  5 

Net cost of borrowing  

and Investment Income 
375 244 - (131) 

 
-  

Minimum Revenue Provision 1,552 1,560 - 8  -  

Other corporate items (2,550) (2,540) - 10  1 

Total Reported  

Net Revenue Expenditure 
15,167 14,764 331 (72) 

 
6 

Adjustments -  6 -  6   
Revised Net Revenue 

Expenditure 
15,167 14,770 331 (66) 

  
 

The following provides an overview of the key variances; 

 

• £0.220m pressure in Environment and Public Realm. This is largely due to the impact of reduced Car 

parking income in the town centre, some of which was the impact of free evening and weekend 

parking and increased Vehicle repair, haulage, recycling and agency costs within Waste Services.  

• (£0.149m) in Communities and Homes of following the reduction in B&B/Temporary Accommodation.  

• (£0.039m) in Corporate Resources from increased income and staffing vacancies within the Revenues 

team.  
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Corporate Items, Income and Reserve Transfers 

Of this, the main variance was Minimum revenue Provision (MRP) and net cost of borrowing (NCoB) which 

presented an underspend of (£0.123m) compared to budget. . This is due to revisions in the use of cash-

backed balances and more favourable interest rates prior to recent cuts in Bank Rate.  

 

The sources of income from which the net revenue expenditure was financed, together with transfers to and 

from Corporate reserves and balances are set out in the following table to give the final net budget position 

for the year. 

  
Revised Budget 

£000s 

Actual Variance 

£000s £000s 

Total Net Revenue Expenditure 15,167 15,101 (66) 

Retained Business Rates (6,143) (6,777) (634) 

Council Tax (7,943) (7,943) - 

New Homes Bonus Grant (2,141) (2,141) - 

Other Grants (322) (299) 22 

Collection Fund - -  - 

Total Corporate Income (16,548) (17,160) (612) 

Carry forward from 2019/20 (125) (125) - 

Contribution to Budget Stability Reserve 256 256 - 

Contribution to Business Rates Equalisation Reserve 1,838 2,472 634 

Transfer from GF Balances  (588) (588) - 

Total Transfers to/from Corporate Reserves and Balances 1,381 2,015 634 

NET POSITION 0 (44) (44) 

 

General Fund Balances 

The previous table shows that the final position was an underspend of (£0.044m) which includes £0.006m of 

increased expenditure from the reported position of £0.050m. After accounting for the budgeted £0.588m 

contribution from the General Fund, to fund in-year budget adjustments and pressures. In line with the risk 

assessment undertaken £0.541m was then moved from the business rate equalisation reserve to provide 

assurance against the assessed risks over the medium term. See section 9 for a more detailed review of our 

reserves position 

 

 

Corporate Savings 

The corporate savings target totalled £0.343m in 2019/20 with the following key savings contributing to the 

achievement of this: 

 

• Salary Savings through vacancies during the year of £0.177m. These have mainly existed within 

Communities and Homes and Environment and Public Realm. 

• Other corporate savings within Net cost of borrowing and Insurance reserves totalling £0.110m 

• Other ad-hoc savings of £0.056m across the services. 
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Collection Fund 

Council Tax 

The amount credited to the General Fund in 2019/20 for council tax income is fixed to the budgeted amount 

of council tax billed during the year, not the actual cash collected. Any difference between the actual 

amount collected and the initial forecast will feed through into a surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund, to 

be met from or credited to future years’ budgets.   

For 2019/20 the actual cash position for council tax was an overall surplus of £0.604m.  This will be distributed 

between ourselves, Warwickshire County Council and The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 

Warwickshire in the relevant shares, as detailed in the Collection Fund Statement.  Our share of the surplus is 

£0.68m and this will be credited to the General Fund budget in 2021/22.   

 

Business Rates 

The Council sets its business rates budget for 2019/20 based on the NNDR1 form that was submitted to 

Government on 21 January 2019.  It was forecast that the Council would collect £48.800m of business rates in 

2019/20 , of which Rugby Borough Council would retain £6.269m 

The actual business rates income collected goes through the Collection Fund so that it can be distributed 

between ourselves, Central Government and Warwickshire County Council in relevant shares. 

At year end there was a deficit of £1.785m compared to the 2019/20 budget. This deficit arose in 2019/20 

because the financial benefits from growth were lower than estimated and there have been additional 

mandatory reliefs claimed that do not receive any compensation grant.  There was also an increase in the 

appeal provision, with our share increasing from £5.222m to £5.386m. Our share of the deficit is £0.714m and 

this will be charged to the General Fund budget in 2021/22 but this can be met from previous year surpluses 

that sit in the Business Rates Equalisation Reserve. This reserve has been created to not only to manage 

cashflow issues within the scheme but also earmarked to mitigate risks faced within the budget planning 

process across the medium term. 

However, some parts of the business rates retention system operate outside of the Collection Fund and are a 

direct charge to the General Fund.  The main aspect of this is the levy that we have to pay Government each 

year, which is equivalent to 50% of our share in the growth of local business rates.  As a result of the lower 

business rates recorded in the Collection Fund, the £0.174m levy that we paid to Government was less than 

budgeted, resulting in a favourable variance for the General Fund.  

We are a member of the Coventry & Warwickshire Business rates pool (the Pool), which operates to allow 

partners to work together, so that we can retain a greater proportion of any business rate growth within the 

Pool area. Our 50% levy of £3.259m is therefore also offset by a pooling gain and in 2019/20 we gained £0.629m 

from our pool membership, which was higher than the budgeted amount of £0.200m. 

As a result of the lower levy and higher pooling gain, plus some additional s31 grant funding from Central 

Government, the overall income received and charged to the General Fund for 2019/20 was higher than 

estimated and resulted in an in-year surplus of £0.633m,  which has been transferred to the Business Rates 

Equalisation reserve to offset the £0.714m deficit that will be factored into the budget for 2021/22. 

In summary: 

• As a result of this partial Collection Fund model for business rates, there is a positive variance against 

budget, even though the actual 2019/20 cash performance was adverse.   

• This positive variance of £0.633m has been transferred to the Business Rates Equalisation reserve.   

• The actual deficit on collection in 2019/20 will be charged to the General Fund budget in 2021/22, 

met by the Business Rates Equalisation Reserve. 

The following table details the outturn position and our share of the year end surplus of £0.633m which has 

been transferred to the Business Rates Equalisation Reserve.   
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Revised Budget 

£000s 

Actual 

£000s 

Variance 

£000s 

RBC share of NDR Income at 40% (as per the 

NNDR1 forecast) 
(21,025) (21,025) - 

Less Tariff  13,050 13,060 10 

Gross Amount Retained  (7,975) (7,965) 10 

Section 31 Grants  (1,527) (1,568) (41) 

Levy Payment  3,433 3,259 (174) 

Coventry and Warks BR Pool Income  (200) (629) (429) 

Net Retained Income  (6,269) (6,903) (634) 

Levy 2018-19 reconciliation payment - 1 1 

Total Business Rates Income (6,269) (6,902) (633) 

 

Housing Revenue Account 

 

The original reserve assessment approved in February 2019 recommended maintaining HRA balances at 

£5.085m, to mitigate the impact of the 1% rent reduction instigated by Government for the period 2016/17 to 

2019/20 and to prepare for the potential pressures concerned with the redevelopment or repair of Biart Place. 

The following table shows how the actual expenditure and income compared to the revised budget: 

 Revised Budget 

£000s 

Actual 

£000s 

Variance 

£000s 

Expenditure 11,880 12,852 972 

Income (17,006) (16,395) 611 

Net cost of HRA Services (5,126) (3,543) 1,583 

Corporate items (5,126) (6,709) (1,583) 

Surplus (-) / Deficit for year 0 0 0 
 

In overall terms HRA revenue balance remained at £5.085m at 31 March 2020. 

The variance on expenditure mainly relates to the difference in estimated and actual depreciation charges 

which are offset by a contribution from the Major Repairs Reserve within Corporate Items. The variance on 

income mainly relates to the loss of rent at Rounds Gardens where the decant of tenants commenced in 

2019/20 following the setting of original budgets. At outturn the  Council approved the diversion of resources 

originally set aside for the repayment of debt (£4.059m) to Revenue Contributions to Capital Expenditure to 

bolster Capital Investment Balances ahead of the commencement of works at Biart Place.  

 

The HRA also held £14.765m in Capital Investment Balances, £0.668m in the Housing Repairs Account and 

£0.212m in the Sheltered Accommodation earmarked reserve at 31 March 2020, in addition to £2.190m in the 

Major Repairs Reserve.  
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Capital 

Capital expenditure is defined as expenditure on the purchase, improvement or enhancement of assets, the 

benefit of which impacts for longer than the year in which the expenditure is incurred. Capital expenditure 

for the year was £11.519m. The expenditure analysed by portfolio was: 

 

Portfolio Revised 

Budget 

 

£000s 

Actual 

 

 

£000s 

Slippage 

into 

2020/21 

£000s 

Variance 

 

 

£000s 

Corporate Resources  22,512 9,219 (12,423) (870) 

Growth & Investment - 19 - 19 

Environment & Public Realm 3,224 982 (2,886) 644 

Communities & Homes 1,789 1,299 (475) (15) 

 27,525 11,519 (15,784) (222) 

 

In total, £3.380m of the reported slippage relates to budgets approved for the decant, demolition, and design 

fees for the redevelopment of the Biart Place and Rounds Gardens sites. A further £8.495m relates to 

HRA/Housing Acquisition Fund property developments which are planned for completion in 2019/20. Some of 

the main reasons for the remaining budget slippage of £3.909m were: 

• Slippage relating to the Purchase of Vehicles scheme (£1.959m) to reflect delays in delivery of refuse 

freighters and vans (expected summer 2020); 

• Slippage relating to Rainsbrook Crematorium (car park development) and Cemetery (groundworks) 

projects (£0.406m);  

• Slippage relating to Whinfield Recreation Ground Play Area, Rokeby Play Area and Whinfield 

Recreation Ground Bandstand (£0.301m) following consultation delays during the General Election 

purdah period; and 

• Slippage relating to Housing Management System scheme (£0.331m) to 2020/21 to reflect profiling of 

implementation of new modules. 

The graphs on the following page show how the money was spent and how it was financed. 

 

Capital Receipts and Capital Grants 

At 31 March 2020, the Council also held £9.646m of capital receipts (HRA: £7.582m General Fund: £2.064m) 

and £0.889m capital grants and contributions that had not yet been applied for financing expenditure. In 

2019/20, £2.009m of receipts (net of pooling payments) were raised from the sale of 25 HRA properties under 

Right-to-Buy. Further information on capital financing can be found in Note 21. 
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Computer
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projects

(£0.019m)

£'000 Capital Expenditure 2019/20

Including: 132 bathroom upgrades, 

531 boiler upgrades and door 

replacement/security upgrades to 

Including 38 S106 and open 

market purchases

Deonstruction costs and design fees 

(Biart Place) and decant costs and 

survey fees (Rounds Gardens)

Including safety improvements to play areas, 

replacement street furniture and S106 

contributions to community facilites at Long 

Lawford and Cawston

Capital Reserves (£2.6m)

22%

Sums set aside from 

revenue (£5.5m)

48%

Borrowing (£0.3m)

3%

Grants and Contributions 

(£1.5m)

13%

Capital Receipts (£1.6m)

14%

Capital Financing 2019/20
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Pension Fund 

The Accounts show that the Pension Fund now has a deficit of £42.787m. This is a reduction in the deficit of 

£7.905m since last year.   The is due to the sensitivity of key assumptions used by the actuary to measure the 

scheme liabilities.   Any changes in market conditions at the reporting date can have a significant effect on 

the value of the liabilities. 

 

Statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that our financial position in respect to pensions remains 

healthy.  The deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme will be made good over 17 years by increased 

contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary. 

   

Current Borrowing and Capital Resources 

All of the borrowing disclosed in the balance sheet relates to the financing of capital expenditure incurred in 

2019/20, earlier years, and for future years. The total currently stands at £155.701m (both short and long-term 

borrowing) as shown on the balance sheet.  

 

8. Future Financial Outlook and Financial Resilience 

The 2020/21 budget 

The 2020/21 General Fund revenue budget was approved on 25 February 2020 and totalled £17.435m.   

The Council successfully delivered a balanced budget which included difficult key decisions to close the initial 

budget gap reported in October 2019 of £0.762m. This budget was set before the Coronavirus pandemic so 

there was no reference to the likely impact on the medium term finances, however the significant challenge  

of the pandemic will have an impact on our ability to deliver all the proposals  that were approved 

 

The section below sets out the significant income and expenditure items included in the 2020/21 budget: 

• (£0.570m) Income proposals which includes the impact of increased fees and charges alongside 

stretched income targets to reflect the anticipated growth in the local economy and commitment to 

cost recovery of services. 

• (£0.150m) saving Prepayment of Pension Liability through the Actuary for the period 2020/21 to 2022/23  

• (£0.140m) representing year 2 of the key decision to introduce a Housing Acquisition Fund to allow the 

Council to acquire or build housing asset for temporary accommodation which will reduce the 

financial pressure for temporary accommodation. This is expected to continue with the delivery of 

further savings in future years totalling £0.157m by 2022/23.. 

• £1.726m transferred into the business rates equalisation reserve to help mitigate the anticipated 

reduction in funding from business rates reset and fair funding in future years.  

• £0.500m set aside from existing reserves to create a Climate Emergency Reserve 

• £0.440m set aside for revenue contributions for Capital Outlay (RCCO) 

• £0.200m To incentivise growth and footfall in the town centre, create a business start up fund which 

enhances the existing Business Support Programme and will award grants to support new independent 

retailers to have a presence in the town centre. The aim of this fund is to encourage start up and 

artisan retailers to choose Rugby town centre as a destination choice for business.   

• £0.150m to enhance the Town Centre, to be met from the additional business rate income the Council 

is budgeting to receive in 2020/21 from the Elliott's Field Retail Park (Phase 1) and Junction 1 Retail Park. 

However, £0.100m has been used to continue the offer of free town centre parking for evenings and 

weekends. 
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We have seen continued growth during 2019/20 in retained business rates income and with £6.318m currently 

estimated to be  retained in 2020/21, which is at a similar level to funding budgeted in 2019/20.  

For New Homes Bonus there is no change to the existing thresholds set at 0.4% of growth, which for Rugby 

means that the Council does not receive NHB funding for the first 172 homes delivered each year.  Funding 

from this scheme is £2.382m in 2020/21, an increase of £0.241m compared to 2019/20. 

After taking all the previous adjustments in to account, in addition to other corporate adjustments, the 2020/21 

budget was balanced with Council approving a £5 increase in the Band D equivalent council tax, which is in 

line with the maximum permitted as published in the final settlement .    

However, despite successfully producing a balanced budget for 2020/21, the medium term financial plan 

identifies budget shortfalls over the forthcoming years in anticipation of financial reform by central 

Government in 2021.  

The following sections set out some more context on the future financial landscape, the potential scale of 

challenges we face and our strategy to address this. 
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Medium Term Financial Plan 

The 2020-24 Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) presented to Council at council tax determination on 25 

February 2020 is illustrated in the table below 

      Full Reset 

  2020/21   2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

BASE BUDGET bf including Corporate Adj. £000s   £000s £000s £000s 

  16,506   17,435 13,467 13,819 

            

Growth Requirements 1,139   542 551 710 

Other Corporate Adjustments 303   (193) 28 (212) 

Savings and Income (1,007)   (345) 23 - 

Key Decisions and Budget Resolution 247   (255) 0 - 

Savings to be Found -   (1,711) (538) (743) 

Emergency Climate Reserve - New 500   (500) - -  

Movement in Reserves (253)   (1,506) 288 50 

Revised Budget Requirement 17,435   13,467 13,819 13,624 

            

Financed by;           

Government Funding (2,638)   (1,310) (968) (299) 

Council Tax (8,479)   (8,778) (9,183) (9,607) 

Business Rates including Damping (6,318)   (3,379) (3,668) (3,718) 

Collection Fund Surplus/Deficit BRR 734   - - - 

Transfer from BRR reserve (734)   - - - 

Total Funding Requirement (17,435)   (13,467) (13,819) (13,624) 

Net Variance 0   0 0 0 

 

This showed a balanced budget for 2020/21, but an estimated deficit of £1.711m in 2021/22 which reflects the 

estimated impact of the business rates reset, assumed growth and no further NHB rewards.  

In addition, there is an assumption there will be no change to the Settlement Funding Assessment and the 

100% baseline reset will be re-evaluated based on the level of business rates in 2019/20.   Whilst it is assumed 

any growth achieved after this date will be retained, this amount continues to be a budgeted contribution 

to reserves.      

In particular, the plan assumes a total of £1.964m from additional business rates growth for 2019/20 rising to 

£2.481m in 2020/21 which will be excluded from the net budget requirement.  This will taper the net budget 

reductions caused by the reset and go some way to help prevent a cliff-edge drop in the estimated net 

budget at 2021/22.    

However, it needs to be noted that there will be a delay in the delivery of the Fair Funding review because of 

the Coronavirus Pandemic and at this point little is known about any anticipated changes to the 

implementation of the Business rates reset or continuation of the New Homes Bonus Grant. 

The following table shows how the funding for Business Rates would be allocated over the medium term, with 

a proportion of business rates included in the base budget and remaining growth contributed to reserves. 
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Detailed Business Rates funding – 100% Baseline Reset  
2020/21  2021/22  2022/23  2023/24  

£m  £m  £m  £m  

  Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA)  (2.418)  (2.349)  (2.372)  (2.396)  

  Sustainable baseline Business rates growth above the 

Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA)    funding level  
(0.500)  (0.569)  (0.546)  (0.522)  

  Business rates growth above the sustainable baseline   (3.200)  (0.461)  (0.750)  (0.800)  

  Business rates pooling dividend  (0.200)  -  -  -  

Total Retained Income  (6.318)  (3.379  (3.668)  (3.718)  

 

The table above shows that;   

   

• SFA income across the MTFP is assumed to remain relatively flat, at an average £2.384m.  The Fair 

Funding Review will be focussing on this area of funding for all authorities which presents a risk to the 

Council if the assessment of needs is reduced.     

 

• Following the 100% baseline reset it is assumed that there will be a significant reduction in the 

proportion of growth that the authority retains.  With total forecast growth dropping from £3.700m in 

2020/21 to £1.030m in 2021/22 and an overall business rates funding level to assume a baseline of 

£2.918m for future years.   

 

• The Council continues to contribute to the BRER with business rates growth above the sustainable 

baseline.  

 

Addressing the budget gaps 

Whilst we cannot predict the outcome of both the fair funding and business rates baseline review, we are 

preparing for a significant reduction in business rates funding moving forward. The Medium Term Plan since 

2018/19 has enabled officers and members to be fully informed of future risks to funding with Officers 

formulating budgetary plans to address all potential scenarios.  

In addition, the MTFS sets out a suite of financial policies to provide a framework that will guide our financial 

planning and decision making throughout the life of the strategy. 

 

 

9. Reserves Balances and Future Strategy 

 

The Council’s reserves strategy is predicated on ensuring that financial resources are available for the Rugby 

of today, in addition to the Rugby of tomorrow.  The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan is based on the 

level of funding assumptions as shown in section 5 on page 20 and as can be seen the projections follow 

more closely a positive than a negative outcome scenario.  It has been critical to manage the impact for as 

long as possible of the financial uncertainty to minimise impact on service delivery and ultimately our 

residents. 

It would not be prudent, to be unprepared for a negative outcome scenario at a time of such uncertainty as 

detailed earlier in this document, alongside the risks identified following Coronavirus plus  Central Government 
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policy to deal with the recovery from the pandemic which is expected to be included in the next 

Comprehensive Spending Review. 

Furthermore as Rugby has been  growing at such a pace, it is inevitable that at some point in the future, our 

services are likely to see a stepped change in cost when the current management and overheads are no 

longer able to stretch to meet demand. 

It is right that we keep our reserves under scrutiny to ensure that we are neither building up too much but also 

identify where there is there could be challenges to maintain balances and that the strategy and risk 

assessment are in line. 

It is generally accepted that Local Authorities’ general fund balances should be between 3 and 5% of their 

net budget requirement in order to allow for unexpected, urgent or critical events which could not be funded 

any other way. We have adopted a risk-based approach to assessing whether this target is appropriate for 

our circumstances and have refreshed this during the preparation of the accounts. 

Prior to the expected financial impact of Coronavirus, our plans showed that over the medium term we 

were achieving levels of reserves and a general fund balance which meet the risks we have identified in 

the financial planning environment. The contributions which we have made to reserves in the past,  have 

allowed us to establish a level of reserves which allow us to: 

• continue to ensure that discretionary services we charge for do not make a profit over time 

• recognise the risks of service needs increasing in response to demographic growth or wider 

economic pressures 

• recognise the potential loss of funding from forthcoming changes 

• allow for emergency situations and legal challenges which the Council may face 

• fund the currently assumed one off impact of the Coronavirus pandemic and help boost the 

economic recovery 

 

We will continue to look at opportunities to use the budget stability reserve to invest in new ways of working 

to deliver ongoing value for money. In addition, by holding cash the Council will benefit in terms of reduced 

running costs by being able to: 

• avoid borrowing costs 

• invest monies held and gain a return 

• meet costs itself which would otherwise need to be insured against 

• meet ongoing liabilities earlier thus reducing payments over time 

• invest in energy efficiency schemes 

 

Total General Fund Earmarked Reserves 

At 31 March 2020 the Council had total earmarked General Fund reserves of £9.753m, an increase of £1.809m 

from 2019/20.  The table below identifies the potential expected shortfall if all risks identified crystallise, this 

includes Coronavirus costs as well as other potential risks 
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Budget Stability Reserve 

 

There are various items within the Council’s budget that are subject to significant degrees of volatility or 

variation from one year to another, often due to factors that are outside the Council’s control or influence; 

this reserve assists the mitigation of such volatility by allowing the Council to call upon it in years where budget 

overspends occur and conversely replenish it in years where favourable variances arise. In 2019/20 £0.350m 

was contributed to the reserve of which £0.256m was budgeted for in February 2019 the remaining balance 

included surplus planning income above target, taking the balance to £2.495m at 31 March 2020.  

 

Business Rates Equalisation Reserve 

 

This reserve was established to mitigate fluctuations in the business rates base and resultant income.  In 

2019/20 we budgeted to make a net contribution of £1.838m to this reserve and were able to top this up 

further at year end by £0.634m. As part of the year end risk assessment, £0.541m has then been transferred to 

this reserve from General Fund balances.  

 

Carry Forward Reserve 

This was introduced to hold the balances of underspent General Fund revenue budgets that will be 

requested for approval from Members to be carried forward into the new financial year.  This allows the 

earmarking of these funds to be spent in the forthcoming financial year and aids the smoothing of volatility 

in General Fund balances.  In 2019/20, £0.331m has been added to this reserve and the amount brought 

forward and used in 2019/20 from 2018/19 was £0.125m. 

 

 

8,837
8,051

1,298

(1,042)

(3,157)

(10,000)

(8,000)

(6,000)

(4,000)

(2,000)

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Graph to show potential impact of reserve risk assessment

Possible Drawdown Top Up Closing Level

Appendix A



 

 
 

42 

 

Housing Revenue Account – Biart Place and Rounds Gardens 

Prior to 2019/20 the Council considered a number of reports concerning the need to repair or regenerate our 

two high-rise sites in the borough 

• Biart Place (comprising two blocks with a total of 124 flats) 

• Rounds Gardens (comprising three blocks with a total of 189 flats). 

Surveys had identified a potential risk to the structure of the buildings in a shock event (fire or explosion), as 

well as potential issues of fire resistance between individual flats. Weighing up the costs of refurbishment versus 

the cost of new development Council agreed to the decant of the blocks and to begin design preparations 

for new schemes. All tenants at Biart Place were successfully rehoused by 31 December 2018. A programme 

of rehousing the tenants at Rounds Gardens has commenced with a timeline to be completed by March 

2022. As at April 2020 135 flats had been vacated.  

In respect of Biart Place, the total estimated cost of a new development scheme is in the region of £25m, 

which includes costs over and above construction, for example decant and design costs.   For Rounds 

Gardens the estimated cost of a new development to replace the existing 221 high-rise and low-level homes 

is £28m. 

A capital programme of this scale will place pressure on the HRA’s financial resources. At the end of 2019/20 

£14.765m is available in HRA Capital Investment Balances, of which £5.647m is already allocated to the 

decant, deconstruction and design phases of the redevelopment schemes. 

Assuming a staggered phasing of the build over a couple of years and that the scheme is financed using a 

mix of borrowing and contributions from Capital Investment Balances, it is estimated that the HRA Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR - or underlying need to borrow) will rise to c.£120m in 2023/24. This total includes 

other acquisition or new build schemes previously approved by Council. 

Nonetheless the redevelopment schemes significantly constrain our ability to acquire further new homes to 

increase our housing stock to alleviate pressure from the housing waiting list and homelessness issues 

addressed earlier. Resources available for legislative changes arising from the review of Decent Homes 

standards consulted upon in the Housing Green Paper 2018 are also at risk. 

Once the final costing estimates for the new development schemes have been advanced and refined it will 

be necessary for consideration to be given to a detailed financing strategy for each scheme, alongside 

further anticipated demands on HRA financial resources. It should be noted that work is in progress in respect 

of seeking financial support from Government and other agencies including Homes England and the West 

Midlands Combined Authority. However, the magnitude and likelihood of any support is uncertain.  

 

 

Financial Resilience Conclusion 

A balanced draft General Fund revenue budget has been presented for 2020/21. However, due to the 

current challenging financial environment further savings still need to be identified in order to deliver a 

balanced budget across the medium term.  As well as the medium term impact of Coronavirus, the high level 

of uncertainty around retained business rates and the reset of the system presents a considerable risk to our 

finances from 2021/22 onwards. 

 

For the HRA, the regeneration of both Biart Place and Rounds Gardens sites will fundamentally impact on the 

scale of the resources available across the medium to long term. 
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10. Coronavirus Pandemic 

 
Although the Coronavirus pandemic will have an impact on the medium term financial plan, due to the 

timing of the outbreak the financial impact on 2019/20 was limited to a cost of £0.004m 

 

The outbreak has required the Council to adapt quickly to ensure the continuation of vital services that both 

residents and local businesses rely upon. The Council’s Senior Management Team initiated an emergency 

response structure consisting of strategic and tactical teams before the Local Resilience Forum declared an 

emergency.  This significant challenge has resulted in different ways of working, communication, innovation, 

and overall resilience. Some examples of this include; 

 

Foodbank 

The Council agreed to take over the temporary running of the foodbank and has; 

- Worked with local supermarkets, businesses, community organisations and individuals to receive over 

25,900 kg of donations of food, drinks and toiletries  

- Given out over 10,500 kg of donations (503 food parcels) to local residents in need, including 

delivering 95 of those food parcels to residents who are unable to leave their homes 

- Worked with the Shielding Hub and Rugby St Cross to re-distribute 704 kg of donations to where they 

are most needed most 

 

Shielding Hub  

The Shielding Hub has been established to support those defined by Government as most medically 

vulnerable to the effects of Coronavirus and who have actively registered as being in need of support to 

secure food deliveries. The food deliveries made to local vulnerable residents via the hub is intended as a 

short-term response to the immediate issue of securing food.  

 

Refuse Collection Services  

The Council has been able to maintain its Refuse Collection Services. This has been through the following of 

national guidelines and the continued cooperation, hard work and resilience of staff. 

 

Community Advice and Support Team  

The Community Advice and Support Team have seen a dramatic increase in the number of clients that have 

had to be provided with temporary accommodation in a very short period. The Government requested that 

all rough sleepers should be provided with accommodation, and accommodation has been provided for all 

those who were accommodated by the Winter Night Shelter, our own Cold Weather Support Project or those 

who were still rough sleeping and had refused previous offers of accommodation. In addition to the provision 

of accommodation, they have also been provided with meals to encourage them to remain in the 

accommodation provided. 

 

Housing 

The Council has contacted all of our Independent Living Tenants and replaced home visits with telephone 

calls, gathering essential data to ensure that the most vulnerable tenants needs are being met and making 

appropriate referrals for support where necessary. 

 

Homelessness and Public Health Strategic Cell  

The Head of Communities and Homes has been leading Rugby’s response with regards to people that are 

homeless and are at high-risk population for Coronavirus. The Group has also been responding to particular 

challenges within communal housing settings where there is potential for explosive spread of Coronavirus. 
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The true extent of the financial impact of the pandemic is still to be fully established, but the key implications 

include; 

 

• the significant reduction of fees and charges as a result of the majority of our chargeable services 

ceasing during the period of lockdown and with an expected phased return to “normal” 

• additional costs including; 

o supporting our homeless residents to have appropriate accommodation in order to shield 

during period of lockdown 

o providing key workers with sufficient personal protective equipment to deliver vital services to 

our residents 

• a reduction in the collection rates for both business rates, which could impact on both 2020/21 and 

future years 

• a reduction in the collection rates for council tax 

 

The pandemic has had a major impact on Rugby as a borough  

 

• Universal Credit claimants increased from 1,535 in March 2020 to 2,730 in April 2020. 

• Of the 4000 jobs in the tourism sector in Rugby, there has been a reduction of approximately 1,500. 

• 26% of total employment has been affected (12,500 jobs) 

• Across the west midlands – 70% of small employers have furloughed their staff & 1/3rd are / may be 

made redundant. 

• Economic forecast – sharp fall & slow recovery of at least two years 

• Rugby borough is ranked 13th out of 383 local authorities most negatively affected by the pandemic 

(GVA reduction) 

 

As mentioned in section 8 the 2020/21 budget was produced and approved before the outbreak of the virus 

in the UK which means that there is no reference to the financial impact. 

 

Although Central Government has provided emergency funding of £1.121m it is expected that a significant 

contribution from Corporate reserves will be required to fund the significant costs expected as a result of the 

pandemic 

 

The reserve risk assessment (section 9) includes all potential Coronavirus costs as well as other risks facing the 

authority, if all materialise then the authority will exhaust all reserve balances by March 2023 – The authorities 

strategy to maintain general fund balances, budget stability reserve and also to transfer any business rates 

growth above the baseline to mitigate against the cliff edge drop in funding as part of the reset has been 

beneficial in being able to support the one off costs of the pandemic. With these reserves now projected to 

be used, the challenge for the authority will be to plan ahead for other potential funding risks. 

 

To aid the Council’s response, the Corporate Strategy 2017-2020 has been extended for a further year and 

will migrate into a recovery strategy. The organisation is producing a recovery plan which will identify the 

steps required. This will include medium term financial planning as part of the 2021/22 budget setting process. 

 

 

Joint Emergency Planning Officer (JEPO) will be focussing on the Council's recovery following the 

Coronavirus pandemic 
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11. Financial Statements 

 
The Accounts set out our income and expenditure for the year and our financial position at 31 March 2020. It 

is comprised of core and supplementary statements, together with disclosure notes. The format and content 

of the financial statements is prescribed by the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2019/20 which in turn is underpinned by International Financial Reporting Standards; A 

Glossary of key terms can be found at the end of this publication. 

 

The Primary Financial Statements 

 

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) records all of our income and expenditure for 

the year, in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices (GAAP). The top half of the 

statement provides an analysis by portfolio, in-line with our organisational structure. The bottom half of the 

statement deals with corporate transactions and funding. Expenditure represents a combination of: 

• services and activities that we are required to carry out by law (statutory duties) such as street cleaning 

and planning; and, 

• discretionary expenditure focussed on local priorities and needs, such as leisure and culture. 

 

A Movement in Reserves Statement is a summary of the changes to our reserves over the course of the year. 

Reserves are divided into “useable”, which can be invested in capital projects or service improvements, and 

“unusable” which must be set aside for specific purposes. 

 

The Balance Sheet statement is a “snapshot” of our assets, liabilities, cash balances and reserves at the year-

end date.  

 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the reason for changes in our cash balances during the year and whether 

that change is due to operating activities, new investment, or financing activities (such as repayment of 

borrowing and other long-term liabilities). 

 

 

Notes to support the primary statements  

 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA) 

The note shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (Government grants, rents, 

council tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or earned 

by councils in accordance with GAAP.  It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making 

purposes between our portfolios.  Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted 

accounting practices is presented more fully in the CIES. 

This note is positioned ahead of the primary financial statements, to help explain the transition between those 

amounts presented within the Narrative Statement for the purpose of reporting to members and 

management and those amounts contained within the primary financial statements that have been 

prepared in accordance with GAAP. 

 

 

Additional Notes 

The other notes are presented after the core statements and provide more detail about the Council’s 

accounting policies and individual transactions. 
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Supplementary Statements 

 

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue account for local 

authority housing provision. It includes the debit and credit items required to be taken into account in 

determining the surplus or deficit on the HRA for the year. The HRA is incorporated into the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement 

 

The Collection Fund Statement includes transactions relating to council tax and business rates income.  Rugby 

Borough Council is responsible for collecting local taxes on behalf of Warwickshire County Council, Office of 

the Police and Crime Commissioner for Warwickshire, Parish Councils and the Borough Council itself, these 

are all accounted for within the Collection Fund. 

 

The Annual Governance Statement  

The Annual Governance Statement sets out the governance structure of the Council and its key internal 

controls. 

 

 

12. Further Information 
 

If you would like to receive further information about the Accounts, please contact the Financial Services 

Team. 

Email: contact.centre@rugby.gov.uk 

Telephone: (01788) 533533 

Address: Town Hall, Evreux Way, Rugby, CV21 2RR. 
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES 

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 

The Council's Responsibilities 

The Council is required: 

• to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of 

its officers has the responsibility of those affairs.  In Rugby Borough Council, this is the Financial Services 

Manager and Interim Chief Financial Officer;  

• to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its 

assets; and 

• to approve the Statement of Accounts. 

Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities 

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the authority’s Statement of Accounts in 

accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).  

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has: 

• selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 

• made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; 

• complied with the Code of Practice; 

• kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and 

• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

Chief Financial Officer’s certificate 

I certify that this Statement of Accounts has been prepared in accordance with proper practices and 

presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council at 31 March 2020 and its expenditure and 

income for the year then ended. 

 

 

 

Jon Illingworth 

Interim Chief Financial Officer 

 

Date 29 June 2020 

 

Approval of Statement of Accounts 

In accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, I certify that the Statement of Accounts was 

approved by the Audit and Ethics Committee. 

 

 

 

Paul Dudfield 

Chairman of the Audit and Ethics Committee 

 

Date XX XX 2020 
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EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS NOTE 
 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources 

(Government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those 

resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.  

It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Council’s portfolios.  

Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more 

fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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 £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 

Growth and Investment 2,952 (885) 2,066 1,049 3,115 

Environment and  

Public Realm 
7,893 (2,054) 5,839 1,797 7,637 

Communities and 

Homes General Fund 
2,009 (227) 1,782 1,166 2,948 

Communities and 

Homes HRA 
(3,767) (5,279) (9,047) 9,382 336 

Corporate Resources 1,012 (142) 870 970 1,840 

Executive Directors 

Office 
1,965 (82) 1,884 131 2,015 

Net Cost of Services 12,064 (8,669) 3,395 14,495 17,890 

Other Income and 

Expenditure 
(12,113) 8,301 (3,812) (9,769) (13,581) 

(Surplus) or Deficit (50) (368) (417) 4,727 4,309 

      

Opening General Fund 

and HRA Balance 

  
(32,316)   

Plus (Surplus) or Less 

Deficit on General Fund 

and HRA Balance in 

Year 

 

 

 

(417)   

Closing General Fund 

and HRA Balance at 31 

March 

  

(32,733)   
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 £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 

Growth and Investment 3,429 (1,199) 2,230 1,000 3,230 

Environment and  

Public Realm 
6,639 (2,098) 4,541 2,259 6,800 

Communities and 

Homes General Fund 
1,783 (358) 1,425 978 2,403 

Communities and 

Homes HRA 
(4,944) (4,383) (9,327) 7,692 (1,635) 

Corporate Resources 1,361 (256) 1,105 187 1,292 

Executive Directors 

Office 
1,768 (59) 1,709 98 1,807 

Net Cost of Services 10,036 (8,353) 1,683 12,214 13,897 

Other Income and 

Expenditure 
(9,229) 5,387 (3,842) (10,024) (13,866) 

(Surplus) or Deficit 807 (2,966) (2,159) 2,190 31 

      

Opening General Fund 

and HRA Balance 

  
(30,157)   

Plus (Surplus) or Less 

Deficit on General Fund 

and HRA Balance in 

Year 

  

(2,159)   

Closing General Fund 

and HRA Balance at 31 

March 

  

(32,316)   
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Amounts Reported to Management 

These net figures include the amounts reported to Cabinet in the 2019/20 Finance and Performance year-

end report on 1 June 2020.  There were some minor changes to the general fund which results in a general 

fund balance of £2.250m. The overall surplus of £0.417m represents the following overall changes: 

 

 Opening 

Balance 

at 31 

March 

2019 

 

£000s 

Management  

Outturn 

 

 

 

 

£000s 

Post 

Outturn 

Adjustment 

 

 

 

 

£000s 

Transfers to 

and from 

reserves 

 

 

 

£000s 

(Surplus) or 

Deficit 

 

 

 

 

£000s 

Closing 

Balance 

at 31 

March 

2020 

 

£000s 

General Fund (2,253) 538 6 (541) 3 (2,250) 

Other General Fund 

Earmarked Reserves 

(7,942) - - (1,810) (1,810) (9,753) 

Housing Revenue 

Account 

(5,086) - - - - (5,086) 

Other HRA 

Earmarked Reserves 

(17,034) - - 1,390 1,390 (15,644) 

TOTAL (32,315) 544 6 (961) (417) (32,733) 

 

 

Management Accounting Adjustments 

A  total £0.368m of management accounting adjustments are the items which are reported to management 

but do not impact on the usable reserves they are largely Pensions and Capital adjustments.  

 

Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund and HRA Balances 

This represents the aggregate increase in the General Fund balance and HRA revenue balances plus 

earmarked reserves.  This increase is also presented in the Movements in Reserves Statement. 

 

Adjustments Between the Funding and Accounting Basis 

These accounting adjustments are required to move between accounts produced on a funding basis and 

those in-line with GAAP.  Further details are provided in Note 12. 

 

Net Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

This final column aggregates ‘Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund and HRA Balances’ and 

‘Adjustments Between the Funding and Accounting Basis’.  These amounts are presented in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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THE PRIMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation or rents. Authorities raise 

taxation and rents to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the 

accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the 

Movement in Reserves Statement. 

31 March 2019  

  

31 March 2020 

Exp 

£000s 

Inc 

£000s 

Net 

£000s 

Exp 

£000s 

Inc 

£000s 

Net 

£000s 

5,639 (2,409) 3,230 Growth and Investment 5,829 (2,714) 3,115 

11,912 (5,112) 6,800 Environment and Public Realm 13,201 (5,536) 7,665 

19,672 (17,269) 2,403 
Communities and Homes - General 

Fund 
18,555 (15,607) 2,948 

15,454 (17,089) (1,635) Communities and Homes - HRA 16,731 (16,395) 336 

1,811 (519) 1,292 Corporate Resources 2,806 (966) 1,840 

1,977 (169) 1,808 Executive Directors Office 2,408 (394) 2,015 

56,465 (42,567) 13,898 Cost of Services 59,530 (41,611) 17,919 

1,302  (130)  1,172 
Other Operating Expenditure (Note 

14) 
  1,118 

3,304  (1,079)  2,225 
Financing and Investment Income 

and Expenditure (Note 15) 
  2,524 

  (17,264)  (17,264) 
Taxation and Non-specific Grant 

Income (Note 16) 
  (17,251) 

61,071 (61,040) 31 
Subtotal Income and Expenditure 

(Note 11) 
  4,309 

    31 
Surplus (-) / Deficit on Provision of 

Services 
    4,309 

    (3,202) 

(Surplus) / Deficit on revaluation of 

property, plant and equipment assets 

(Note 22) 

    (9,376) 

    7,116 
Remeasurement of the net defined 

benefit liability/ (asset) (note 36) 
    (12,144) 

    3,914 
Other Comprehensive Income (-) and 

Expenditure 
    (21,520) 

    3,945 
Total Comprehensive Income (-) and 

Expenditure 
    (17,211) 
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Movement in Reserves Statement 
 

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into 

‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other 

‘unusable reserves’. Usable reserves are those reserves that may be used to provide services subject to 

statutory limitations on their use. The second category of reserves cannot be used to provide services, such 

as reserves that hold unrecognised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve) or Pension 

Reserves. 

The statement shows how the movements in year of the Council’s reserves are broken down between gains 

and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory 

adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax or rents for the year.  The Net 

Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance 

movements in the year following the adjustments. The reasons for the movements are explained in the 

Narrative statement and in notes 12 and 13. 
 

2019/20 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F
u

n
d

 (
G

F
) 

B
a

la
n

c
e

 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

(H
R

A
) 

B
a

la
n

c
e

 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
R

e
c

e
ip

ts
 R

e
se

rv
e

 

M
a

jo
r 

R
e

p
a

ir
s 

R
e

se
rv

e
 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
G

ra
n

ts
 U

n
a

p
p

lie
d

 

To
ta

l 
U

sa
b

le
 R

e
se

rv
e

s 

To
ta

l 
U

n
u

sa
b

le
 R

e
se

rv
e

s 

To
ta

l 
C

o
u

n
c

il 
R

e
se

rv
e

s 

 

 

 

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s  

Balance at 31 

March 2018 
(10,197) (22,119) (8,941) (2,544) (793) (44,594) (126,613) (171,207)  

Movement in reserves during 2019/20  

Total 

Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

3,057 1,252 - - - 4,309 (21,517) (17,208)  

Adjustments 

between 

accounting basis 

and funding basis 

under regulations 

(4,864) 138 (705) 355 (86) (5,163) 5,172 9  

(Increase) or 

Decrease in 

2019/20 

(1,807) 1,390 (705) 355 (86) (854) (16,345) (17,199)  

Balance at 31 

March 2019 carried 

forward 

(12,004) (20,729) (9,646) (2,189) (879) (45,448) (142,958) (188,406)  
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In comparison in the prior year the Movements in Reserves were as follows: 

2018/19  
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£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 

Balance at 31 

March 2018 
(8,441) (21,716) (8,803) (1,579) (989) (41,528) (133,624) (175,152) 

Movement in reserves during 2018/19 

Total 

Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

875 (844) - - - 31 3,914 3,945 

Adjustments 

between 

accounting basis 

and funding basis 

under regulations 

(2,631) 441 (138) (965) 196 (3,097) 3,097 - 

(Increase) or 

Decrease in 

2018/19 

(1,756) (403) (138) (965) 196 (3,065) 7,011 3,945 

Balance at 31 

March 2019 carried 

forward 

(10,197) (22,119) (8,941) (2,544) (793) (44,594) (126,613) (171,207) 
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Balance Sheet 
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by 

the Council. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the 

Council.  

31 March 

2019 

£000s 

Balance Sheet Notes 

31 March 

2020 

£000s 

234,967 Property, Plant and Equipment 18 243,429 

21,934 Heritage Assets 24 21.347 

723 Investment Property 19 740 

391 Intangible Assets   352 

16,977 Long Term Investments 38 30,580 

52 Long Term Advances 26 49 

130 Long Term Debtors 27 120 

275,174 Long Term Assets   296,618 

51,970 Short Term Investments 38 86,163 

3,107 Assets Held for Sale 20 2,988 

196 Inventories   171 

7,174 Short Term Debtors 27 7,772 

1,032 Cash and Cash Equivalents 29 / 38 17,502 

63,479 Current Assets   114,596 

(29,548) Short Term Borrowings 38 (59,209) 

(12,859) Short Term Creditors 28 (14,385) 

(1,303) Short Term Provisions 41 (913) 

(43,710) Current Liabilities   (74,507) 

(3,968) Long Term Provisions 41 (4,473) 

(64,509) Long Term Borrowing 38 (96,492) 

(50,692) Pension Liability Account 36 (42,787) 

(4,567) 
Capital / Revenue Grants Receipts in 

 Advance 
17 (4,540) 

(123,736) Long Term Liabilities   (148,292) 

171,207 Net Assets   188,415 

(44,594) Usable reserves MiRS (45,457) 

(126,613) Unusable reserves MiRS (142,958) 

(171,207) Total Reserves   (188,415) 

 

Signed Jon Illingworth Date 29 June 2020 
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Cash Flow Statement 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting 

period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying 

cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating 

activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation 

and grant income or from the recipients of the services provided by the Council.  Investing activities represent 

the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the 

Council’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on 

future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council. 

31 March 

2019 

£000s 

 Notes 

31 March 

2020 

£000s 

(31) Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services  (4,309) 

14,563 
Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of services for 

noncash movements 
 12,689 

330 
Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services that are investment and financing activities 
 (4,814) 

14,862 Net Cash flows from Operating Activities 29 3,566 

(28,314) Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 30 (52,647) 

(3,239) Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 31 65,550 

(16,690) Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  16,469 

17,723 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 28 1,033 

1,033 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 28 17,502 

 
There are two methods of preparing the Cash Flow Statement, with the Code having different disclosure 

requirements depending on which is used: 

  

• the direct method – the statement is prepared using cash records as source documents  

• the indirect method – the statement is prepared using the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

and cash flows are derived by adjusting for non-cash items, removing the effects of accruals and 

extracting transactions relating to investing or financing activities.  

 

The Council has adopted the indirect method which is required for Whole of Government Accounts purposes 

and therefore it is recommended that authorities use this approach to avoid having to prepare the statement 

twice. 
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTING STATEMENTS 
 

Note 1. Basis for Preparation 

The notes to the financial statements on the following pages are in order of significance, primarily based on 

aiding an understanding of the key drivers of the financial position of the Council, whilst maintaining the 

grouping of notes between the income and expenditure statement and the balance sheet where 

appropriate. The notes relating to specific financial statement lines include the corresponding accounting 

policy. As a result, there is not a separate principal accounting policies note. However, Note 2 details general 

accounting policies where there are not any accompanying notes. 

Details of the order of the notes can be found in the index. 

 

Note 2. General Accounting Policies (where there is no accompanying note) 

General 

 

The Statement of Accounts (the Accounts) summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2019/20 financial 

year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2020. The Council is required to prepare annual Accounts 

by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which require the Accounts to be prepared in accordance with 

proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 (the Code), supported by International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS).  

The accounting convention adopted in the Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation 

of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 

 

 

Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

 

The Council's revenue and capital activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, by including sums 

due to or from the Council in the year, not simply when cash payments are made or received.   

Where material income and expenditure amounts have been recognised but cash has not been received or 

paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.  Where debts may not 

be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might 

not be collected (bad debts). 

This concept is not applied to electricity and gas supplies and other routine on-going business expenses. 

However, the Accounts do reflect twelve months' supply in each year and this does not have a material 

effect on the Accounts. 
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Fair Value Measurement 

The Council measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Fair 

value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability at the measurement 

date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 

place either: 

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The Council uses external Valuers to provide a valuation of its assets and liabilities in line with the highest and 

best use definition within the accounting standard. The highest and best use of the asset or liability being 

valued is considered from the perspective of a market participant. 

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of the Council’s fair value measurement of its assets and liabilities 

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows: 

• Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 

Council can access at the measurement date. 

• Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly. 

• Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

 

Intangible Assets 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance are identifiable and controlled by 

the Council is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from 

the intangible asset to the Council. Normal examples are those of software or software licences, which have 

a value, but over a life of 3 –10 years and are therefore written down over that useful life. 

 

Joint Operations 

Joint operations are arrangements where the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights 

to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement.  The activities undertaken by the 

Council in conjunction with other joint operators involve the use of the assets and resources of those joint 

operators.  In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Council as a joint operator recognises: 

• Its assets, including any held jointly 

• Its liabilities, including any share of any liabilities incurred jointly 

• Its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation 

• Its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly 

• The Council has a 50% interest in the Rainsbrook Crematorium Joint Committee with the other 50% 

relating to Daventry District Council. The decision making and operational arrangements of the Joint 

Committee fulfil the features associated with a jointly controlled operation in that: 

• Each operator incurs its own expenses and liabilities and raises its own finance, which represent its own 

obligations; and 

• The joint operation agreement provides a means by which the revenue from the service and any 

expenses incurred in common are shared among the operators. 

Therefore, in line with the contractual arrangements set out in the joint agreement, the Council recognises its 

share of the operational assets and liabilities of the Joint Committee on its Balance Sheet and also debits and 

credits the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with 50% of the expenditure and income of 
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the Joint Committee. This is also recognised in the Movement in Reserves Statement and the Cash Flow 

Statement as appropriate.  Further detail on this Joint Operation is also provided in Note 36 Related Party 

Transactions. 

 

Overheads and Support Services 

The cost of overheads and support services are charged to the Council’s Portfolios in accordance with the 

Council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance. 

 

Inventories and Long-term Contracts 

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  

Long-term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services with the value of works and services received under the contract during the financial year. 

 

Value Added Tax (VAT) 

VAT is included in service revenue or capital income and expenditure accounts only when it is not 

recoverable. 

 

Note 3. Accounting Standards that have been Issued but have not yet been Adopted 

The Code requires the disclosure of information relating to the expected impact of an accounting change 

that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted.  

At the balance sheet date, the following new standards and amendments to existing standards have been 

published, but not yet adopted by the Code: 

 

IFRS 16 – Leases 

As a direct result of the Coronavirus pandemic, the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases has been deferred by a year 

and will now become effective from 1 April 2021. The standard removes the distinction between operating 

and finance leases for lessee accounting. Aside from those with a term of less than 12 months, and those for 

items of low value, all leases will be accounted for by recognising an asset for the right to use the relevant 

property, plant or equipment and a liability to pay for that right. 

 

It is not anticipated to have a significant impact on the general fund balance, as the default financing 

treatment for both operating and finance leases is currently to charge rentals to revenue in the year that they 

become due. 

 

This is the recommended approach in the Government’s statutory guidance applicable for IFRS 16. 

However, there should be a greater focus on value for money as more leases will need to have their rentals 

disaggregated to show the cost of the property rights acquired and the interest rate implicit in the 

arrangement. 

 

Even though there are transitionary concessions, some work will be needed to update the leases register and 

to calculate newly recognised lease assets and liabilities. 
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 IAS 19 Employee Benefits  

This will require the remeasurement of net pension liability following plan amendments, curtailments or 

settlements to be used to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the year after 

the change to the plan. The updating of these assumptions only applies to changes from 1 April 2020 and, 

since this could result in positive, negative or no movement in the net pension liability, no prediction can be 

made of the possible accounting impact. 

 

 

Note 4. Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
 

There is a high degree of uncertainty about future funding for Local Government. However, the Council has 

determined that this uncertainty is not sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Council might 

be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision. 

 

 

Note 5. Assumptions made about the Future and other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

 

The Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Council about the 

future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current 

trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual 

results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. 

The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2020 for which there is a significant risk of material 

adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 

 

Item Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from 

Assumptions 

Property Plant 

and 

Equipment 

The outbreak of Coronavirus was declared as a 

global pandemic on 11 March 2020 and has 

impacted on global financial markets. As a 

result of this all in year valuations conducted by 

the Council’s valuers have been reported on 

the basis of material uncertainty. The Material 

Valuation Uncertainty Forum has been set up by 

the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors 

(RICS) to consider the unique events relating to 

the pandemic and its impact on valuations, 

with a focus on financial reporting and 

measures for the accurate consistent reporting 

of material uncertainty. This forum has not given 

a date as to when it might be possible to review 

valuations, but in the valuer’s opinion the 

earliest a meaningful review could be 

conducted would be December 2020. 

Valuations will be kept under review in line with 

the guidance provided by the RICS Forum.  
 
 

 

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment 

and Investment Properties will be subject to 

review, so there may be changes to the 

values in the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 

2021. 
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Item Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from 

Assumptions 

Events after 

the reporting 

date 

At 31 March 2020 the additional costs and the 

loss of income associated with the Coronavirus 

pandemic were minimal at £0.004m At this 

stage it is assumed that in 2020/21 these costs 

will be funded from a combination of central 

government funding and reserve balances 

If the financial impact rises and central 

government funding does not increase in 

line with this the council may need to 

accelerate the use of held reserves to 

support cash flow and mitigate against the 

pressures faced 

Provision for 

Business Rate 

Appeals 

The possible refund from a business rate appeal 

can vary depending on factors such as; the 

type of appeal and type of property, together 

with its geographical location and the 

probability of appeal success.  

Following a comprehensive assessment of 

the outstanding business rates appeals at 

31 March 2020, a total provision of £13.465m 

was made for potential future appeal 

refunds.   Rugby Borough Council's 40% 

share of this provision is £5.386m.  The effect 

of a change in the provision is as follows: 

 

25% higher/lower:  £1.35m 

50% higher/lower:  £2.69m 

 

Pensions 

Liability 

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions 

depends on a number of complex judgements 

relating to the discount rate used, the rate at 

which salaries are expected to increase, 

change in retirement ages, mortality rates and 

expected returns on pension fund assets. 

Warwickshire County Council utilise consulting 

actuaries to provide all Warwickshire authorities 

with expert advice about the assumptions to be 

applied. 

 

During 2019/20 the updating of assumptions by 

the Council's actuaries has led to a reduction in 

the net pension liability of £7.905m. The net 

liability includes an estimate of the potential 

impact of the Court of Appeal judgement 

regarding the McCloud and GMP cases which 

relate to age discrimination within the Judicial & 

Fire Pension schemes respectively. The Council’s 

actuaries have reviewed the Guaranteed 

Minimum Pension (GMP) Equalisation ruling but 

have determined that no adjustments are 

required for this. Further details on the net 

pension liability are given in Note 36 -Pension 

Costs 

The effect on the pension net liability of 

changes in individual assumptions can be 

measured. For instance, a 0.5% increase in 

the discount rate would result in a 

decrease in the pension liability of 

£12.954m. However, the assumptions 

interact in complex ways and actuaries 

model thousands of possible outcomes in 

order to establish what the world might 

look like over the long term. 

 

A sensitivity analysis upon other variables 

affecting the net liability is set out in Note 

36 Pension Costs. 

As per our accounting policy, other estimation techniques are used for the purposes of producing the 

Accounts.  
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Note 6.  Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 
 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error. 

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years 

affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change 

provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions 

on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied 

retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the 

prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.   

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 

balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.  

 

Note 7. Officers Remuneration 
 

The remuneration of the Council’s senior employees is as follows: 

Post Holder  Salary, 

Fees & 

Allowances 

 

£ 

Expenses 

Allowances 

 

 

£ 

Compensation 

for Loss of 

Office 

 

£ 

Pension 

Contributions 

 

 

£ 

Total 

 

 

 

£ 

Notes 

Executive 

Director  

2019/20 99,300 20 - 19,070 118,390  

2018/19 97,350 1,490 - 18,690 117,530  

Head of 

Communities 

& Homes 

2019/20 71,980 - - 13,820 85,800  

2018/19 70,570 - - 13,550 84,120  

Head of 

Corporate 

Resources 

2019/20 71,980 - - 13,820 85,800  

2018/19 70,570 - - 13,550 84,120  

Head of 

Environment 

& Public 

Realm  

 

2019/20 71,980 - - 13,820 85,800  

2018/19 69,920 - - 13,420 83,340  

Head of 

Growth & 

Investment  

2019/20 69,350 - - 13,320 82,670  

2018/19 32,710 - - 6,280 38,990 1 

Senior Officers served for the whole of 2019/20 and 2018/19 unless as stated: 

1. The Head of Growth & Investment (B) was appointed to the post on the 1 October 2018. 

 

The number of other Council’s employees receiving more than £0.050m remuneration for the year (excluding 

employer’s pension contributions) is shown in the table below. 
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Remuneration Band 

 

2018/19 

Number of employees 

2019/20 

Number of employees 

£50,000 - £54,999 - 1 

£55,000 - £59,999 1 - 

£60,000 - £64,999 - 1 

£65,000 - £69,999 - - 

£70,000 - £74,999 - - 

£75,000 - £79,999 - - 

£80,000 - £84,999 1 - 

£85,000 - £89,999 - - 

 

Exit Packages 

Exit packages are amounts payable because of the Council’s decision to terminate an officer’s employment 

before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy. These are 

charged on an accruals basis to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement when the Council is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an officer 

or group of officers or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.   

Rugby Borough Council terminated the contracts of 8 employees in 2019/20, incurring liabilities of £0.097m 

(£0.102m in 2018/19).  The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory 

and other redundancies are set out in the table following: 

 

Exit package cost 

bands (including 

special payments) 

Number of 

compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of 

agreed other 

departures 

Total number of 

exit packages by 

cost band 

Total cost of exit 

packages in each cost 

band 

2
0

1
8

/1
9

 

2
0
1
9
/2

0
 

2
0
1
8
/1

9
 

2
0
1
9
/2

0
 

2
0
1
8
/1

9
 

2
0
1
9
/2

0
 

2
0
1
8
/1

9
 (£

) 

2
0
1
9
/2

0
 (£

) 

£0 - £20,000 - - 4 7 4 7 30,900 73,240 

£20,001 - £40,000 - - 1 1 1 1 27,510 24,070 

£40,001 - £60,000 1 - - - 1 - 43,870 - 

£60,001 - £80,000 - - - - - - - - 

£80,001 - £100,000 - - - - - - - - 

Total 1 - 5 8 6 8 102,280 97,310 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note 8.  Members’ Allowances 
 

The total costs of members’ allowances paid in the year were as follows: 
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2018/19 

£000s 

 2019/20 

£000s 

345 Allowances 353 

6 Employers’ National Insurance 6 

12 Expenses 8 

363 Total 367 

 

 

Note 9.  Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

 

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2019/20 

Adjustments from General Fund to 

arrive at the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement 

amounts 

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes 

Net change for 

the Pensions 

Adjustments 

Other 

Differences 
Total 

Adjustments 

(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3) 

  £000s £000s £000s £000s 

Growth and Investment 704 345 - 1,049 

Environment and Public Realm 911 886 - 1,797 

Communities and Homes General 

Fund 
675 491 - 1,166 

Communities and Homes HRA 8,933 450 - 9,382 

Corporate Resources 283 687 - 970 

Executive Directors Office - - 131 131 

Net Cost of Services 11,506 2,859 131 14,496 

Other income and expenditure 

from the Expenditure and Funding 

Analysis 

(11,495) 1,249 476 (9,770) 

Difference between General Fund 

surplus or deficit and 

Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement Surplus or 

Deficit on the Provision of Services 

11 4,108 606 4,726 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2018/19 
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Adjustments from General Fund to 

arrive at the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement amounts 

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes 

(Note 1) 

Net change 

for the 

Pensions 

Adjustments 

(Note 2) 

Other 

Differences 

(Note 3) 

Total 

Adjustments 

  £000s £000s £000s £000s 

Growth and Investment 751 249 - 1,000 

Environment and Public Realm 1,599 659 - 2,258 

Communities and Homes General 

Fund 
623 355 - 978 

Communities and Homes HRA 7,384 307 - 7,692 

Corporate Resources 51 138 (2) 187 

Executive Directors Office - 100 (2) 98 

Net Cost of Services 10,408 1,809 (3) 12,213 

Other income and expenditure from 

the Expenditure and Funding 

Analysis 

(10,414) 1,121 (731) (10,024) 

Difference between General Fund 

surplus or deficit and Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services 

(6) 2,930 (734) 2,189 

 

1) Adjustments for Capital Purposes 

Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation 

gains and losses in the services line, and for: 

• Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of 

assets and the amounts written off for those assets. 

• Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital financing 

(i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions) are deducted from other 

income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting 

practices. 

• Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are adjusted for income 

not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.  The Taxation and Non-Specific 

Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without 

conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year. 

 

2) Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments 

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS19 Employee Benefits pension 

related expenditure and income: 

• For services - represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the Council 

as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past services costs. 

• Financing and investment income and expenditure - the net interest on the defined benefit liability 

is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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3) Other Differences 

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute: 

• For services - an adjustment is made for the amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from 

remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements. 

• Financing and investment income and expenditure - adjustments are made for the movement in 

the fair value of the Council’s investment properties. 

• Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure - represents the difference between 

what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and business rates that was 

projected to be received at the start of the year and the income recognised under generally 

accepted accounting practices in the Code.  This is a timing difference as any difference will be 

brought forward in the Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund.  

 

Note 10.  Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 

 
The Council’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows: 

  
2018/19 2019/20 

£000s £000s 

Expenditure     

Employee benefits expenses 18,779 21,276 

Other service expenses 27,920 27,666 

Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 9,770 10,587 

Interest payments 2,183 2,520 

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability 1,121 1,249 

Precepts and levies 761 809 

Payments to housing capital receipts pool 493 493 

Loss on the disposal of assets 44 - 

Total expenditure 61,071 64,600 

Income     

Fees, charges and other service income (11,082) (11,727) 

HRA dwelling rents (15,540) (15,172) 

Interest and investment income (1,079) (1,246) 

Income from council tax, non-domestic rates (12,260) (12,898) 

Government grants and contributions (20,952) (19,064) 

Gain on disposal of assets (126) (184) 

Total income (61,040) (60,291) 

(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 31 4,309 

 

 

The figures have been restated following further changes in guidance which require service segments to be 

stated net of income which is generated by trading services internally. 

 

The key movements between years can be explained as follows: 
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• Depreciation, amortisation, impairment – the movement follows a full council housing stock valuation 

exercise in 2019/20  

• HRA Dwelling rents have been lower due to continuing statutory requirement to reduce rents by 1% 

annually during the period 2016/17 to 2019/20 and the partial decant of properties at the Rounds 

Gardens site 

 

Note 11.  Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations 
 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure 

recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to arrive at the 

resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future capital 

and revenue expenditure.  The following sets out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made 

against. 

 

General Fund Balance 

The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of the Council are required to be paid and 

out of which all liabilities of the Council are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide 

otherwise.  These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact on 

the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice.   

The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the resource that the Council is statutorily empowered to 

spend on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources that the Council is required to 

recover) at the end of the financial years.  The balance, however, is not available to be applied to funding 

HRA activities. 

 

Housing Revenue Account 

The Housing Revenue Account Balance reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue account for 

local authority council housing provision in accordance with part VI of the Local Government and Housing 

Act 1989.  It contains the balance of income and expenditure as defined by the 1989 Act that is available to 

fund future expenditure in connection with the Council’s landlord function or where in deficit is required to 

be recovered from tenants in future years. 

 

Major Repairs Reserve 

The Council is required to maintain the Major Repairs Reserve, which controls an element of the capital 

resources limited to being used on capital expenditure on HRA assets or the financing of historical capital 

expenditure by the HRA.  The balance shows the capital resources that have yet to be applied at the year-

end. 

 

Capital Receipts Reserve 

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are restricted 

by statue from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical 

capital expenditure.  The balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these 

purposes at the year-end. 

 

Capital Grants Unapplied 

The Capital Grants Unapplied Account holds the grants and contributions received towards capital projects 

for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of the monies but which 

have yet to be applied to meet the expenditure.  The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital 

expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which this can take place. 
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  £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 

Amounts involving the Capital Adjustment Account 

Depreciation of non-current assets (1,994) (3,200) - - - 

Revaluation movements and impairments on non-current assets, 

charged to the CIES 
60 (3,469) - - - 

Amortisation of intangible assets (647) (57) - - - 

Capital grants and contributions applied  1,284 237 - - - 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute  (1,280) - - - - 

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 

part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES 
(148) (2,444) - - - 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the CIES 

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment  1,560 - - - - 

Capital expenditure charged against revenue balances 487 5,148 - - - 

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account  

Interest credited to Section 106s 5 - - - (5) 

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the 

Capital Adjustment Account  
- - - - 3 

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve 

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain or (loss) 

on disposal / unattached receipts to the CIES 
252 2,524 (2,775) - - 

Use of the reserve to finance new capital expenditure  - - 1,578 - - 

Contribution from the reserve to finance payments to the 

Government capital receipts pool  
(493) - 493 - - 

Adjustments involving the Major Repairs Reserve 

Interest credited to reserve 31 - - (31) - 

Reversal of Major Repairs Allowance credited to the HRA - 2,075 - (2,075) - 

Use of the reserve to finance new capital expenditure - - - 2,460 - 

Adjustments involving the Pension Reserve  

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits (5,926) (1,111) - - - 

Employers pension contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in the year 
2,363 435 - - - 

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustments Account  

Amount by which council tax and business rates income credited 

to the CIES is different from income calculated in the year in 

accordance with statutory requirements  

(253) - - - - 

Adjustment primarily involving Accumulated Absences Account 

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CIES is 

different from that chargeable in the year in accordance with 

statutory requirements 

0 - - - - 

Adjustment primarily involving the Financial Instruments Reserve 

Reversal of items relating to financial instruments revaluation (276) - - - - 

Total Adjustments  (4,864) 138 (705) 355 (86) 
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  £'000s  £'000s  £'000s £'000s £'000s 

Amounts involving the Capital Adjustment Account 

Depreciation of non-current assets (2,412) (3,076) - - - 

Revaluation movements and impairments on non-current assets, 

charged to the CIES 
(184) (2,625) - - - 

Amortisation of intangible assets (149) (57) - - - 

Capital grants and contributions applied  1,697 180 - - - 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute  (1,268) - - - - 

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 

part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES 
(211) (1,807) - - - 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the CIES 

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment  1,704 - - - - 

Capital expenditure charged against revenue balances 170 4,149 - - - 

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account  

Interest credited to Section 106s 4 - - - (4) 

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the 

Capital Adjustment Account  
- - - - 200 

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve 

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain or (loss) 

on disposal / unattached receipts to the CIES 
167 1,933 (2,100) - - 

Use of the reserve to finance new capital expenditure  - - 1,469 - - 

Contribution from the reserve to finance payments to the 

Government capital receipts pool  
(493) - 493 - - 

Adjustments involving the Major Repairs Reserve 

Interest credited to reserve 23 - - (23) - 

Reversal of Major Repairs Allowance credited to the HRA - 2,287 - (2,287) - 

Use of the reserve to finance new capital expenditure - - - 1,346 - 

Adjustments involving the Pension Reserve  

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits (4,571) (961) - - - 

Employers pension contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in the year 
2,186 416 - - - 

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustments Account  

Amount by which council tax and business rates income credited 

to the CIES is different from income calculated in the year in 

accordance with statutory requirements  

591 - - - - 

Adjustment primarily involving Accumulated Absences Account 

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CIES is 

different from that chargeable in the year in accordance with 

statutory requirements 

1 1 - - - 

Adjustment primarily involving the Financial Instruments Reserve 

Reversal of items relating to financial instruments revaluation 114 - - - - 

Total Adjustments  (2,631) 441 (138) (965) 196 

 

 

Appendix A



 

 
 

69 

 

Note 12.  Movements in Earmarked Reserves  
 

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund and HRA balances in earmarked reserves to 

provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to 

meet General Fund and HRA expenditure in 2019/20. 

 
31 March 

2019 

Transfers 

Out 

Transfers  

In  

Transfers 

within 

31 March 

2020 

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 

Budget Stability Reserve (2,145) 99 (449) - (2,494) 

Business Rates Equalisation Reserve (1,716) 123 (2,597) 541 (3,646) 

Section 106 (Developer) Contributions - Revenue (1,153) 151 (149) - (1,152) 

Revenue Grants & Contributions from Third Parties (585) 332 (156) - (409) 

Welfare Support Reserve (500) 385 (324) - (439) 

Town Centre Improvement Reserve (325) - (2) - (327) 

Works Services Unit Operational Reserve (320) 320 - - 0 

Hall of Fame Licence Reserve (300) - - - (300) 

Carry forward Reserve (125) 125 (331) - (331) 

Other smaller reserves e.g. plant & equipment 

reserves 
(774) 208 (88) - (654) 

Total General Fund Earmarked Reserves  (7,944) 1,745 (4,096) 541 (9,754) 

Housing Repairs Account (1,021) 4,123 (3,769) - (668) 

Housing Revenue Account Capital Balances (15,854) 5,148 (4,059) - (14,765) 

Sheltered Accommodation (160) - (52) - (212) 

Total HRA Earmarked Reserves (17,034) 9,270  (7,880) - (15,644) 

TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES (24,978) 11,015 (11,976) 541 (25,398) 
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31 March 

2019 

Transfers 

Out 

Transfers  

In  

Transfers 

within 

31 March 

2020 

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 

Budget Stability Reserve (2,145) 99 (449) - (2,494) 

Business Rates Equalisation Reserve (1,716) 667 (2,597) - (3,646) 

Section 106 (Developer) Contributions - Revenue (1,153) 151 (149) - (1,152) 

Revenue Grants & Contributions from Third Parties (585) 332 (156) - (409) 

Welfare Support Reserve (500) 385 (324) - (439) 

Town Centre Improvement Reserve (325) - (2) - (327) 

Works Services Unit Operational Reserve (320) 320 - - 0 

Hall of Fame Licence Reserve (300) - - - (300) 

Carry forward Reserve (125) 125 (331) - (331) 

Other smaller reserves e.g. plant & equipment 

reserves 
(775) 208 (88) - (655) 

Total General Fund Earmarked Reserves  (7,944) 2,286 (4,096) - (9,754) 

Housing Repairs Account (1,021) 4,123 (3,769) - (668) 

Housing Revenue Account Capital Balances (15,854) 5,148 (4,059) - (14,765) 

Sheltered Accommodation (160) - - (52) (212) 

Total HRA Earmarked Reserves (17,034) 9,270  (7,829) (52) (15,644) 

TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES (24,978) 11,556  (11,924) (52) (25,398) 

 

Earmarked Reserves 

 

These accounts reflect the recommendations approved by Cabinet for reserve increases and transfers 

approved between the draft and final accounts. 

 

Budget Stability Reserve 

There are various items within the Council’s budget that are subject to significant degrees of volatility or 

variation from one year to another, often due to factors that are outside the Council’s control or influence; 

this reserve assists the mitigation of such volatility by allowing the Council to call upon it in years where budget 

overspends occur and conversely replenish it in years where favourable variances arise. In 2019/20 the 

balance of the reserve was increased by £0.349m of which £0.256m was a budgeted contribution with the 

remaining net £0.093m coming from net in year benefits from monitoring. 

 

Business Rates Equalisation Reserve 

This reserve is established to mitigate future fluctuations in the business rates base alongside the risks faced by 

the Council through the anticipated changes in business rates baseline and fair funding.  £1.838m was added 

to the reserve as planned during budget setting with a further £0.634m being added after the year end 

position was known.  The Council’s share of the Collection Fund deficit on collection of business rates for 

2019/20 was £0.714m, the balance on this reserve can be used to fund this deficit when it is charged to the 

General Fund in future years.  
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Section 106 Developer Contributions  

These represent amounts of money paid to the Council during development for specific projects and 

agreements with developers for the provision of additional facilities as and when land or schemes become 

available to provide those facilities. 

 

Revenue Grants and Contributions from 3rd Parties 

These are grant payments and contributions from 3rd parties where either the grant conditions have been 

met or no conditions exist.  The monies are held in this reserve until required to fund expenditure in future years. 

 

Welfare Support Reserve 

This reserve was created in 2018/19 as a result of reconsidering the specific risks arising from service provision 

in this area and a commitment to invest in IT. This will create a single point of resilience for pressures in this area 

which we anticipate and have included in the MTFP until we can implement the housing acquisition plans to 

reduce costs.  

 

During 2019/20 we utilised £xxx of the Homelessness Prevention Grant received in 2018/19 and if approved by 

members will use the balance of that grant, and the grant received in 2020/21 in order to reduce the 

overspend in this area. We have drawn in other balances relating to Housing Benefits previously in other 

reserves.  

 

Town Centre Improvement Fund 

This reserve will be used to support developments in the Town Centre intended to improve the experience of 

using that space for users, whether they be visitors, commuters, pedestrians or drivers. 

 

Works Services Unit Operational Reserve 

The primary purpose of this reserve is to mitigate any budget volatility from the Works Services Unit’s trading 

activities from one year to the next, with annual surplus and deficits being transferred to and from the reserve 

respectively.   

 

Hall of Fame Reserve 

The cost of the works to install the World Rugby Hall of Fame and reconfigure the entrance foyer and atrium 

was £1.200m.  The Council has a four-year licence for the operation of the Hall of Fame which will end in 

2020/21.  This capital outlay will be financed by four £0.300m Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) payments 

which began in 2017/18 resulting in a timing difference between the operational budgets and financing 

requirements. This reserve will be called upon to meet the final MRP instalment in 2021/22. 

 

Carry Forward Reserve 

This reserve holds the balances of underspent General Fund revenue budgets that will be requested for 

approval from members to be carried forward into the new financial year.  This allows the earmarking of these 

funds to be spent in the forthcoming financial year and aids the smoothing of volatility in General Fund 

balances. 

 

Other Smaller Reserves E.g. Plant and Equipment Reserves    

Plant and equipment reserves are typically set aside to either fund specific capital expenditure or for the 

maintenance of existing assets.  

 

Housing Repairs Account and HRA Capital Investment Balances 

Annually transfers are made from these reserves towards the cost of in year council house repairs and 

maintenance or capital projects.  In addition, transfers are made to these reserves from income generated 

within the Housing Revenue Account towards the cost of future repairs and maintenance or capital schemes. 
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Note 13.  Other Operating Expenditure 

 

2018/19 Other Operating Expenditure 2019/20 

£000s   £000s 

761 Parish Council Precepts 809 

493 Payments to the Government housing capital receipts pool 493 

(11) Other Income - Unattached Receipts (126) 

(71) (Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non-current assets (58) 

1,172 Total 1,118 

 

Note 14.  Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
 

2018/19 Financing and Investment income and Expenditure 2019/20 

£000s   £000s 

2,183 Interest payable and similar charges 2,520 

1,121 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability 1,249 

(915) Interest receivable and similar income (1,455) 

(50) 
Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and changes in their fair 

value 
(66) 

(114) (Gain) / Impairment of Financial Assets 276 

2,225 Total 2,524 

 

The loss on financial assets in 2019/20 related to the fair value of financial instruments (note 37) being the 

valuation movement on the Council’s property and diversified income funds in year.  

 

Note 15.  Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure 
 

2018/19 Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 2019/20 

£000s   £000s 

(7,470) Council Tax Income (7,996) 

(17,558) Retained business rates (17,962) 

12,768 Business rates tariff payments 13,060 

(4,117) Non ring-fenced Government grants (4,008) 

(887) Capital grants and contributions (316) 

(17,264) Total (17,222) 
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Note 16. Grant Income 
 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, Government grants and third-party contributions and 

donations are recognised as due to the Council and credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement when there is reasonable assurance that: 

• the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and 

• the grants or contributions will be received. 

 

Monies advanced as grants or contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the 

Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant 

service line or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement. 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 

reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  Where it has been applied 

to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.  Where the grant has yet to 

be applied, it is posted to the Capital Grant Unapplied reserve.  Amounts in the Capital Grant Unapplied 

reserve are subsequently transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been used to fund 

capital expenditure. 

 

2018/19 Total Grants Credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 2019/20 

£000s   £000s 

(153) Revenue Support Grant - 

(2,106) New Homes Bonus (2,141) 

(1,410) Business Rates Section 31 Grants (1,568) 

(449) Other Non-Specific Revenue Grants (299) 

(4,117) Revenue Grants (4,008) 

(312) Capital Grants Non-Conditional - 

- Capital Section 106 Funding Non-Conditional (59) 

(525) Capital Grants Conditional (240) 

(50) Capital Section 106 Funding Conditional (17) 

(887) Capital Grants (316) 

(5,004) Total (4,324) 

2018/19  
Grants included as income in the Net Cost of Services 

 2019/20  

 £000s   £000s  

  Credited to Services   

(14,193) Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) - Housing Benefits Subsidy (12,781) 

(318) DWP- Trailblazer Homelessness / MHCLG Preventing Homelessness (23) 

(226) MHCLG - Flexible Homelessness Support Grant (193) 

0  MHCLG - Rough Sleeping Initiative (70) 

0  Apprenticeship Levy - Conditional Grant Digital Account (53) 

(213) Section 106 Revenue Contributions for Grounds and Waste Services (277) 

(148) DWP - Discretionary Housing Allowance Subsidy (131) 
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(32) DWP - Additional Housing Benefit and Welfare grants (52) 

(56) The Cabinet Office - Individual Electoral Registration (53) 

(34) MHCLG- Custom Build and Brownfield Development Grant  (17) 

0  MHCLG - Neighbourhood Grant  (45) 

0  Coronavirus Emergency Support Grant (43) 

(199) Other Revenue Grants & Section 106 Funding (146) 

(15,419) Revenue Grants and Contributions (13,884) 

(713) MHCLG - Disabled Facilities Grant (632) 

(22) Section 106 and Other Capital Funding (54) 

(255) Section 106 and Other Conditional Funding (602) 

(990) Capital Grants and Contributions (1,288) 

      

(16,409) Total Grants Credited to Services (15,172) 

 

The Council has received the following grants and contributions that have yet to be recognised as income 

as there are conditions attached to them that require the monies to be returned to the awarding body if 

unspent on relevant expenditure. The balances at the year-end are as follows: 

 

2018/19 
  

2019/20 

£000s £000s 

(764) Revenue Section 106 Funding (625) 

(48) Amounts Held for Specific Reasons (48) 

(82) Other Revenue grants (Less than £25,000) (105) 

(894) Revenue Receipts Held in Advance (778) 

      

(3,669) Capital Section 106 funding (3,488) 

(4) Other Capital grants (275) 

(3,674) Capital Receipts Held in Advance (3,762) 

      

(4,567) Total Receipts Held in Advance (4,540) 

 

Note 17. Property Plant and Equipment 
 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for 

rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one 

financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

 

Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on 

an accruals basis provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential 

associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  
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Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or 

service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as a revenue expense when it is incurred. The 

Council has established a de-minimis level of £10,000.  Expenditure on assets under this level is not capitalised 

within the Accounts and the assets are fully depreciated within the year. 

 

Measurement 

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 

• the purchase price 

• any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner intended by management 

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does 

not have any commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Council). In the 

latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of 

the asset given up by the Council. 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

• infrastructure assets, community assets and assets under construction are carried at historic cost, net 

of depreciation where appropriate. 

• surplus assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and best use 

from a market participant’s perspective;  

• all other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing 

use (existing use value – EUV).  

 

Where there is no market based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, 

depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value.  This includes assets such as the 

Queen’s Diamond Jubilee Leisure Centre, Benn Hall and the John Barford Car Park. 

Where non-property assets have short useful lives and/or low values, such as vehicles and IT equipment, they 

are measured at depreciated historical cost as a proxy for fair value. 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued regularly to ensure that their carrying amount 

is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five years. Land and 

building assets under £10,000 are not revalued with the exception of investment properties. Increases in 

valuation are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains or may be 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to reverse a previous downward 

revaluation. 

 

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for: 

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation reserve, the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 

gains) 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount 

of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement. 

 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal 

implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment 

Account. 
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Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 

Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount 

of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is 

recognised for the shortfall. Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as per decreases 

in value noted previously. 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for 

depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 

 

Impairment Losses 

No impairment losses were recognised in year. 

One flat impaired this year.  

 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their 

depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable useful life 

(i.e. freehold land and Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under 

construction). 

Where depreciation is provided for, assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 

periods: 

• Dwellings and other buildings – 5-60 yrs.  

• Vehicles, plant and equipment – 3-25 yrs. 

• Infrastructure – 7-40 yrs. 

Depreciation is charged on council dwellings in the year of disposal. 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 

depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 

historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 

 

Componentisation 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is significant in relation 

to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. The Council has established a 

threshold of £0.500m for determining whether an asset needs to be componentised and an individual asset 

cost of more than 25% to determine whether an asset is considered as a component. 

The carrying amount of a replaced or restored part of an asset (component) is derecognised, with the 

carrying amount of the new component being recognised subject to the principles set out in Recognition 

and Measurement. This recognition and derecognition takes place regardless of whether the replaced part 

had been depreciated separately. 

 

Subsequent Expenditure on Property Plant and Equipment 

Subsequent costs incurred on an asset previously recognised as Property, Plant and Equipment will only be 

capitalised if they result in items with physical substance and meet the recognition principle that: 

• It is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to 

the Council; and 

• The cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
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Exceptions to the general approach of comparing the outcome of expenditure compared to previously 

assessed levels of performance: 

• Where subsequent expenditure will actually increase the level of performance of an asset in 

generating economic benefits or providing service potential but does not increase the level of 

performance previously assessed by the Council for that asset, then the assessment can be updated 

(through a revaluation adjustment) and the new expenditure capitalised 

• Where subsequent expenditure represents the replacement of a component of an existing asset 

provided that the old component can be written out of the Balance Sheet 

 

Disposals  

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet is 

written off to the Income and Expenditure Account as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from 

disposal are credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the 

time of disposal). Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 

Account. 

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts, whereas amounts 

below are classed as revenue income. A proportion of receipts relating to Right-to-Buy housing disposals are 

payable to the Government. The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts 

Reserve and can then only be used for new capital investment. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve 

from the General Fund or HRA Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

The writing-off of the remaining net book value of assets which are disposed of is not a charge against council 

tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  

Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the 

Movement in Reserves Statement. 

 

Valuations 

Council dwellings have been included on the basis of their valuation by an external professional valuer, Mr P 

Mawson (FRICS) of Godfrey Payton, as at 1 January  2020. All valuations (formal and desktop) are carried out 

on a maximum 5-year rolling programme basis in accordance with the Guidance on Stock Valuation for 

Resource Accounting (the Valuation Guidance).  

Other land and buildings owned by both the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account have also 

been valued on the basis of a four-year rolling programme by the Council’s contracted external valuer, Mr P 

Mawson (FRICS) of Godfrey-Payton, Chartered Surveyors. 

In April-July 2019 Mr Mawson valued a number of properties for 2019/20 totalling £4.6m giving a land and 

buildings split, an estimated useful life and assuming a residual value for depreciation purposes. A further 

programme of valuations will continue in 2020/21 to maintain the revised four-year rolling programme. 

Where the revaluations resulted in a lower value for assets than previously held, they were assessed for 

impairment.  This results in a charge being made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

where there are insufficient balances in the Revaluation Reserve. However, it should be noted that this does 

not impact on council tax as this charge is reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

In addition to land and buildings noted previously, Mr Mawson was also asked to review and confirm that the 

carrying value of all other land and buildings at the 31 March 2020 did not differ materially from the fair value 

of those assets at the end of the reporting period.   

The outbreak of Coronavirus was declared as a global pandemic on 11 March 2020 and has impacted on 

global financial markets. As a result of this all in year valuations conducted by the Council’s valuers have 

been reported on the basis of material uncertainty. The Material Valuation Uncertainty Forum has been set 
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up by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) to consider the unique events relating to the 

pandemic and its impact on valuations, with a focus on financial reporting and measures for the accurate 

consistent reporting of material uncertainty. This forum has not given a date as to when it might be possible 

to review valuations, but in the valuer’s opinion the earliest a meaningful review could be conducted would 

be December 2020. Valuations will be kept under review in line with the guidance provided by the RICS 

Forum. Each year guidance is sought from the Valuer in order to identify the appropriate bases for valuation; 

these are disclosed within the accounting policies in addition to the bases for depreciation calculations. 
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Cost or Valuation £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 

At 1 April 2019 197,073 32,843 13,651 6,461 909 2,653 2,286 255,876 

Additions 5,808 257 594 101 6 - 3,149 9,915 

Derecognition – disposals (1,502) (125) (1,045) - - - - (2,672) 

Derecognition - 

componentisation 
(848) - - - - - - (848) 

Reclassification 313 1 - - - - (366) (52) 

Revaluation increases / 

(decreases) recognised in the 

Revaluation Reserve 
9,397 (25) - - - 4 - 9,376 

Revaluation increases / 

(decreases) recognised in the 

Surplus / Deficit on the Provision 

of Services 

(6,744) (750) - - - 130 - (7,364) 

Other movements in cost or 

valuation 
- - - - - - - - 

At 31 March 2020 203,497 32,201 13,200 6,562 915 2,787 5,069 264,231 

Depreciation and impairments         

At 1 April 2019 (8,370) (1,164) (9,118) (2,210) (20) (27) - (20,909) 

Charge for 2019/20 (2,964) (592) (1,024) (323) - (4)  (4,907) 

Derecognition – disposals 39 - 1,021 - - -  1,060 

Reclassification - - - - - -  - 

Depreciation written out to the 

Surplus / Deficit on the Provision 

of Services due to revaluation 
2,822 660 - - - 10  3,492 
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Impairment losses / (reversals) 

recognised in the Surplus / Deficit 

on the Provision of Services 
463 - - - - - - 463 

At 31 March 2020 (8,010) (1,096) (9,121) (2,533) (20) (21) - (20,801) 

Balance Sheet at 31 March 2020 195,487 31,105 4,079 4,029 895 2,766 5,069 243,430 
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Cost or Valuation £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 

At 1 April 2018 193,092 32,805 12,829 6,147 866 5,275 673 251,687 

Additions 4,514 585 751 274 43 7 2,095 8,269 

Derecognition – disposals (1,189) (42) (157) - - - (158) (1,546) 

Derecognition - 

componentisation 
(530) - - - - - - (530) 

Reclassification 119 17 15 40 - (2,941) (324) (3,074) 

Revaluation increases / 

(decreases) recognised in the 

Revaluation Reserve 
2,860 6 213 - - - - 3,079 

Revaluation increases / 

(decreases) recognised in the 

Surplus / Deficit on the Provision 

of Services 

(1,845) (528) - - - - - (2,373) 

Other movements in cost or 

valuation 
52 - - - - 312 - 364 

At 31 March 2019 197,073 32,843 13,651 6,461 909 2,653 2,286 255,876 

Depreciation and impairments         

At 1 April 2018 (4,691) (925) (8,254) (1,914) (20) (17) - (15,821) 

Charge for 2019/20 (2,934) (583) (1,078) (296) - (10) - (4,901) 

Derecognition – disposals 33 - 144 - - - - 177 

Reclassification 2 - - - - - - 2 

Depreciation written out to the 

Surplus / Deficit on the Provision 

of Services due to revaluation 
2,727 344 70 - - - - 3,141 

Impairment losses / (reversals) 

recognised in the Surplus / Deficit 

on the Provision of Services 
(3,507) - - - - - - (3,507) 
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At 31 March 2019 (8,370) (1,164) (9,118) (2,210) (20) (27) - (20,909) 

Balance Sheet at 31 March 2019 188,703 31,679 4,533 4,251 889 2,626 2,286 234,967 

 

The statement shows the progress of the Council’s rolling programme for the revaluation of current assets. The 

Council’s housing stock was fully revalued as at 1 January 2020 by Godfrey Payton.  

 

Note 18.  Investment Properties 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The 

definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of 

goods or is held for sale. 

 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at 

which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s length. Properties are not 

depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on 

revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 

 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income 

line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses 

are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and 

losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and 
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 £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 

Valued at 

historical cost 
- 13 - - - 13 13,541 13,554 

Valued at 

current cost in: 
        

2019/20 195,487 1,248 2,766 740 - 200,241 - 200,241 

2018/19 - 4,586 - - 2,988 7,574 531 8,105 

2017/18 - 16,655 - - - 16,655 - 16,655 

2016/17 - 8,603 - - - 8,603 - 8,603 

Total 195,487 31,105 2,766 740 2,988 233,086 14,072 247,158 
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posted to the Capital Adjustments Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital 

Receipts Reserve. 

 

Fair Value Hierarchy 

All the Council’s investment properties have been value assessed as Level 2 on the fair value hierarchy for 

valuation purposes (see criteria in Note 2 General Accounting Policies) 

 

Valuation Techniques Used to Determine Level 2 Fair Values for Investment Property 

The fair value of investment property has been measured using a market approach, which takes into account 

quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, existing lease terms and rentals, research into market 

evidence including market rentals and yields, the covenant strength for existing tenants, and data and 

market knowledge gained in managing the Council’s Investment Asset portfolio. Market conditions are such 

that similar properties are actively purchased and sold and the level of observable inputs are significant, 

leading to the properties being categorised as level 2 on the fair value hierarchy. 

There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment properties. 

 

The following table shows the net movement in the fair value of investment properties during 2019/20.  

 2018/19 2019/20 

£000s £000s 

Balance at start of the year 723 723 

Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments - 17 

Balance of end the year 723 740 
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Note 19.  Assets Held for Sale 

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale 

transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is 

revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less 

costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other 

Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are 

recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of 

Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 

 

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-

current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale, 

adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been 

classified as held for sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision to sell. 

 

 2018/19 2019/20 

£000s £000s 

Balance outstanding at start of year 120 3,107 

Revaluation (losses)/gains - - 

Assets sold (120) (131) 

Additions - 12 

Reclassification  3,107 - 

Balance outstanding at year-end 3,107 2,988 
 

Note 20. Capital Expenditure and Financing 

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the next table, together with the 

resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by 

charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that 

has yet to be financed.  The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note. 

 

Government Grants and Contributions 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 

reversed out of the General Fund or HRA Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  Where it has been 

used to finance capital expenditure it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.  Where the grant has yet 

to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Amounts in 

the Capital Grant Unapplied reserve are subsequently transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once 

they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 

 

Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute  

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be funded from capital financing sources under statutory 

provisions but does not result in the creation of non-current assets for the Council is charged to the relevant 

service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. In the main this relates to 

expenditure on Disabled Facilities Grants and other Home Improvement Loans. Where the cost of this 

expenditure is met from existing capital resources a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the 
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General Fund or HRA Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account reverses out the amounts charged so that 

there is no impact on the level of council tax. 

 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or 

amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in 

its overall borrowing requirement, equal to either an amount calculated on a prudent basis or as determined 

by the Council in accordance with statutory guidance.  

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the 

contribution in the General Fund Balance (MRP or loans fund principal), by way of an adjusting transaction 

within the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between 

the two. This ensures that depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations have no overall 

effect on council tax or housing rent levels.  

The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2008, require 

local authorities to approve an MRP policy at the beginning of each financial year on setting aside a sum of 

money from revenue for the repayment of principal on outstanding debt.  

During 2015/16 the Council approved a policy such that, for capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008, 

the MRP is based on 2% straight-line method of the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement for the General 

Fund.  

 

During 2018/19 the Council approved a policy such that, for General Fund capital expenditure incurred after 

1 April 2008, the MRP is based upon the asset life – annuity method where the financing was provided by 

borrowing. Statutory Guidance on MRP issued with effect from 1 April 2018 prohibits the retrospective 

calculation of this charge and therefore the policy will only apply after this date based on the Capital 

Financing Requirement at the point the calculation method is changed.  

There is no equivalent requirement for the Housing Revenue Account but voluntary contributions may be 

made for debt repayment. 

 

Capital commitments 

There were capital commitments as at 31 March 2020 of £3.3m for heating and bathroom upgrade contracts 

and Biart Place demolition contract and £2.7m at 31 March 2019.  
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Capital Financing Requirement 

 

 2018/19 

£000s 

2019/20 

£000s 

Opening Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 84,733 83,830 

Capital Investment:   

Property, Plant, and Equipment and Assets Held for Sale 8,303 9,927 

Heritage Assets 2 - 

Intangible Assets 127 312 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 1,268 1,280 

Capital Investment Total 9,700 11,519 

   

Sources of Financing:   

Capital Receipts (1,231) (1,578) 

Government Grants & Other Contributions (1,770) (1,523) 

Sums Set Aside from Revenue (4,551) (5,508) 

Earmarked Reserves (1,346) (2,587) 

Minimum Revenue Provision / Voluntary Revenue Provision  (1,705) (1,561) 

Financing Total (10,603) (12,757) 

Closing Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 83,830 82,592 

Explanation of movements in year:   

Decrease in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by Government 

financial assistance) 
(903) (1,238) 

Increase / (decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement (903) (1,238) 

 

Note 21. Revaluation Reserve 

This reserve represents mainly the balance of the gains and losses arising on the periodic revaluation of current 

assets. 

2018/19 Total 

£000s 

 General Fund 

£000s 

HRA 

£000s 

2019/20 Total 

£000s 

(44,280) Balance as at 1April (29,010) (17,510) (46,520) 

(3,524) Upward revaluation of assets (53) (11,307) (11,360) 

375 

Downward revaluation of assets 

and impairment losses not 

charged to the Surplus / Deficit on 

the Provision of Services 

74 1,910 1,984 

(47,429) 

Surplus on revaluation of non-

current assets not posted to the 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 

of Services 

(29,989) (26,907) (55,896) 

670 

Difference between fair value 

depreciation and historical cost 

depreciation 

369 316 685 

239 
Accumulated gains on assets sold 

or scrapped 
- 246 246 

(46,520) Balance as at 31 March (28,620) (26,345) (54,965) 
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Note 22. Capital Adjustment Account 

 

This account represents the amounts set aside from revenue resources or capital receipts to finance 

expenditure on non-current assets or for the repayment of loans as well as other capital financing transactions 

as required by the Accounting Code of Practice. 

2018/19  2019/20 

£000s  £000s £000s 

(130,706) Balance at 31 March  (130,794) 

(52) Adjustment to opening balance  - 

(130,758) Restated Balance as at 1 April  (130,794) 

 

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited 

or credited to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement: 

  

2,412 
General Fund charges for depreciation of non-current 

assets 
1,994  

3,076 HRA charges for depreciation of non-current assets 3,200  

2,809 
Revaluation and impairment loss: Property, Plant and 

Equipment 
3,408  

205 Amortisation of intangible assets 704  

1,268 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 1,280  

2,018 

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or 

sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

2,592  

11,788   13,178 

(910) 
Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation 

Reserve 
 (931) 

(119,880) 
Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets 

consumed in the year 
 (118,547) 

 

 Capital financing applied in the year:   

(1,469) 
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new 

capital expenditure 
(1,578)  

(4,318) 
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 

& HRA balances 
(5,635)  

(1,346) 
Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure 
(2,460)  

(2,077) 

Capital grants & contributions credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

that have been applied to capital financing 

(1,523)  

(1,704) 

Statutory provision for the financing of capital 

investment charged against the General Fund and HRA 

balances 

(1,560)  

(10,914)   (12,756) 

- 

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties 

debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement 

 (17) 

(130,794) Balance at 31 March  (131,320) 
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Note 23. Heritage Assets 

 

Heritage assets are assets that are held by the Council principally for their contribution to knowledge and 

culture. They are a distinct class of asset which is reported separately from property, plant, and equipment. 

Previously the majority of these assets had been held as Community Assets with the exception of one or two 

which were held in Infrastructure Assets or Other Land and Buildings. The heritage assets held by the Council 

have been categorised as follows: 

• Art and Social History Collections 

• Monuments and Statues 

• Historic sites / buildings 

• Civic Regalia 

 

The Code requires councils to recognise heritage assets where the Council has information on the cost or 

value of the asset. However, the unique nature of many heritage assets makes reliable valuation complex. 

Where it is not practical to obtain a valuation for an asset (at a cost which is commensurate with the benefits 

to users of the financial statements) and cost information is available, the asset will be carried at historical 

cost (less any accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses) as permitted by the Code. 

Valuations may be made by any method that is appropriate and relevant to the heritage asset: this includes 

insurance valuations for museum collections, monuments and statues, historic sites, and civic regalia. It is not 

a requirement of the Code for valuations to be carried out or verified by external valuers. Although there is 

no prescribed minimum period between full valuations, the Council considers it appropriate to seek a full 

valuation every five years. 

Impairment reviews will only take place where there is physical deterioration or new doubts as to the 

authenticity of the heritage asset. Any impairment recognised will be treated in accordance with the 

Council’s policy on impairments. 

 

Reconciliation of the carrying value of Heritage assets held by the Council: 

 

 Intangibles 

 

 

£000s 

Art & Social 

History 

Collections 

£000s 

Monuments & 

Statues 

 

£000s 

Historic Sites 

/ Buildings 

 

£000s 

Civic 

Regalia 

 

£000s 

Total 

Assets 

 

£000s 

Cost or valuation       

1 April 2018 800 5,303 685 15,516 215 22,519 

Additions - 2 - - - 2 

Revaluations - - - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - - - 

Depreciation (305) -- - (282) - (587) 

31 March 2019 495 5,305 685 15,234 215 21,934 

       

Cost or valuation       

1 April 2019 495 5,305 685 15,234 215 21,934 

Additions - - - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - - - 

Depreciation (305) - - (282) - (587) 

31 March 20 190 5,305 685 14,952 215 21,347 
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Revaluations of Heritage Assets 

In accordance with the Council’s accounting policy on Heritage Assets, valuations may be made by any 

method that is appropriate and relevant to the heritage asset. The art and social history collections and the 

civic regalia were valued for insurance purposes by external and internal valuers in 2017/18. Historic sites, 

principally the Great Central Walk bridges, were assessed for insurance purposes by council engineers on the 

basis of re-instatement costs, leading to a revaluation of £15.754m in 2015/16. These assets had previously 

been reported in the balance sheet at historic cost. 

 

Additions and Disposals of Heritage Assets 

There were no additions or disposals in the year. 

 

Art Collections 

The Council’s collections of artwork is reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based on 

market values. The Rugby Art Collection was revalued by Michael Mays Consultancy in 2017/18. The 

collections include the following items: 

• The Rugby Art Collection – 20th century and contemporary British art 

• The Local Art Collection 

• Andrew Varah Furniture 

• Social History Collection – mainly donated artefacts 

• Redding Collection – glass plate negatives 

 

The Rugby Art Collection 

The Rugby Collection of 20th century and contemporary British art was established in 1946, and now holds 

more than 170 important paintings, drawings, prints and film works.  The collection includes work by Eduardo 

Paolozzi, Stanley Spencer, Walter Sickert, Barbara Hepworth, Bridget Riley and L.S. Lowry.  It is not on 

permanent display, but parts of it are shown every year in the Rugby Collection show, usually around March 

– June.  At other times, visitors and researchers can view individual works in store by appointment.  From time 

to time, pieces from the collection are loaned to other regional, national or international institutions. 

 

The Social History Collection 

Rugby Museum’s Social History Collection has been built up since 2000, almost entirely from artefacts donated 

by local people.  It reflects Rugby’s rich engineering heritage, as well as the social and domestic lives of the 

people of the borough.  It contains around 6,000 items, mostly of low value.  Part of the collection is on display 

in the Rugby Museum, the remainder is in store. 

 

The Redding Collection 

The Redding Collection of glass plate negatives came to Rugby Museum following the closure of a local 

photographic business.  It contains around 25,000 glass plate negatives, mostly from the 1950s and 1960s, 

many of them portraits and a significant number representing the immigrant communities in the borough.  

The collection is not on display as it is vulnerable; the content will be made accessible to the public following 

a digitisation programme. 
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Monuments and Statues 
 

• Echo sculpture (Caldecott Park) 

• Stone carved benches  

• Frank Whittle Arch 

• William Webb Ellis statue 

• Rupert Brooke statue 

 

Historic Sites / Buildings  

• Great Central Walk 

• Newbold Quarry 

• Regent Place / Jubilee Gardens (site of 

Rugby Motte and Bailey Castle) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Civic Regalia 
 

• Mayoral Badges of Office 

• Mayoral and Councillor Robes 

• Borough Mace / Various Silverware and 

Ceramic Items 

 

 

Intangibles 
 

This is for the purchase of the rights to the Rugby 

World Cup Collection used in the Hall of Fame 

exhibition which is exclusively licensed by the 

Council for 4 years. 
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Note 24.  Leases 
 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee.  All other 

leases are classified as operating leases.   

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and building elements are considered separately for 

classification.  Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset 

in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent 

on the use of specific assets.  This definition includes rental agreements, contract hire and licences. 

 

The Council as a Lessee 

Finance leases 

The Council has acquired the Land at Brownsover for use as a public park under a finance lease for 999 years.  

The asset is carried as a Community Asset in the Balance Sheet at a net value of £1 at 31 March 2020.  At 

inception, no upfront premium was payable and the minimum lease payment of “one peppercorn” has not 

been charged.   

Operating Leases 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

as a cost to the services benefiting from the use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are 

made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease. 

The Council holds a limited number of operating leases, mainly relating to the lease of photocopiers with an 

annual rental of £35,674 and also lease land at Hillmorton Road for the purpose of a public recreation ground 

with a rental of “one peppercorn” per annum. 

 

The Council also subleases Car Parking spaces on part of the Rugby Central Car Park (formally Clock Towers), 

income is received from the owners based upon the annual surplus shown in their accounts. Payments were 

received in 2018/19 of £21,041 and in 2019/20 £21,507. 

 

The Council as Lessor 

Finance leases 

The Council as lessor did not hold any finance leases in 2019/20. 

Operating leases 

The Council has leased out properties under operating leases for the provision of community services (such 

as sport facilities or community centres) or economic development purposes to provide local businesses with 

affordable accommodation. 

Future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 
 

 31 March 2019 

£000s 

31 March 2020 

£000s 

Not later than one year 90 87 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 141 300 

Later than 5 years 1,567 1,554 

 1,798 1,941 

The minimum lease payments receivable does not include rents that are contingent on events taking place 

after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews. In 2019/20 no contingent rents 

were receivable by the Council. 

 

Appendix A



 

90 

 

Note 25.  Long Term Advances – Loans Outstanding 

 
 Balance at 31 

March 2019 

£000s 

Advances 

 

£000s 

Amounts Repaid 

 

£000s 

Balance at 31 

March 2020 

£000s 

Loans for the Purchase and 

Improvement of Private 

Dwellings 

32 - - 29 

UK Municipal Bonds Agency 

(formerly Local Capital Finance 

Company) 

20 - - 20 

Total 52 - - 49 

 

 

Note 26.  Debtors (amounts due to the Council) 
 

Net 

1 April 

 2019 

 

£000s 

 Debt 

 

 

 

£000s 

Impairment 

Allowance 

 

 

£000s 

Net 

31 March 

2020 

 

£000s 

 Amounts due within one year    

372 Central Government bodies 1,059 - 1,059 

2,673 Other local authorities (Inc. Police) 2,395 - 2,395 

35 Homelessness 82 (71) 11 

804 Rent payers 1,208 (791) 417 

373 Council taxpayers 492 (40) 452 

42 Non-domestic rate payers 273 (89) 184 

1,064 Housing Benefit overpayments 2,069 (1,064) 1,005 

1,998 Other entities and individuals 2,355 (106) 2,249 

7,361  9,933 (2,161) 7,772 

 Amounts due in more than one year    

64 Employee vehicle loans 55 - 55 

66 Work in default 65 - 65 

130  120 - 120 

7,491 Total 10,053 (2,161) 7,892 

 

 

The debtors position is shown, as required by the Code, net of impairment allowances for bad and doubtful 

debt.  
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Note 27.  Creditors (amounts owed to others by the Council) 
 

31 March 

2019   

31 March 

2020 

£000s £000s 

(302) HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) (359) 

(6,338) Other central Government bodies (7,195) 

(4,369) Other local authorities (Inc. Police) (5,582) 

(258) Rent payers (297) 

(98) Council taxpayers (107) 

(1,681) Other entities and individuals (845) 

    (13,046) Total (14,385) 

 

The overall creditor balance has increased by £1.339m between 2018/19 and 2019/20.  The largest balances 

are for amounts owed to central Government bodies and other local authorities at the end of 2019/20, this is 

predominantly related to the year-end deficit on the collection of business rates as recorded in the Collection 

Fund.  

 

 

Note 28.  Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on 

notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in no more than one month 

from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk 

of change in value. 

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable 

on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 

 

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements: 

 

2018/19 

£000s 

 2019/20 

£000s 

(344) Cash held / (overdrawn) by the Council 17,502 

- Bank current accounts - 

1,376 Money Market Funds - 

1,032 Total 17,502 

 

These changes in the cash held are due to maintaining high liquidity levels as at 31 March 2020 to provide 

risk mitigation against uncertain cash flow requirements arising from the Coronavirus pandemic. 
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Note 29. Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities 

 
The cash flows for operating activities include the following items: 

 

31 March 2019 

£000s 

 31 March 2020 

£000s 

1,483 Interest received 844 

(2,115) Interest paid (2,040) 

- Dividends received - 

 

 

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following non-cash movements: 

31 March 2019 

£000s 

 31 March 2020 

£000s 

5,488 Depreciation 5,194 

2,651 Impairment and downward valuations 3,408 

206 Amortisation 704 

- Increase/(decrease) in impairment for bad debts - 

657 Increase/(decrease) in creditors (2,982) 

(181) (increase)/decrease in debtors (866) 

4 (increase)/decrease in inventories 25 

2,930 Movement in pension liability 4,239 

2,018 Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current assets held for 

sale, sold or recognised 

2,592 

790 Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services 

375 

14,563  12,689 

 

 

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following items that are investing 

and financing activities: 

31 March 2019 

£000s 

 31 March 2020 

£000s 

3,969 Proceeds from short-term (not considered to be cash equivalents) and 

long-term investments (includes investments in associates, joint ventures 

and subsidiaries) 

- 

(2,099) Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets 

(2,768) 

(1,540) Any other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing 

cash flows 

(2,046) 

330  (4,814) 
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Note 30. Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities 
 

31 March 2019 

£000s 
 

31 March 2020 

£000s 

(8,626) 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and 

intangible assets 
(9,767) 

(103,257) Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (175,797) 

- Other payments for investing activities (120) 

2,092 
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant, and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets 
2,778 

78,498 Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 128,614 

2,979 Other receipts from investing activities 1,645 

(28,314) Net cash flows from investing activities (52,647) 

 

 

Note 31. Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities and Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from 

Financing Activities 
 

31 March 2019 

£000s 

 31 March 2020 

£000s 

41,000 Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing 171,579 

149 Other receipts from financing activities 6 

(46,600) Repayments of short and long-term borrowing (110,100) 

2,212 Other payments for financing activities 4,065 

(3,239) Net cash flows from financing activities 65,550 

 

 

 

 Long Term 

Borrowings 

£000s 

Short Term 

Borrowings 

£000s 

Total 

 

£000s 

1 April 2019 (64,509) (29,548) (94,057) 

Cash-flows    

- Repayment    

- Proceeds (61,479)   

Non cash:    

- Acquisition - - - 

- Fair Value - - - 

- Reclassification    

31 March 2020 (96,488) (59,213) (155,701) 
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Note 32. Trading Operations 
 

Rugby Borough Council has a number of services that operate in a commercial environment and the Service 

Manager is required to balance their budget by generating income. Details of those units with a significant 

turnover in 2019/20 are as follows: 

2018/19 

(Surplus) / Deficit 
Service Expenditure Income 

2019/20 

(Surplus) / Deficit 

£000s  £000s £000s £000s 

(178) Trade waste 1,169 (1,004) 165  

(237) Car parking 314 (461) (147) 

(415) Total 1,483 (1,465) 18 
 

 

Trading Operations are incorporated into the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, including 

some integral parts of the Council's services to the public (e.g. Refuse Collection and Street Cleansing). The 

expenditure of these operations is allocated or recharged to the relevant service headings within Cost of 

Services.   

 

In order to satisfy the requirements of competition law, recharges for internal work done by the trading 

operation following competition with the private sector have been priced to include a cost of capital 

recovery. The Code does not permit charges for cost of capital to be debited to trading accounts, so that 

the recharges that have been made result in a surplus for the accounts. As a result, the accounts for trade 

refuse collection show a deficits of £0.165m that would be increased to £0.205m if cost of capital charges 

had been made, and those for car parking show a surplus of £0.147m that would be reduced to £0.054m 

 

Note 33. External Audit Costs 
 

In 2019/20 Rugby Borough Council incurred the following fees relating to external audit and inspection: 
 

 2018/19 

£000s 

2019/20 

£000s 

Fees payable to the appointed auditor, Grant Thornton, regarding 

external audit services 
42 42 

Fees payable to the appointed auditor, Grant Thornton, for the 

certification of grant claims and returns 
- 10 

Additional fees payable to the appointed auditor, Grant Thornton, for 

the certification of grant claims and returns in relation to previous years  
7 10 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Refund – redistribution of surplus 

arising from the transitional arrangements 
- (5) 

Fees payable in respect of other services provided by, Grant Thornton, 

during the year 
- 8 

Total 49 65 
 

Fees payable to for the certification of grant claims and returns relate to the certification of the Housing 

Benefit Subsidy return. 

Fees payable in respect of other services relate to the certification of the Housing Capital Receipts grant 

claim. 
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Note 34. Related Party Transactions and Joint Operations 
 

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, bodies or individuals that have 

the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure 

of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been constrained 

in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to 

bargain freely with the Council. 

 

Central Government 

Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Council – it is responsible for 

providing the statutory framework, within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in 

the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties 

(e.g. council tax bills, housing benefits). Grants received from Government departments are set out in Notes 

16 and 17. 

 

Council Members and Chief Officers 

Based on existing key data sources, no material related party transactions have been identified amongst 

either the members or chief officers. Declarations are made under section 81 of the Local Government Act 

2000 and the Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) (England) Order 2001. The following sources make 

up the Council’s core elements for managing the risk of Fraud, Bribery and Corruption and are: 

• The Register of Members’ Interests – maintained in accordance with the Local Authorities (Members’ 

Interests) Regulations 1992 (Statutory Instrument 1992/618); 

• Disclosure of direct or indirect pecuniary interests - as defined by the Council’s Code of Conduct for 

Councillors; and 

• The Staff Register of Interests – maintained in accordance with the Council’s Constitution and Anti-

Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Strategy. 

 

Senior council officers remuneration paid during 2019/20 is set out in Note 7; Members allowances are stated 

in Note 8. 

In 2019/20 , six members of the Borough Council were also Warwickshire County Councillors (Cllr Peter Butlin; 

Cllr Heather Timms; Cllr Jill Simpson-Vince; Cllr Jerry Roodhouse; Cllr Maggie O’Rourke and Cllr Howard 

Roberts). 

In addition to their normal involvement on various council committees, most members and some senior 

officers and staff also act as the Council’s representative on a wide range of outside and voluntary bodies – 

some such representation follows from their committee memberships.  

A list of representatives relevant to 2019/20 was approved at the Annual Meeting of the Council on 16 May 

2019.  

Where members declared an interest in an organisation: 

• £16,800 was paid in voluntary grants to those related organisations 

• £39,250 was paid for other services to those related organisations 

All payments were made with proper consideration of declarations of interest. The relevant members did not 

take part in any discussion or decision relating to the payments. 

 

A full list of all members of the Borough Council and their various interests of this type can be made 

available upon request at the Town Hall, Rugby.  

Appendix A



 

96 

 

Other Public Bodies (subject to control by Central Government) 

 

West Midlands Combined Authority 

The Council is also a non-constituent member of the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA). The WMCA 

is a group of councils across the region that is working together to seek greater decision-making powers from 

the Government in a process known as devolution. 

In the Scheme sent to Government only constituent members have voting rights. However, once the WMCA 

is established constituent members can give voting rights to non-constituent members, for example, allowing 

them to vote on matters to do with economic development.  Constituent members may only be signed up 

to one combined authority, whilst non-constituent members can be signed up to one or more combined 

authorities. 

In 2019/20 Rugby Borough Council paid the WMCA a £0.025m contribution to help fund its programmes and 

initiatives. 

 

HEART Partnership 

The HEART partnership is a service operated on behalf of Warwickshire councils. It provides advice and 

assistance to deliver disabled adaptations and home improvements to keep homes safe, secure and warm.  

Caseworkers assess customers’ needs and housing conditions and provide tailored advice and support on a 

range of issues including: 

• Home aids and adaptations  

• Housing conditions, repairs and safety matters 

• Benefits, grants or loans for essential building works 

Rugby Borough Council contributed £0.678m to the partnership in 2019/20 predominantly funded via its 

Disabled Facilities Grant allocation for the year of £0.632m. 

 

Warwickshire Together Homelessness Early Intervention Project 

The Warwickshire Together Homelessness Early Intervention Project is fully funded by grant from the 

Department for Communities and Local Government’s Homelessness Prevention Trailblazers fund. The joint 

project comprises Rugby Borough Council, Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough Council, North Warwickshire 

Borough Council, Stratford-on-Avon District Council and Warwick District Council. Rugby Borough Council 

facilitates the scheme.  

 

Shared Service Arrangements 

 

Rainsbrook Crematorium   

Rainsbrook Crematorium is a joint project between Rugby Borough Council and Daventry District Council. The 

Crematorium is operated by Rugby Borough Council’s bereavement services team on behalf of a joint 

committee which represents both authorities. Each council has an equal share in the entity.  In 2019/20, Rugby 

Borough Council paid £170,590 to Daventry District Council in relation to their share of the annual operating 

surplus. 

 

Shared Fly Tipping Service 

The Council’s Regulatory Services Department deploy their Wardens to provide a Fly-Tipping Service and in 

2019/20 this yielded income of £11,330 from Harborough District Council and £8,000 from Warwick District 

Council. 
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Shared Emergency Planning Officer Scheme 

The Council is part of a joint Emergency Planning Officer scheme in partnership with Warwickshire County 

Council, Coventry City Council and Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council.   In 2019/20 the Council paid 

£12,500 to Solihull Metropolitan Brough Council for the provision of services. 

 

Shared Building Control Service 

The Council is part of a shared Building Control Service with Daventry District Council and Warwick District 

Council who host and provide the Building Control Service.  In 2019/20 the Council contributed £112,770 into 

the scheme. 

 

Shared Services with Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough Council (NBBC) 

In 2019/20 the following transactions were incurred in respect of shared service arrangements with NBBC: 

• £41,390 was paid to NBBC as the lead authority in a shared procurement service.  

• £16,650 was paid to NBBC to meet the shared IT training officer salary costs.  

• £10,890 was paid to NBBC for Construction Design and Management (CDM) support in order to meet 

health, safety and welfare regulations when carrying out construction projects. 

• NBBC paid £20,300 to Rugby Borough Council to meet the shared IT officer salary costs to provide 

Civica APP Support and Development.  

• NBBC paid £9,370 to Rugby Borough Council towards a shared information management partnership, 

which includes Data Protection, Freedom of Information and the Environmental Information 

Regulations. 

 

Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Authority 

The Council provided financial assistance to certain voluntary and outside bodies during 2019/20; these are 

mainly local Government associations or local groups that the Council supports with grant aid and advice. 

Examples include the Local Government Association, West Midlands Local Government Association, Rugby 

First, Rugby Citizens Advice Bureau, Rugby Age Concern and Rugby Business Improvement District (BID) 

Company. The majority of individual transactions may be material for the recipient organisations but are 

relatively immaterial in financial terms for this organisation. 

 

Rugby First Ltd - BID Division 

As Leader of the Council, Cllr Sebastian Lowe and as Growth & Investment Portfolio Holder, Cllr Jill Simpson-

Vince, are on the Board of Rugby First Limited. An amount of £0.826m was paid to the BID Company in 2019/20 

of which £0.513m related to the collection of BID levy income, the remaining £0.313m was paid to the BID 

Company to provide a CCTV Monitoring and Town Centre Management Service. 

Queen’s Diamond Jubilee Centre  

The Queen’s Diamond Jubilee Centre is owned by Rugby Borough Council and is operated by Greenwich 

Leisure Ltd (GLL). Rugby Borough Council funded £0.277m in capital charges and received £0.360m from GLL 

for the annual contract fee and profit share as per the contract agreement in 2019/20. 

 

The Hall of Fame – World Rugby 

In 2016/17 Rugby Borough Council began a partnership with World Rugby Ltd to operate the Hall of Fame for 

a four-year period with the license due to expire in November 2020. 
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Note 35.  Pension Costs 
 

Pension Benefits 

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes contributions towards 

the cost of post-employment benefits.  Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees 

retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments for those benefits and to disclose them at the 

time that the employees earn their future entitlement. 

 

Participation in pension schemes 

Rugby Borough Council participates in two post-employment schemes: 

• The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which is administered locally by Warwickshire County 

Council – this is a funded defined benefit career average salary scheme, meaning the Council and 

its employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions 

liabilities with investment assets. In 2019/20 the Council paid an employer's contribution total of 

£2.690m, which represented 22.69% of employees' pensionable pay of £11.857m into the Pension Fund.  

The contribution rate is determined by the Fund's Actuary based on triennial actuarial valuations and 

the current rate was determined by the latest valuation undertaken up to 31 March 2019 

• discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early retirement – this is an unfunded defined benefit 

arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are made.  However, there are no 

investment assets built up to meet these pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet 

actual pension payments as they eventually fall due.  In 2019/20 the cost of the added years benefit 

awarded in the past amounted to £0.108m representing 0.91% of pensionable pay. 

 

The pension scheme is operated under the framework of the Local Government Pension Scheme and the 

governance of the scheme is the responsibility of the pensions investment sub-committee of Warwickshire 

County Council.  Policy is determined in accordance with the Pensions Fund Regulations.   

The principal risks to the Council of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the 

scheme, structural changes to the scheme (e.g. large-scale withdrawals), changes to inflation, bond yields 

and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme.  However, these are mitigated to a 

certain extent by the statutory provisions as set out in the following narrative. 

Statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the 

Council to the pension fund in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting 

standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement this means that there are appropriations to and from the 

Pension Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with 

debits for cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payable to the fund but unpaid at the year-end.  

The negative balance that arise on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the 

General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as 

benefits are earned by employees. 

 

Recognition and Measurement 

The LGPS is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme: 

• The liabilities of the pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an 

actuarial basis using the projected unit method; which is an assessment of the future payments that 

will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions 

about mortality rates, employee turnover rates and projections of future earnings for current 

employees.  
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• Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.3% (broadly 

equivalent to the yield available on high quality corporate bonds with duration, consistent with the 

term of the liabilities). 

• The fair value of the assets of the pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the 

Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

• Market quoted investments – current bid price on the final day of the accounting period 

• Fixed interest securities – net market value based on their current yields 

• Unquoted investments – professional estimate  

 

The change in net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 

• Service Cost - comprising: 

▪ current year service cost – the increase in the liabilities as a result of years of service earned 

this year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services 

for which the employees worked. 

▪ past service cost – the increases in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment 

whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the surplus or deficit 

on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

▪ net interest on the net defined liability – the change during the period in the net defined 

benefit liability that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment 

Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this 

is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at 

the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the period – 

taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result 

of contribution and benefit payments. 

• Remeasurements - comprising: 

▪ the return on plan assets – excluding amounts including in net interest on the net defined 

benefit liability – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure 

▪ actuarial gains and losses – change in the net pensions liability that arise because events have 

not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries 

have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure 

• Contributions paid to the pension fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in 

settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 
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Transactions relating to Post-Employment Benefits 

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned 

by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge required 

against council tax and HRA rents is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-

employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund and HRA via the Movement in Reserves 

Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement and the General Fund and HRA balances via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the 

year. 

  
Local Government 

Pension Scheme 

Discretionary Benefit 

Arrangements 

 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 

£000s £000s £000s £000s 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement         

Cost of Services         

•        Current Service Costs 4,395 5,312 - - 

•        Past Service Costs 16 476 - - 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure         

•        Net Interest Expense 1,078 1,211 43 38 

Total Post-employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or 

Deficit on the Provision of Services 
5,489 6,999 43 38 

Other Post-employment benefits charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
        

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability 

comprising: 
        

•        Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in 

demographic assumptions 
- - - - 

•        Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in 

financial assumptions 
11,530 (17,038) 17 (50) 

•      Other experience - (6,726) 33 (211) 

•        Return on Plan Assets (excluding the amount 

included in the net interest expense) 
(4,464) 11,881 - - 

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement  
12,555 (4,884) 93 (223) 

Movement in Reserves Statement         

•      Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit on 

the Provision of Services for Post-Employment Benefits in 

accordance with the Code  
(5,489) (6,999) (43) (38) 

Actual amount charged against the General Fund and HRA 

Balances for Pensions in the year: 
        

•      Employer's contributions payable to the scheme  2,482 2,690 - - 

•      Retirement benefits payable to pensioners - - 120 108 

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement  
(3,007) (4,309) 77 70 
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Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 

 

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council's obligation in respect of its defined benefit 

plan is as follows: 

 

  
Local Government 

Pension Scheme 

Discretionary Benefit 

Arrangements 

  

        

2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 

£000s £000s £000s £000s 

Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (155,384) (137,550) (1,611) (1,280) 

Fair Value of Plan Assets 106,303 96,043 - 

   
Net Liability Arising from the Defined Benefit Obligation (49,081) (41,507) (1,611) (1,280)  
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The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long term to pay post-employment 

(retirement) benefits. The total net liability of £42.787m has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Council 

as recorded in the Balance Sheet. 

However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council 

remains healthy.  The deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme will be made good by increased 

contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary.   

 

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of the Scheme (Plan) Assets: 

  
2018/19 2019/20 

£000s £000s 

Opening Balance at 1 April  99,996 106,303 

Interest Income on Plan Assets 2,687 2,546 

Return on Plan Assets, excluding the amount included in the net interest 

expense 
4,464 (11,881) 

Contributions from Employer 2,602 2,690 

Contributions from Scheme Participants 722 851 

Benefits Paid (4,168) (4,466) 

Closing Balance at 31 March 106,303 96,043 

 

 

Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation): 

  

Local Government 

Pension Scheme 

Discretionary Benefit 

Arrangements 

2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 

£000s £000s £000s £000s 

Opening Balance at 1 April  139,004 155,384 1,638 1,611 

Current Service Cost 4,395 5,312 - -  

Interest cost 3,765 3,757 43 38 

Contributions by Scheme Participants 722 851 - - 

Re-measurement Gain/(Loss):       - 

•         Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in 

demographic assumptions 
-   - - 

•         Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in 

financial assumptions 
11,530 (23,764) 17 (50) 

•         Other experience     33 (211) 

Benefits Paid (4,048) (4,466) (120) (108) 

Past Service Costs 16 476 - -  

Closing Balance at 31 March  155,384 137,550 1,611 1,280 

 

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method valuation, an 

estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years’ dependent on assumptions about mortality rate, 

salary levels, etc. Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and Discretionary Benefits liabilities have been 
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assessed by Hymans Robertson LLP, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the scheme fund being 

based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2019. 

 

The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been: 

  
2018/19 2019/20 

£000s £000s 

Mortality assumptions:     

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners (years):     

Men 22.5 21.6 

Women 24.7 23.8 

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners (years):     

Men 24.3 22.5 

Women 26.7 25.4 

Rate of increase in salaries 3.10% 2.70% 

Rate of increase in pensions 2.50% 1.90% 

Rate of discounting of scheme liabilities 2.40% 2.30% 

 

An allowance is included for future retirements to elect to take 50% of the maximum additional tax-free cash 

up to HMRC limits for those pre-April 2008 service and 75% of the maximum tax-free cash for post-April 2008 

service. 

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the previous 

table.  The sensitivity analysis shown in the next table have been determined based on reasonably possible 

changes on the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that 

the assumption analysed changes while all other assumptions remain constant. 

The assumption in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and 

women.  In practice, this in unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumption may be interrelated.  

The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an 

actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method.  The methods and types of assumptions used in 

preparing the following sensitivity analysis did not change from those used in the previous period. 

 

IAS19 Employee Benefits requires the disclosure of the sensitivity of the results to the methods and assumptions 

used.  The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out 

as follows. 
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Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme 

  
Approximate Monetary 

Amount £000s 

Approximate % increase to 

Employer Liability 

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate 15,957 9% 

0.5% Discount in the Salary Increase Rate 2,230 1% 

0.5% increase in the Pension Increase 

Rate (CPI) 
13,460 8% 

 

Local Government Pension Scheme Assets Comprised: 

 

 
Impact on the Council's Cash Flows 

The contributions paid by Rugby Borough Council are set by the Fund Actuary at each triennial actuarial 

valuation (the most recent being at 31 March 2019).   The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers' 

contributions at as constant a rate as possible; the contributions payable over the period to 31 March 2019 

are set out in the Rates and Adjustments Certificate.  Warwickshire County Council has agreed a strategy 

with the scheme's actuary to achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 17 years.  Funding levels are 

monitored on an annual basis with the triennial valuation based as at 31 March 2019 

 

The Council has taken advantage of the opportunity with the Warwickshire Pension Fund to pay for the 

estimated pension payments for the next three years actuarial review (April 2020-March 2023) in advance in 

order to receive a discount on the payment. 

 

In April 2020, the Council paid £7.990m with an expected £2.663m relating to the 2020/21 financial year. 
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Note 36.  Pensions Reserve 

 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting 

for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council 

accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the 

benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect 

inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. 

However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes employer’s 

contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit 

balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and 

current employees and the resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will 

ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits become payable. 

 

2018/19 

£000s 

 2019/20 

£000s 

40,646 Balance at 1 April 50,692 

7,116 Re-measurement of the net defined liability (12,144) 

5,532 
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits credited to the Surplus of 

Provision of Services in the CIES 
7,037 

(2,602) 
Employer’s pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners 

payable in the year 
(2,798) 

50,692 Balance at 31 March 42,787 

 

 

Note 37. Financial Instruments 
 

Financial Liabilities (e.g. Borrowing) 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at 

their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest payable are based on the carrying 

amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest 

rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the 

amount at which it was originally recognised. 

For most of the borrowings that the authority has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance 

Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to the CIES is the 

amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement. 

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the CIES, regulations allow the impact on the 

General Fund Balance to be spread over future years. The authority has a policy of spreading the gain or 

loss over the term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount 

receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the CIES to the net charge 

required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments 

Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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Financial Assets (e.g. Investments) 

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the 

business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics. There are three main 

classes of financial assets measured at: 

• amortised cost 

• fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and 

• fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

The authority’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial assets are 

therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments are not solely payment 

of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument). 

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost  

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair 

value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and 

Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 

for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of 

interest for the instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the authority, this means that the amount 

presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest 

credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing 

and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. 

Expected Credit Loss Model  

The authority recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost either on 

a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease receivables and contract 

assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the authority. 

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take place 

because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in assessing losses. 

Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a 

lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-

month expected losses. 

 

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss (FVPL) 

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and 

carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services. 
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The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques: 

• instruments with quoted market prices – the market price. 

• other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis. 

• The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three 

levels: 

• Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the authority 

can access at the measurement date. 

• Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 

asset, either directly or indirectly. 

• Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the Financing 

and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet: 

31 March 2019  31 March 2020 

Long Term Short Term  Long Term Short Term 

£000s £000s  £000s £000s 

  Financial Assets   

16,977 45,431 At amortised cost 30,580 79,900 

- - Available for sale instruments - - 

- 6,539 At fair value through profit and loss - 6,263 

16,977 51,970 Total Investments 30,580 86,163 

  Loans and receivables   

  Cash and Cash Equivalents   

- 1,032 At amortised cost - 17,502 

- 1,032 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents - 17,502 

64 3,552 Trade Receivables 55 3,645 

64 3,552 Included in Debtors 55 3,645 

17,041 56,554 Total Financial Assets 30,635 107,310 

  Financial Liabilities   

(64,509) (29,548) Loans at amortised cost (96,488) (59,213) 

- (1,681) Creditors -   (845) 

(64,509) (31,229) Total Financial Liabilities (96,488) (60,058) 
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Income, Expense, Gains and Losses 

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation to 

financial instruments are made up as follows: 

 

2018/19  2019/20 

Financial 

Liabilities 

Measured 

at 

Amortised 

Cost 

 

 

£000s 

Financial 

Assets: Loans 

and 

Receivables 

 

 

 

 

£000s 

Financial 

Assets: 

Available 

for Sale 

 

 

 

 

£000s 

 Financial 

Liabilities 

Measured 

at 

Amortised 

Cost 

 

 

£000s 

Financial 

Assets: 

Amortised 

Cost 

 

 

 

 

£000s 

Financial 

Assets: 

Measured 

at Fair 

Value 

through 

Profit and 

Loss 

£000s 

(2,183) - - Interest Expense (2,520) - - 

- - - Net loss on 

financial assets 

at fair value 

through profit 

and loss 

- - (276) 

(2,183) - - Total Expense in 

Surplus/Deficit on 

the Provision of 

Services 

(2,520) - (276) 

- - 113 Net gain on 

financial assets 

at fair value 

through profit 

and loss 

- - - 

- 677 238 Interest income - 1,214 241 

 677 351 Total Income in 

Surplus/Deficit on 

the Provision of 

Services 

- 1,214 241 

- - (113) Gains on 

revaluation 

- - 276 

(2,183) 677 238 Net Gain/(Loss) 

for the Year 

(2,520) 1,214 241 
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Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities 

Some of the Council’s financial assets are measured in the balance sheet at fair value on a recurring basis 

and are described in the following table, including the valuation techniques used to measure them. 

 

Recurring Fair 

Value 

Measurements 

Input Level 

in Fair Value 

Hierarchy 

Valuation technique used to measure fair 

value 

31 March 

2019 Fair 

Value 

£000s 

31 March 

2020 Fair 

Value 

£000s 

Available for Sale 

– CCLA Property 

Fund 

Level 1 
Unadjusted quoted prices in active 

markets for identical shares 
2,441 2,354 

Available for Sale 

– CCLA Diversified 

Income Fund 

Level 1 
Unadjusted quoted prices in active 

markets for identical shares 
1,926 1,809 

Available for Sale 

– Lothbury 

Property Fund 

Level 1 
Unadjusted quoted prices in active 

markets for identical shares 
2,172 2,100 

   6,539 6,263 

 

There were no transfers between input levels during the financial year 2019/20. There has been no change in 

valuation technique used during the year for financial instruments. 

 

The Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not measured at Fair Value (but for which 

Fair Value disclosures are required) 

 

Financial instruments, except those classified at amortised cost, are carried in the balance sheet at fair value.  

The fair values of financial instruments classified at amortised cost can be assessed by calculating the present 

value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments using the following 

methods and assumptions: 

• For loans from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) payable, premature repayment rates from the 

PWLB have been applied to provide fair value under PWLB debt redemption procedures; 

• For non-PWLB loans payable, prevailing market rates have been used to provide the fair value under 

PWLB debt redemption procedures; 

• For loans receivable prevailing benchmark market rates have been used to provide the fair value; 

▪ No early repayment or impairment is recognised 

▪ Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months or is a trade or other receivable the  

▪ fair value is taken to be the carrying amount or the billed amount 
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The fair values are calculated as follows: 

 

 

31 March 2019  31 March 2020 

Carrying 

Amount 

£000s 

Fair Value 

 

£000s 

Carrying 

Amount 

 £000s 

Fair Value 

 

£000s 

  Financial Assets held at amortised cost   

15,828 15,466 Corporate, Covered and Government 

Bonds 

12,586 12,244 

14,970 14,923 Long Term Investments 27,568 28,135 

30,798 30,389  40,154 40,379 

  Assets for which Fair Value is not 

disclosed 

  

64 - Long Term Debtors 55 - 

31,610 - Short Term Investments 70,326 - 

1,032 - Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,502 - 

3,552 - Debtors 3,645 - 

36,258 -  91,528 - 

     

67,056 30,389 Total Financial Assets 131,682 40,379 

  Financial Liabilities at amortised cost   

  Borrowing   

(35,894) (38,750) Public Works Loans Board (54,378) (57,864) 

(58,163) (67,843) Other (101,323) (119,034) 

(94,057) (106,593) Total Borrowing (155,701) (176,898) 

(1,681) (1,681) Creditors (845) (845) 

(95,738) (108,274) Total Financial Liabilities (156,546) (177,743) 

 

The fair value of the liabilities is more than the carrying amount because the Council’s loans are fixed at a 

higher rate than was available at the 31 March 2020. This shows a notional future loss (based on economic 

conditions at 31 March 2020) arising from a commitment to pay interest to lenders above current market 

rates. 

The fair value of PWLB loans of £57.864m compares the terms of these loans with the new borrowing rates 

available from the PWLB. However, if the Council were to seek to repay these loans early to the PWLB, the 

PWLB would raise a penalty charge, based on redemption interest rates, for early redemption of £16.360m for 

the additional interest that will not now be paid. The exit price for the PWLB loans including the penalty charge 

would be £70.738m. 

 

The fair value of financial assets held at amortised cost is higher than their balance sheet carrying amount 

because the interest rate on similar investments is now lower than that obtained when the investment was 

originally made. 

 

Current debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of their value. 
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Note 38.  Nature and Extent of Risk Arising from Financial Instruments 
 

The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Council’s overall risk management 

procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and implementing restrictions to minimize these 

risks.  The procedures for risk management are set out through a legal framework in the Local Government 

Act 2003 and the associated regulations.  These require the Council to comply with the CIPFA Prudential 

Code, the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice and Investment Guidance 

issued through the Act.  

 

The Council manages risk in the following ways: 

• by formally adopting the requirements of the Code of Practice; 

• by approving annually in advance prudential and treasury indicators for the following three years 

limiting 

▪ The Council’s overall borrowing; 

▪ Its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates; 

▪ Its maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of its debt; 

▪ Its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year; and 

• by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for both investing 

and selecting investment counterparties in compliance with the Government Guidance. 

 

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Council’s 

customers.  This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which stipulates limits on credit 

criteria, deposit amounts and duration for deposits with each financial institution. Details of the Investment 

Strategy can be found on the Council’s website.  

 

Amounts Arising from Expected Credit Losses 

  

We have assessed the Council’s short and long term investments and concluded that the expected credit 

loss is not material therefore no allowances have been made. A summary of the credit quality of the Council’s 

investments at 31 March 2020 is shown below, along with the potential maximum exposure to credit risk, based 

on experience of default and uncollectability. 

 

As at 31 March 2019 

Deposits with banks and financial institutions 

As at 31 March 2020 

Carrying 

Amount on 

Balance 

Sheet 

£000s 

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure 

to default 

£000s 

Carrying 

Amount on 

Balance 

Sheet 

£000s 

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure 

to default 

£000s 

4,817 - AAA rated counterparties/products 4,015 - 

34,592 7 AA rated counterparties/products 77,735 16 

20,867 17 A rated counterparties/products 19,164 15 

8,672 19 BBB rated counterparties/products 15,830 35 

3,616 108 Trade Debtors 3,700 111 

72,564 151 Total 120,444 173 
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The Council does not generally allow extended credit for customers, but some of the current balance is past 

its due date for payment. The past due but not impaired amount can be analysed by age as follows:  

 

 31 March 

2019 

£000s 

31 March 

2020 

£000s 

Less than three months 326 91 

Three to six months 600 164 

Six months to one year 136 149 

More than one year 323 539 

Total 1,385 943 

 

During the reporting period the Council held no collateral as security. 

 

Liquidity risk 

There is no significant risk that the Council will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under 

financial instruments as the Council has ready access to borrowings from the Money Markets to cover any 

day to day cash flow need, and the PWLB, whilst providing access to longer term funds, also acts as a lender 

of last resort to councils (although it will not provide funding to a council whose actions are unlawful).  The 

Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures outlined as well as through 

cash flow management procedures required by the Treasury Code of Practice.  

The maturity analysis of financial assets is as follows: 

 31 March 2019 

£000s 

31 March 2020 

£000s 

Less than one year 51,970 86,163 

Between one and two years 8,029 13,035 

Between two and three years 5,986 15,035 

More than three years 2,962 2,511 

Total 68,947 116,744 

All trade and other payables (creditors) are due to be paid in less than one year and are not shown in the 

previous table. 

 

Refinancing and Maturity Risk 

The Council maintains a significant debt and investment portfolio.  To mitigate the longer-term risk to the 

Council relating to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature, the Council 

approves Prudential indicator limits and an annual Treasury Management Strategy.   

The Financial Services team address the operational risks within the approved parameters, by; 

• Monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile through either new 

borrowing or the rescheduling of the existing debt; and 

• Monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the Council’s 

day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer term investments provide stability of maturities 

and returns in relation to the longer-term cash flow needs. 

 

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows, with the maximum and minimum limits for fixed interest 

rates maturing in each period: 
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 Approved 

maximum 

limits 

% 

Approved 

minimum 

limits 

% 

Actual 31 

March 2020 

 

£000s 

Actual 31 

March 2019 

 

£000s 

Actual 

 

 

% 

Less than one year* 50 - 51,786 17,036 36 

12 months to 2 years 50 - 43,090 29,692 30 

Between 2 and 5 years 60 - 7,310 18,232 5 

Between 5 and 10 years 60 - 11,796 11,796 8 

Between 10 and 20 years 75 - 515 515 - 

Between 20 and 30 years 75 - 512 512 - 

Between 30 and 40 years 75 - 434 434 - 

More than 40 years 75 - 30,252 3,766 21 

Total*   145,695 81,983 100 

* excludes short term borrowing less than 365 days.   
 

 

Market risk 

Interest rate risk - The Council is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments.  For 

instance, a rise in variable and fixed interest rates would have the following effects: 

• Borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 

of Services will rise; 

• Borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the borrowing liability will fall; 

• Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 

of Services will rise; and 

• Investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall. 

Investments measured at amortised cost and loans borrowed are not carried at fair value so changes in their 

fair value will have no impact on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, changes in interest 

payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit 

on the Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance, subject to influences from Government 

grants.  Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected 

in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk.  The Annual Treasury Management 

Strategy draws together the Council’s prudential indicators and its expected treasury operations, including 

an expectation of interest rate movements.  A prudential indicator is set which provides maximum and 

minimum limits for fixed and variable interest rate exposure.   

The Financial Services team monitors market and forecast interest rates within the year to adjust exposures 

appropriately. The risk of interest rate loss is partially mitigated by Government grant payable on financing 

costs.  A 1% change in variable interest rates would be immaterial to the Council because it has no variable 

rate debt and a small value of variable rate investments.  

 

Foreign exchange risk –the Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. 

 

Transition to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 

 

The Council adopted the IFRS 9 Financial Instruments accounting standard with effect from 1 April 2018. The 

main changes included the reclassification and re-measurement of financial assets and the earlier 

recognition of the impairment of financial assets. 
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The following judgements were made in reclassifying financial instruments at 1 April 2018: 

 

Statutory Override on pooled investments  

 

The Council holds £6.000m (nominal) in pooled investment funds. As a result of the change in accounting 

standards for 2018/19 under IFRS 9, the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 

agreed a temporary override to allow English Local Authorities time to adjust their portfolio of all pooled 

investments by announcing a statutory override to delay implementation of IFRS 9 for five years commencing 

from April 2018. The Council will use the statutory override to account for any changes in the fair value on its 

pooled investments.  

 

Note 39.  Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 

 

The Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve contained the gains made or losses incurred by the 

Council arising from increases or decreases in the value of investments that have quoted market prices or 

otherwise do not have fixed or determinable payments. The balance was reduced when investments with 

accumulated gains are: 

• Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost, 

• Disposed of and the gains are realised. 

 

The Council adopted the IFRS 9 Financial Instruments accounting standard with effect from 1 April 2018. The 

main changes include the reclassification and re-measurement of financial assets and the earlier recognition 

of the impairment of financial assets. As a result of the implementation of IFRS 9, the Available for Sale Reserve 

has been decommissioned and any balance held has been transferred to the Financial Instruments 

Revaluation Reserve. The Council has transferred the balance on the Available for Sale Reserve in relation to 

its investments in the CCLA Property and Diversified Income Funds, and the Lothbury Property Fund. 

 

 

2018/19 

£000s 

 2019/20 

IFRS 9 

1 April 2019 

£000s £000s 

(367) Balance at 1 April  - 

- Upward revaluation of investments - - 

- 
Downward revaluation of investments not charged to the 

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 
- - 

- 

Accumulated gains on assets sold and maturing assets written 

out to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

as part of Other Investment Income 

- - 

(73) Reclassification to amortised cost - - 

440 Transfer to Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve - - 

367 Net Movement  - 

0 Balance at 31 March  - 
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Note 40.  Provisions 
 

Provisions represent amounts set aside to meet future liabilities which are likely or certain to be incurred but 

where it is not possible to determine exactly the amounts or timing of such events. 

Provisions in respect of bad and doubtful debts are maintained, including amounts relating to rent, council 

tax and business rate arrears, which have been estimated in accordance with recommended practice and 

past experience and are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement.  When payments are eventually made these are charged to the 

provision carried in the Balance Sheet. 

 

 2019/20 

Business Rates 

Appeals 

£000s 

Short – Term Provisions  

Balance at 1 April (1,254) 

Amounts used in the year 233 

(Increase)/decrease in provision 108 

Balance at 31 March (913) 

Long – Term Provisions  

Balance at 1 April (3,968) 

Amounts used in the year 1052 

(Increase)/decrease in provision (1,557) 

Balance at 31 March (4,473) 

Total (5,386) 

 

Provision for Business Rate Appeals 

The Local Government Finance Act 2012 introduced a business rates retention scheme that enabled local 

authorities to retain a proportion of the business rates generated in their area. Billing authorities acting as 

agents on behalf of the major preceptors (10%), central Government (50%) and themselves (40%) are required 

to make provisions for refunding ratepayers who have successfully appealed against the rateable value of 

their properties on the rating list. 

On 1 April 2019 the Council’s provision for business rate appeals was £5.222m.  During the financial year 

£1.285m was charged to the provision for successful appeals in 2019/20 which have been previously provided 

for.  

After reflecting the amounts charged to the provision in 2019/20, the Council carried out an assessment of 

the future risk of appeal losses.  The basis of this forecast was to apply 4.7% to gross rates payable being the 

national average of appeal losses on the 2010 rating list as measured by MHCLG.      Following this, the 2019/20 

overall provision in the business rates Collection Fund has been increased to £13.465m.  Rugby Borough 

Council's 40% share of the total provision is £5.386m of which it is expected that £0.913m will be settled in the 

next twelve months and £4.473m in 2020/21 or later years. 

 

The appeals provision as at 31 March 2020 fully provides for the outcome of the ATM Valuation Tribunal.     
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Note 41.  Contingent Liabilities and Assets 

 
Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible obligation 

whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly 

within the control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would 

otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required, or the amount 

of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet 

but are disclosed in the accounts.  

 

At 31 March 2020 the Council has no contingent liabilities, the 2018/19 liability in relation to the pension 

valuations for the McCloud and GMP case has now been recognised as a past service cost as part of note 

36 – Pension costs 

 

Contingent Assets  

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible asset whose 

existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within 

the control of the Authority. Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in 

the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 

 

 

The Council is part of a Business Rates pool with Warwickshire County Council, Coventry City Council and all 

Warwickshire districts.  Part of the Memorandum of Understanding for the Pool allocates 25% of the benefit 

of being in the pool to be set aside in a Local Volatility Fund. This is to provide protection for Pool members 

from falls in business rate income. The Local Volatility Fund is held by Warwickshire County Council as the 

lead authority and a memo account is maintained for each authority. As at the end of March 2020, Rugby 

held £1.836m within the Fund. This would be released to us if our business rates income fell by more than 5% 

of our baseline funding level, or if we left the pool, or if the pool dissolved.  

 

Note 42.  Events after the Reporting Period 
 

Events taking place after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that 

occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Accounts are authorised for issue.  

Two types of events can be identified: 

• Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of 2019/20 – the Accounts are 

adjusted to reflect such events 

• Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the 31 March 2020 – the Accounts are not 

adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, 

disclosure is made of the nature of the event and their estimated financial effect. 

 

Coronavirus Pandemic 

 

In the early part of 2020, the Coronavirus began to spread from China. In England, an enforced lockdown 

was implemented from 23 March. The impact on the Council’s finances for 2019/20 was minimal at just 

£0.004m and these are included within the CI&ES. Costs are expected to be significant for 2020/21 but 

otherwise the main implication for the 2019/20 accounts relates to the valuation of the Council’s investments. 

These have been valued with the future impact of the pandemic being a key consideration and the value 

recorded as at 31 March in these accounts reflects the conditions at that date. 
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Pension Lump Sum Payment 

The Council has taken advantage of the opportunity with the Warwickshire Pension Fund to pay for the 

estimated pension payments for the next three year actuarial review (April 2020-March 2023) in advance in 

order to receive a discount on the payment. 

 

In April 2020, the Council paid £7.990m with £2.633m relating to the 2020/21 financial year. The remaining 

balance of £5.327m will be a payment in advance on the balance sheet which will be offset by a reduction 

in the cash and cash equivalents in investments 
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HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
 
Income and Expenditure Account 
 

The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in the year of providing housing 

services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded 

from rents and Government grants. Authorities charge rents to cover expenditure in accordance with 

regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The increase or decrease in the year, on the basis 

of which rents are raised, is shown in the Movement on the HRA Statement. 

 

2018/19 

(restated) 

£000s 

 2019/20 

 

£000s 

 Income  

(15,540) Dwelling Rents (15,046) 

(184) Non-dwelling rents (106) 

(1,201) Charges for services (988) 

(164) Contributions towards expenditure (255) 

(17,089) Total Income (16,395) 

 Expenditure  

3,744 Repairs and maintenance 4,123 

5,630 Supervision and management 5,442 

48 Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 10 

5,757 Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 6,726 

38 Debt management costs 88 

23 Movement in allowance for bad debts 118 

15,240 Total Expenditure 16,507 

   

(1,849) 
Net Expenditure or Income of HRA Services as included in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
113 

214 HRA Share of Corporate and Democratic Core costs 224 

(1,635) Net Expenditure of HRA Services 336 

   

(119) (Gain) or Loss on sale of HRA non-current assets (59) 

1,313 Interest payable and similar charges 1,507 

(418) Interest and investment income (492) 

202 Pension interest and expected return on pension assets 218 

(180) Capital grants and contributions receivable (237) 

(7) Other Income – Unattached Receipts (21) 

(844) (Surplus) or Deficit for the year on HRA services 1,252 
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Movement on the HRA Statement 
 

2018/19 

 

£000s 

 2019/20 

 

£000s 

(6,493) HRA revenue balance brought forward (5,085) 

(844) 
(Surplus) or Deficit for the year on the HRA Income and Expenditure 

Account 
1,252 

441 Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under statute 138 

(403) Net (increase) or decrease before transfers to or from reserves 1,390 

1,811 Transfers to or (from) earmarked reserves (1,390) 

1,407 (Increase) or decrease in the HRA Revenue Balance 0 

(5,085) HRA revenue balance carried forward (5,085) 

 

 

Note to the Movement on the HRA Statement 
 

2018/19 

£000s 

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under statute 

 

2019/20 

£000s 

(3,076) Depreciation of non-current assets (3,200) 

(2,625) 
Revaluation movements and impairment on non-current assets, 

charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
(3,469) 

(57) Amortisation of intangible assets (57) 

(1,807) Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale (2,444) 

1,926 Sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal 2,503 

2 Transfer to Accumulated Absences account - 

4,149 Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances 5,148 

180 Capital grants and contributions applied 237 

7 Transfer of Unattached Receipts to the Capital Receipts Reserve 21 

(961) Net charges made for retirement benefits (IAS 19) (1,111) 

2,287 Reversal of Major Repairs Allowance credited to the HRA 2,075 

- Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment - 

416 
Employers Contributions payable to the Pension Fund and retirement 

benefits payable direct to pensioners 
435 

441  138 

 

2018/19 

£000s 

Transfers to or (from) earmarked reserves 

 

2019/20 

£000s 

(68) Transfer to or (from) Housing Repairs Account (353) 

1,828 Transfer to or (from) HRA Capital Investment balances (1,089) 

50 Transfer to or (from) other earmarked reserves 52 

1,810  (1,390) 
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Note 1.  HRA Assets 
 

The number and types of dwellings in the Council’s housing stock is as follows: 

2018/19  2019/20 

2,151 Houses/Bungalows (including part-ownerships) 2,152 

1,635 Flats 1,637 

3,786  3,789 
 

The change in the stock was as follows: 

2018/19  2019/20 

3,779 Stock at 1 April 3,786 

(20) Less sales (including part-ownership) (25) 

- Less removal from stock - 

- Add: new build properties - 

27 Add: purchase of properties 28 

3,786 Stock at 31 March 3,789 
 

The balance sheet includes HRA assets as follows: 

2018/19 

£000s 

 2019/20 

£000s 

 Balance Sheet values as at 31 March  

188,703 Operational Assets: Dwellings 195,487 

798 Operational Assets: Other Land & Buildings 798 

622 Operational Assets: Equipment 535 

698 Operational Assets: Infrastructure 671 

131 Non-Operational Assets - 

2,166 Assets Under Construction 4,926 

193,118  202,417 
 

 

Note 2.  Vacant Possession 
 

2018/19 

£000s 

 2019/20 

£000s 

469,066 Vacant Possession Value of Dwellings at April 2016 prices 486,214 

(188,703) Balance Sheet Value of Dwellings (195,487) 

280,363 Economic cost to Government 290,727 

 

The vacant possession value of the dwellings is the equivalent of the market value of the properties.   

For balance sheet purposes it is necessary to adjust this value in order to show the cost of the properties at 

social value.  This represents a value for a property if it were sold with sitting tenants enjoying rents at less than 

open market rents and rights such as Right to Buy.  The difference between the two values represents the 

economic cost to the Government of providing council housing at less than open market rents.  An 

adjustment factor is provided by the Government, which measures the difference between market and local 

authority rents at a regional level.  The adjustment factor for Rugby is set at 40%. 
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Note 3.  Major Repairs Reserve 
 

The Major Repairs Reserve is an earmarked reserve for the capital financing of the planned element of 

replacement expenditure on council houses. The Reserve earns interest on all balances which must also be 

used for this purpose. 

2018/19 

£000s 

 2019/20 

£000s 

(1,579) Balance at 1 April (2,544) 

(3,076) Depreciation on non-current assets (3,200) 

789 Appropriations to or (from) HRA Revenue 1,125 

(24) Interest received (31) 

(3,890) Sub-total (4,650) 

   

1,346 Capital financing 2,460 

(2,544) Balance at 31 March (2,190) 

 

Note 4.  Housing Repairs Account 

 
The Housing Repairs Account is an earmarked reserve for the financing of reactive and planned maintenance 

on council houses.  

 

2018/19 

£000s 

 2019/20 

£000s 

(1,089) Balance at 1 April (1,021) 

(3,676) Contributions during the year (3,769) 

3,744 Repairs and maintenance charged 4,123 

(1,021) Balance at 31 March (667) 

 

  

Appendix A



 

122 

 

Note 5(i).  HRA Capital Expenditure and Financing 

 
The following table provides a summary of total capital expenditure on land, houses and other property within 

the Council’s HRA during the financial year, broken down by sources of funding: 

2018/19 

£000s 

 2019/20 

£000s 

4,881 Council dwellings 5,932 

- Other assets 10 

- Housing Management Systems - 

1,985 Other expenditure 3,074 

6,866 Sub-total 9,016 

 Financed by:  

(4,148) Direct Revenue Finance (5,110) 

(270) Government Grant (237) 

- Earmarked Reserves (273) 

(1,102) Right to Buy Receipts (1,209) 

(1,346) Major Repairs Reserve (2,187) 

(6,866)  (9,016) 

 

Note 5(ii).  HRA Capital Receipts 

 
The following table provides a summary of total capital receipts from disposals of land, houses and other 

property within the Council’s HRA during the financial year: 
 

2018/19 

£000s 

 2019/20 

£000s 

(1,924) Sales of Council Houses under Right to Buy (RTB) (2,501) 

(7) RTB Discounts repaid (18) 

- Council House Mortgage Principal Repayments (3) 

(1,931)  (2,522) 

 

 

Note 6.  Depreciation of Property Plant and Equipment 

 
The following table provides a summary of the charges for depreciation for the land, houses and other 

property within the Council’s HRA: 

 

2018/19 

£000s 

 2019/20 

£000s 

 Operational Assets  

(2,934) Dwellings, other land, buildings (2,965) 

(116) Equipment (208) 

(26) Non-operational assets (27) 

(3,076)  (3,200) 

 

A full valuation of the stock has to be undertaken every 5 years. The latest one was carried out as at 1 January 

2020.  
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Note 7. Contribution to/from Pensions Reserve 
 

The HRA share of IAS19 Employee Benefits pension adjustments is based on the number of employees charged 

to the HRA.  Also see Note 37 Pension Costs and Note 38 Pensions Reserve. 

 

 

Note 8. Tenant Arrears 
 

During 2019/20 rent arrears as a proportion of gross rental income have changed from 6.2% of the amount 

due to 7.80%. The figures, excluding service charges and debts of up to three weeks are as follows: 

 

2018/19 

£000s 

 2019/20 

£000s 

627 Arrears of current tenants (not including current weeks) 737 

335 Arrears of former tenants 436 

962 Total tenants’ arrears at 31 March 1,173 

 

During 2019/20 the Housing Management – Tenancy Sustainment team provided tenancy coaching with 

more than 300 customers, creating an action plan to address arrears issues. Vulnerable customers are 

identified during the allocations process by the Customer Advice and Support Team and via referrals from 

Customer Support Assistants and the Revenues team. 

 

Bad Debts 

The total provision for bad debts was £0.635m (as at 31 March 2020.) Amounts actually written off during the 

year totalled £0.016m. The level of bad debt provision is calculated with reference to the HRA (Arrears of 

Rents and Charges) Directions 1990. An analysis of the Bad Debt Provision Account is as follows: 

 

2018/19 

£000s 

 2019/20 

£000s 

(478) Balance at 1 April (502) 

1 Write off (16) 

(25) Provision made in the year (118) 

(502) Balance as at 31 March (636) 
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COLLECTION FUND STATEMENT 
 

As a billing authority the Council acts as an agent collecting council tax and business rates (national non-

domestic rates) on behalf of the major preceptors, Central Government and itself.   

Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors and Central 

Government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax and business rates 

collected could be less or more than predicted.   Transactions and balances in respect of council tax and 

business rates therefore need to be allocated between the billing authority, major preceptors and Central 

Government, in accordance with the proportionate shares set out in legislation. 

The Council’s share of council tax income and retained business rate income alongside the related business 

rates tariff payment and levy payment will be recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement in the line Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income.  The difference between the business rate 

and council tax income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount 

required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund shall be taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment 

Account and reported in the Movement in Reserve Statement. 

 

2019/20 Collection Fund Income £124m 

 
2019/20 Collection Fund Expenditure £124m 

 

42%

58%
Council Tax (£53m)

Business Rates (£71m)

47%

24%

21%

7%

1%

Warwickshire County Council

(£59m)

Rugby Borough Council (£29m)

Central Government (£26m)

Police & Crime Commissioner for

Warwickshire (£9m)

Provisions - Appeals (£0.4m) & Bad

Debt (£0.5m)
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The Collection Fund Statement 
 

2018/19 

Total 

 

£000s 

 2019/20 

Business 

Rates 

£000s 

2019/20 

Council 

Tax 

£000s 

2019/20 

Total 

 

£000s 

 INCOME    

(64,771) Council Tax Receivable - (71,193) (71,193) 

(58,580) Business Rates Receivable (52,550) - (52,550) 

- Transitional Protection Payments Receivable - - - 

(118,351)  (52,550) (71,193) (123,743) 

 Contribution to Previous Year Estimated Deficit    

(249) Central Government (31) - (31) 

(50) Warwickshire County Council (157) - (157) 

(199) Rugby Borough Council (126) - (126) 

- Police and Crime Commissioner for Warwickshire - - - 

(498)  (314) - (314) 
     

(118,849) Total Income (52,864) (71,193) (124,057) 

 EXPENDITURE    

1,478 Transitional Protection Payments 334 - 334 
     

 Distribution of Previous Year Estimated Surplus    

- Central Government - - - 

570 Warwickshire County Council - 29 29 

88 Rugby Borough Council - 191 191 

84 Police and Crime Commissioner for Warwickshire - 28 28 

742  0 248 248 

 Precepts, Demands and Shares    

24,382 Central Government 26,281 - 26,281 

54,338 Warwickshire County Council 5,256 53,664 58,920 

26,944 Rugby Borough Council 21,025 7,914 28,939 

7,399 Police and Crime Commissioner for Warwickshire - 8,545 8,545 

113,063  52,562 70,123 122,685 

 Charges to Collection Fund    

328 Less: Increase / (Decrease) in Bad Debt Provision 185 347 532 

4,075 Less: Increase / (Decrease) in Provision for Appeals 3,623 - 3,623 

(2,114) Appeals and List Alterations (3,212) - (3,212) 

136 Cost of Collection Allowance 137 - 137 

2,425  733 347 1,080 
     

117,708 Total Expenditure 53,629 70,718 124,347 

 Movement on Fund    

(1,141) (Surplus)/ Deficit arising during the year 765 (475) 290 

2,032 (Surplus)/ Deficit arising at 1 April 1,020 (129) 891 

891 (Surplus)/ Deficit arising at 31 March 1,785 (604) 1,181 
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Notes to the Collection Fund Statement 
 

Note 1. Council Tax 
The Council is required to calculate a tax base each year and this is divided into the total precept requirement 

for Warwickshire County Council, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Warwickshire and the Borough 

Council to produce the average band D council tax figure of £1,870.94 for 2019/20. 

 
The tax base is calculated by estimating the number of chargeable dwellings in each valuation band, taking 

into account an estimate of additions and deletions during the year, and adjusted for the effects of various 

reliefs, exemptions and discounts, where applicable. 

This is converted to an equivalent number of band D dwellings.  Finally, an adjustment is made to cover non-

collection of arrears.  A summary of the calculation is shown in the following table.  

Band No. of 

Chargeable 

Dwellings 

Ratio Band D Equivalent 

 

A- 8.85 5/9 4.92 

A 5,733.09 6/9 3,822.06 

B 9,135.28 7/9 7,105.22 

C 9,626.38 8/9 8,556.78 

D 6,144.15 9/9 6,144.15 

E 4,395,94 11/9 5,372.82 

F 2,847.80 13/9 4,113.49 

G 1,570.94 15/9 2,618.23 

H 70.69 18/9 141.38 

   37,879.05 

  Less allowance for non-collection (530.31) 

  Contributions in lieu 

(MOD properties) 
131.00 

  COUNCIL TAX BASE 2019/20 37,749.74 

(Band A- relates to a reduction for persons with disabilities on Band A) 

 

Warwickshire County 
Council

£1,431.81
76%

Police & Crime 
Commissioner for 

Warwickshire
£227.98

12%

Rugby Borough Council 
£143.54

8%

Average 
Town / Parish

£67.61
4%
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The tax base multiplied by the average band D council tax of £1,870.94 provided an original estimate of 

income of £70.122m for 2019/20.  The actual income for 2019/20 was £71.193m thus exceeding expectations 

by 1.5% 

 

 

Note 2. Business Rates (National Non-Domestic Rates) 
 

The business rates retention scheme provides for non-domestic rates collected by a billing authority to be 

shared between it, its major precepting authority and central Government.    

The Council collects non-domestic rates for its area, based on local rateable values multiplied by a national 

rate.  The total rateable value for the Rugby Borough area was £125.047m at 31 March 2020 (£126.351m in 

2018/19). The non-domestic rating multiplier for 2019/20 was 50.4p (49.3p in 2018/19) and the small business 

non-domestic rating multiplier was 49.1p (48.0p in 2018/19). 

 

 

Note 3. Collection Fund Balance Apportionment 
 

The net deficit on the Collection Fund as at 31 March 2020 of £1.181m will be split between the authorities 

and recovered in 2021/22 in the following proportions: 

Total 

 

2018/19 

£000s 

 

Council Tax 

 

2019/20 

£000s 

Business 

Rates 

2019/20 

£000s 

Total 

 

2019/20 

£000s 

510 Central Government - 893 893 

3 Warwickshire County Council (462) 178 (284) 

(15) Police and Crime Commissioner for Warwickshire (74) - (74) 

393 Rugby Borough Council (68) 714 646 

891  (604) 1,785 1,181 

 

The Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020 will include a net creditor/debtor for each of the precepting 

authorities’ share of the Collection Fund surplus/deficit. 

 

The Council’s share of the net deficit on the Collection Fund of £0.646m is recognised in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement in 2019/20, but reversed out to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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Collection Fund Adjustment Account 
 

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of income 

from council tax and business rates in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due 

compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the 

Collection Fund. 

 

Total 

 

2018/19 

£000s 

 

Council Tax 

 

2019/20 

£000s 

Business 

Rates 

2019/20 

£000s 

Total 

 

2019/20 

£000s 

983 Balance at 1 April (15) 408 393 

(590) 

Amount by which income credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement is different from income calculated 

for the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements. 

 

(53) 

 

306 253 

393 Balance at 31 March (68) 714 646 

 

 
Note 4. Coventry and Warwickshire Business Rates Pool 
 

The Council has been part of the Coventry and Warwickshire Business Rates Pool since the introduction of 

the Business Rates Retention scheme in 2013/14.  The outturn performance of the Pool since 2013/14 has 

resulted in an accumulated Safety Net Reserve Balance of £5.5million of which our share is £1.8m.  This 

would be allocated to pool members under the agreed proportions set out in the Memorandum of 

Understanding upon closure of the Pool.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF RUGBY 

BOROUGH COUNCIL 
  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

 

2019-20 

 

 

 

 

PROUD OF OUR PAST, FIT FOR THE FUTURE 
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Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 

 

1. SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 

 
1.1 Rugby Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that it conducts its business in accordance with 

the law and proper standards. Public money must be used economically, efficiently and effectively, 

safeguarded and properly accounted for. The Council must have in place proper governance 

arrangements and carry out its functions effectively, including suitable risk management 

arrangements. 

 

1.2 The Council must conduct a review, at least once a year, of the effectiveness of its system of internal 

control and report the findings in an annual governance statement. The statement must be 

prepared in accordance with proper practices and be reported to a Committee of Councillors. This 

document comprises the Council’s annual governance statement for 2019/20. 

 

2. WHO IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING GOOD GOVERNANCE? 
 

2.1 The Council’s governance arrangements are overseen by the Audit & Ethics Committee. The 

Executive Director has overall responsibility for ensuring that effective controls and processes are 

implemented across the Council and these are regularly reviewed and updated. Regular reports are 

submitted to the Audit & Ethics Committee highlighting any identified enhancements. The Chief 

Finance Officer (s151 Officer) is responsible for ensuring that effective financial controls are in place, 

for the maintenance of an effective internal audit function and for reviewing the overall 

effectiveness of the governance framework. The overview and co-ordination of this process is 

undertaken by the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager. 

 

3. WHAT THIS STATEMENT TELLS YOU 

 
3.1 This Statement provides a summarised account of how the Council’s management arrangements 

are set up to meet the principles of good governance set out in the Constitution and how assurance 

is obtained that these are both effective and appropriate. It is written to provide the reader with a 

clear, simple assessment of how the governance framework has operated over the past financial 

year, how effective that framework has been in enabling the Council to achieve its intended 

outcomes, and to identify any improvements made and any weaknesses or gaps in arrangements 

that need to be addressed. Its main aim is to provide the reader with confidence that the Council is 

managed effectively and efficiently; that services are delivered in accordance with current 

legislation, the corporate strategy and in a way that optimises value for money. 

 

4. THE PRINCIPLES OF GOOD GOVERNANCE 

 
4.1 The principles of good governance are set out in the CIPFA Framework for Delivering Good 

Governance in Local Government 2016. The framework positions the attainment of sustainable 
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economic, societal, and environmental outcomes as a key focus of governance processes and 

structures. This statement explains how the Council has complied with the framework and meets the 

requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (England). 

 

4.2 Good governance is dynamic, and the Council is committed to improving its governance on a 

continuing basis through a process of evaluation and review. The diagram below, taken from the 

International Framework for Good Governance in the Public Sector, illustrates the various principles 

of good governance in the public sector and how they relate to each other.  

 

 

Principles A and B permeate implementation of principles C to G 

 

5. THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

 
5.1 The governance framework comprises the policies, plans, systems, processes, culture and values (the 

system of ‘internal control’) that the Council has in place to ensure its intended outcomes for 

stakeholders and the community are defined and delivered. To deliver good governance objectives 

must be achieved whilst also acting in the public interest. The framework enables the Council to 
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monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have 

led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services. 

 

5.2 The governance arrangements are designed to ensure that an appropriate and proportionate 

approach is taken to managing risk whilst ensuring that objectives are achieved. The governance 

framework has been in place for the year to the date of approval of this annual governance 

statement. The arrangements are not designed to eliminate all risks but rather provide a reasonable 

degree of assurance of effectiveness. 

 

5.3 The governance framework and an assessment of its effectiveness are set out on the following 

pages. 

 

PRINCIPLE A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting 

the rule of law 

Arrangements in place 

• Member and officer codes of conduct 

• Confidential Reporting Code 

• Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Strategy 

• Fraud Response Plan 

• Contract Standing Orders 

• Declaration of interests procedure 

• Register of interests 

• Register of gifts and hospitality 

• Customer feedback and complaints procedure 

• Equalities & Diversity policy statement 

• Register of Equality Impact Assessments 

• Information security policies, senior information risk owner in post (SIRO) and Information Governance 

Group in place.  

• Corporate values in place which all employees are expected to act in accordance with 

• Recruitment/ selection procedures aligned with corporate values 

• A standard format is in place for 1 to 1 meetings between managers and staff, designed to ensure that 

the corporate values are embedded and adhered to 

• The Council participates in the National Fraud Initiative  

• Delivery of fraud and corruption awareness training 

• Internal audit plan coverage includes governance and ethics related audits, in line with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards.  

• Any planning applications submitted by staff are reviewed in public 

• Agenda management sheets of Council reports include a requirement to highlight the legal implications 

of decisions 

• Records of regulatory training required and undertaken are retained on the Council’s HR system 

• There is a Warwickshire independent persons panel in place which is available for consultation regarding 

any conduct related complaints. The group provides advice to the Council on the appropriate course 

of action to take to address such complaints. 
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• The Council has implemented plans to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Homelessness 

Reduction Act 2018. 

Effectiveness and future developments 

Implementation of the Counter Fraud Strategy and Fraud Response Plan has led to a more consistent 

approach to investigation of irregularities across the Council and improved awareness amongst staff. 

Furthermore, dedicated time is set aside within the internal audit work plan to ensure that resources are 

available to thoroughly investigate any allegations and to enable proactive risk-based testing to be 

conducted during the year. Counter Fraud, Bribery and corruption awareness training has been delivered 

to all managers and to members. Training is also being delivered to individual teams on a rolling basis; 6 

teams were provided with training during 2019/20. The Council has implemented a new cloud-based system 

of meta compliance and in 2019 all employees were asked to confirm that they have read and understood 

the Fraud Response Plan; a questionnaire was included to confirm employees’ understanding. A review of 

fraud risks and mitigating controls across all Council departments was completed in 2018/19; this resulted in 

a Substantial level of assurance. The Council’s approach to assessing fraud risks, and its fraud awareness 

training arrangements, have been recognised and published as examples of best practice in Local 

Government.  

A framework of corporate values and behaviours was implemented in early 2017/18. There is a high 

commitment to embedding the values across the organisation. A behaviours document was issued to all 

officers with a covering letter and compliance is mandatory. There are five core corporate values: Customer 

First, Act with Respect, Nurture People, Drive Excellence, and Own It, (CANDO). In line with the values all 

members of staff are expected to have regular one to one meetings with their line manager at which 

success is recognised and any concerns regarding conduct are also raised. Such meetings are expected 

to take place monthly unless agreed by exception with the relevant head of service. This process also 

ensures that staff development needs are considered on a rolling basis rather than once or twice per year. 

Customer Care training is mandatory for all staff in accordance with the Council’s value of putting 

“customers first”. 

Rolling licensing committee training has been provided to members leading to a clearer evaluation of 

prosecution cases. The Council has invested in the provision of enhanced regulatory training to planning 

committee members leading to a greater awareness and understanding when making decisions, and a 

reduction in appeals.  

Recognising success is built in to the one to one process and notable successes are celebrated at employee 

briefing sessions and at the Corporate Management Forum. An online “Praise” system is in place which 

enables employees who have excelled to receive a praise “badge” in recognition of their contribution. The 

various categories are “Customer First”, “Team Player”, “Owned It”, “Problem Solver”, “Drove Excellence”, 

“Nurtured People”, and “Above and Beyond”. All officers who received “Above and Beyond” badges were 

considered by the Corporate Management Forum, who voted for the best 3 examples of excellence with 

the winners being recognised with a small reward. 

The Council’s information security procedures are comprehensive. An Information Governance Group is in 

place comprising the Head of Communities and Homes (CIO – Chief Information Officer and Senior 

Information Risk Owner – SIRO), the Communication Consultation and Information Manager (Data 

Protection Officer), the Corporate ICT Manager and the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager. 
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Personal data breaches and near misses are reported to the communications, consultation, and information 

team for triage, and are then referred to the Information Governance Group. The Group decides on what 

further action to take, which may include making a statutory report to the Information Commissioner. There 

were no such cases during 2019/20. During 2019/20 the Group has made progress in several areas including 

development of an Information Management framework, training, and developing and implementing a 

clear desk policy. This progress followed an internal audit review completed in 2018/19. A decision was also 

taken to procure cyber insurance to help protect the Council from adverse impacts arising from a cyber-

attack. Furthermore, with the emergence of the COVID 19 pandemic towards the end of the financial year 

and an associated increase in cyber-attacks and phishing scams, the Council urgently reviewed the 

robustness of its information security framework and took the decision to upgrade its systems to reduce the 

likelihood of a successful attack. Staff were also provided with additional instructions about sharing 

information, locking screens, and protecting passwords whilst working in a more agile way during the 

pandemic. 

The Council is moving towards an increasingly agile workforce, with technological developments enabling 

more employees to work remotely and/ or at home. The COVID 19 pandemic has accelerated this process 

with approximately 60% of staff currently working at home. This was a step change in the Council’s way of 

working and digital means have enabled Council services to continue being effectively provided during the 

pandemic. Whilst there are codes of conduct in place for members and officers, the IT Code of Conduct 

requires updating to reflect the increasing number of agile workers. Furthermore, The Council is developing 

an agile working policy to ensure there is a consistent framework in place for all staff. Management of such 

working practices will also be incorporated, and the IT Code of Conduct is also being updated. In the 

meantime, whilst the formal agile working policy is being developed, instructions have been issued to staff 

and these are accessible on the Intranet. See Action 1. 

 

 

PRINCIPLE B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

Arrangements in place 

• The Council publishes a range of information including meeting agendas and reports, financial and 

procurement data, invitations to tender, senior officer salaries, the contracts register, annual 

governance statement and financial statements, corporate performance information, planning 

applications and decisions and section 106 agreements. 

• Records are retained detailing any decisions taken by officers using their delegated authority, including 

the rationale. Such decisions are also published. 

• The strategic risk register is scrutinised by the Audit & Ethics Committee with open reporting to Cabinet.  

• The Council consults widely and comprehensively with stakeholders on its proposals. Wider engagement 

takes place via the West Midlands Combined Authority and the Local Enterprise Partnership. 

• There is a Scrutiny Committee work programme in place, with members of the public invited to 

recommend topics and attend annual work planning meetings. 

• A Forward Plan is in place setting out what consultation will be undertaken in advance of decisions being 

made, and with whom. 
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• The Council holds an Equality & Diversity “excellent” accreditation and Equality Impact Assessments 

(EIA’s) are completed for Council decisions. A register of EIA’s is in place and kept up to date. 

• A communications strategy is in place. 

• Customer feedback procedures are in place. 

• Active engagement with employees takes place in several ways including through a bi-annual survey, 

regular employee briefings, core briefs, and the corporate management forum and through the Joint 

Union Consultation Forum. 

• Employment policies are developed in consultation with staff and trade unions. 

• Cross party working parties are operated as an additional measure which ensures engagement with all 

members on key Council decisions.  

 

Effectiveness and future developments 

Equality and diversity training is mandatory for all staff and Equality Impact Assessments are a key element 

of the Council’s decision making. A revised template for completing the assessments has been put in place 

and all managers have received training to ensure that the assessments are carried out in a consistent 

manner. In 2020/21 the Council will be seeking to be retain its “excellent” Equalities & Diversity accreditation. 

This will take the form of a self-assessment followed by independent review and verification by the Local 

Government Association. In 2018/19 the Council commissioned Warwickshire Pride to conduct a survey on 

the experiences of the Rugby borough LGBT+ community. The results indicated that the LGBT+ community 

did not feel comfortable that Rugby is a friendly place for them. The results of the survey were analysed, and 

an action plan was developed jointly with Warwickshire Pride, the police, and the county council. This action 

plan has been delivered and this included provision of mandatory LGBT+ training to Council employees and 

Councillors during 2019/20. In addition, Rugby Art Gallery and Museum has partnered up with Warwickshire 

Pride to work on an exhibition linked to local experiences. The project will begin in 2020/21 after the current 

lockdown is lifted.  

The Council uses a range of approaches to engage with communities including through associations, 

forums, leafletting, parish councils, drop in events, Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, the website, surveys, and 

face to face. The current COVID 19 pandemic has enabled use of the more innovative means of 

communication to be maximised. There is a contract with language line to support any face to face 

communication issues and the Council accesses the Warwickshire County Council interpretation and 

translation service to translate written documents. The Council is a partner of Warwickshire Observatory, 

which provides information and intelligence about Warwickshire and its people. The information provided 

was used to inform the Council’s vision for Rugby Town Centre and to inform the development of the 

Corporate Strategy for 2017-20. The information is also used by staff when completing Equality Impact 

Assessments, which helps to ensure that decisions are taken after due consideration of the potential impacts 

across the community. 

Following an extensive consultation which generated over 6,000 submissions, the Local Plan was approved 

by the Council in April 2019. The Council also approved the Supplementary Planning Document for Coton 

Park East – delivering on the allocation set out in the Local Plan. The Council is also consulting on the South 

West Rugby Supplementary Planning Document with engagement across a broad spectrum of 

stakeholders. The Statement of Community Involvement was updated in October 2019, reflecting 
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consultation on neighbourhood plans. During 2020/21 the Council will be working towards delivery of the 

Local Plan to meet housing and employment objectives. 

2019/20 saw the Council launch its ambitious masterplan detailing a range of improvements to the 

recreation ground at Featherbed Lane including a picnic area, wildflower meadows and dozens of trees. 

The Council then launched a public consultation to invite residents to communicate what they thought 

about the plans. Following this the Council will now finalise the plan before looking to secure funding for the 

project. 

The decant of Rounds Gardens is in progress, which involves some 186 flats across 3 blocks in addition to 

sheltered accommodation. The Council is taking the same approach applied successfully for the decant of 

Biart Place with extensive communication, knowing the tenants and understanding what they need and 

ensuring there is suitable alternative housing. Project planning is robust and effective – working closely with 

the Council’s registered provider partners and the private sector. Flexibility is being applied by the Council 

to offer additional support to tenants where it is needed. There is also ongoing engagement with 

stakeholders in relation to the future of the Biart Place and Rounds Gardens sites, including wider business 

and community consultation.  

Rugby Art Gallery and Museum consults with audiences and community groups to ensure services are 

responsive to local needs and reflective of the local community. In 2019/20 a new partnership was 

developed with young carers; consultation resulted in visits and workshops being designed around their 

needs. Rugby Art Gallery and Museum has long term partnerships with the Benn Partnership Centre and Age 

UK to engage socially isolated adults and adults living with dementia in creative and stimulating 

experiences. Activities are constantly adapted following participant feedback. During the current Covid-19 

Lockdown this work was transferred to digital resources with art packs distributed to participants via partners, 

the Shielding Hub and the Food Bank. 

 

PRINCIPLE C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits 

Arrangements in place 

• Approved Corporate Strategy in place covering the period 2017-2020, and which was subject to a 

public consultation exercise.  

• Medium Term Financial Plan is regularly reviewed and updated, with the latest iteration presented to 

Cabinet in February 2020. 

• Cabinet and Committee reports set out the potential impacts of changes on stakeholders.  

• Strategic and operational risk registers are in place, and a register of corporate risks has been drafted 

for approval.  

• A “clean” Value for Money opinion was received from the external auditors in 2019. 

• As part of plans to ensure the Council is fit for the future, decisions are taken for the long term including 

the implementation of green waste charges, digitalisation of services and internal processes, a forward 

plan for the Rugby Art Gallery and Museum, and through the commercialisation agenda. 

• The Council has declared a climate emergency and has committed to address its impact on the 

climate. 

• The Council consults widely on its proposals considering the economic, social, and environmental 

impacts of plans, policies, and decisions. 
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• There is a clear vision for Rugby Town Centre including an action plan and marketing plan. 

• All planning and development decisions are considered openly and transparently in terms of their 

economic, social, and environmental benefits and impacts. 

Effectiveness and future developments 

The Family Lifestyle Programme came to the end of its 4-year programme funding with Public Health 

Warwickshire in October 2019. The Change Maker programme has successfully delivered a 9-week family 

weight management programme to families across Warwickshire to support them in living healthy 

lifestyles. The team successfully hit their objectives of supporting 200+ families every year. The service was 

merged with the School Health and Wellbeing Service due to a re-structure within Public Health Warwickshire 

and Warwickshire County Council. Rugby Borough Council Sport and Recreation team created a 

partnership with Compass for a joint application and were successfully awarded the new 9-year contract 

that began in November 2019. 

 

The Play Ranger service continued to evolve its community offer with the introduction of a new Forest School 

programme. This has been developed with internal Play Rangers who actively deliver the programme for 

Boughton Leigh Junior School, with Cawston Grange Primary School requesting the service upon completion 

of their new school forest area. National Playday is an annual event delivered on Whitehall Recreation 

Ground and reached approximately 1,500 attendees over the course of 4 hours. The event is always 

welcomed by the community and well supported with various organisations and activities on offer.  

 

The Council’s social inclusion programme continues to develop with a strong 2019 seeing £120,000 of income 

generated from schools fees and charges and community funding and support from partners such as Hill 

Street Community Centre, Orbit Housing, Brownsover Community Association, Long Lawford Parish Council 

and Fareham Youth Trust. Youth Clubs continue to be delivered across Brownsover, Overslade, Hillmorton, 

Long Lawford and Hill Street Community Centre, with each Club having between 15 and 60 young people 

accessing youth services and diversionary activities. 

 

The programme of events for The Benn Hall continues to develop and evolve as the venue becomes a 

significant entertainment venue in the Town Centre. The venue reached over 95% capacity for several 

events, whilst additional Christmas Party Evenings were added due to increasing attendance. Local theatre 

productions from local promotor Five Star Entertainment saw 1000+ visitors over the show period for 'Annie', 

with similar attendances for 'The Wind in The Willows'. The venue continues to provide support to the local 

community with the provision of hall hire for groups and organisations, including annual celebration events 

such as Rugby Town Juniors football presentation evening. Blood donation continues to take place at The 

Benn Hall as a regular booking, and this has been maintained throughout the Covid-19 crisis. 

 

The Queens Diamond Jubilee Centre is the only Council owned leisure centre within the Rugby borough, 

operated in partnership with GLL under their brand 'Better'. The Centre provides gym, swim, spa, and sports 

hall activities across a range of membership options to be accessible to the whole community. The Centre's 

Swim School continues to offer a strong performing programme with over 2,100 registered members. This is 

supported by an average of 3,100 pre-paid members who may access the various options of gym only, swim 

only or full membership. On an annual basis the Centre takes a team of Rugby participants to the Olympic 

Park, London to take part in the GLL Games. Here all GLL centres offer their members the opportunity to take 

part in a variety of competitions inside an Olympic venue and participants get to enjoy competing against 

other regional teams.  
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The new Brownsover community facility has identified plans to expand activities for the community. The key 

areas of focus are provision of an internet café, tackling the skills gap and access to work, financial services, 

housing support and the credit union, providing access to health and wellbeing services in partnership with 

the new medical centre, and providing a space that can be hired for children’s parties. 

 

There are a wide range of activities across the Council’s various independent living schemes, including 

indoor curling, breakfast clubs, bingo, knit and natter groups and armchair yoga. In addition, during 2019/20 

the Council worked with Public Health to host several wellbeing days, where general health checks and 

nutrition advice was given, along with general tips for keeping well. Attendees were also offered 12 weeks 

free membership of Slimming World, if appropriate. 

 

Work has been ongoing to implement the Council’s housing strategy. Priorities have been the provision of 

new affordable homes to meet community need and progressing the decant of Rounds Gardens. The main 

conduit for delivering new homes was the delivery of S106 homes by Registered Providers. The Council also 

continued to grow its portfolio of housing via S106 and the open market. In 2019/20 the Council worked with 

Orbit, Clarion, Citizen, Midland Heart, SAGE, Sanctuary and Bromford to build 228 new affordable homes. In 

addition, the Council built and acquired 33 new homes for rent. The Tenant Representative Panel has 

developed its core range of activities to take on more of a scrutiny role through – pre-letting inspections, 

communal cleaning inspections, estate walkabouts and the creation of a new readers panel. They have 

also contributed to a review of the conditions of tenancy and the tenant handbook. 

The Rugby Lotto, launched in May 2019, provides the voluntary and community sector with the opportunity 

to raise funds to achieve their objectives. The scheme is currently generating approximately £34,500 in 

revenue per annum for the sector in Rugby. The cost of running the Lotto is limited to the renewal of the 

annual Gambling Commission Licence, membership of the Lotteries Council and the occasional bolt-on 

prize as a marketing tool. Officers assess the eligibility of organisations to join the Lotto, but this is not onerous. 

An additional Service Level Agreement has been put in place with the Long Lawford Community Association 

for £7,500 per annum for the period 2020-22, utilising funding from the Council’s allocation due from the 

proceeds of the Rugby Lotto. Pawprints Dog Rescue, which helped with the lotto launch campaign, has 

benefited to the tune of £4,500 during the first year - a much-needed contribution towards the charity's 

veterinary bills. 

 

In 2019/20 the Parks & Grounds service received several accolades including: 

• Heart of England in Bloom – Gold medal award in the small city category and overall winner in the Heart 

of England region. 

• Britain in Bloom – Silver Gilt award. 

• DEFRA Bees Needs Awards – the Council received 3 awards for all its efforts in helping to sustain 

pollinators. The awards were for all its efforts to sustain pollinators at Centenary Park, Gladstone Green, 

and the urban meadow project.   

• Green Flag Awards – these are the international standard for parks and green spaces and the Council 

again received 5 awards for Caldecott Park (for the 12th consecutive year), Centenary Park, Millennium 

Green, Rainsbrook Cemetery and Crematorium, and Gladstone Green Pocket Park. 

During this year the Council has implemented changes to its grounds maintenance service following a 

review to ensure that it is operating efficiently whilst still delivering a cost-effective service for residents. The 

Council has also spent a considerable amount of time working with Planning colleagues, examining the 

Local Plan to ensure these areas provide environmental benefits such as opens spaces for new and 

emerging communities. 
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The Council has provided a pivotal role so far in the provision of support to the community during the COVID 

19 pandemic including operating the local Foodbank, a Shielding Hub, providing additional Council Tax 

support and paying grant refunds to businesses. 

The COVID 19 pandemic also led to a spike in demand in for the Customer Advice and Support service. The 

merging of this service has helped enable those in crisis to be dealt with more effectively with a joined-up 

approach to their needs. The Council has also provided additional support to rough sleepers including the 

provision of temporary accommodation. The development of Rugby Pathway is the next step in this area – 

looking at customers with complex needs and entrenched rough sleepers. The Rugby Pathway will provide 

a wraparound support service including mental health and addiction problems and helping with access to 

health service support.  

A restructuring of the Community Wardens was completed which provided a major service improvement 

for residents and businesses with the wardens now providing community-based customer services 7 days per 

week. Services include responding to anti-social behaviour, nuisance, dog warden services, car park 

support, and enforcement. The service has been extended to support other teams within the council that 

do not have out of hours cover. 

2019/20 saw a 60% increase in group visits on the previous year to the World Rugby Hall of Fame and The 

Rugby Town welcomed visitors from 38 different countries to the Hall of Fame and guided walking tours. In 

December 2019 World Rugby and the Council launched the international and national marketing 

campaign ‘Destination Rugby’. 2019/20 was also Rugby World Cup year and 535 school children visited the 

Hall of Fame, representing a 192% increase on the previous year. 

On 18 July 2019, the Council declared a climate emergency. In early 2020 Rugby Art Gallery and Museum 

staged the exhibition Fools Gold, by artists Pamela Schilderman and Hayley Harrison, interrogating climate 

change and the value of materials; challenging local audiences to engage in the conversations and 

pledge personal action. 

Finally, the Council is working to develop affordable funeral services for those who would otherwise be in 

funeral poverty, whilst ensuring such services provide a dignified funeral. Work is ongoing to source a suitable 

funeral director for these services. 

 

PRINCIPLE D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of intended outcomes 

Arrangements in place 

• The Council manages performance through published local and management performance indicators; 

this enables intervention to be targeted where it is needed. 

• The service planning process is designed to ensure that the Council targets the actions necessary to 

deliver the Corporate Strategy. 

• The corporate performance management system (RPMS) is used to monitor the delivery of action plans. 

• There are four distinct service areas with a Head of Service and dedicated member portfolio holder for 

each area. 

• Committee and Cabinet reports set out the risks and options associated with decisions. 
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• A “clean” Value for Money opinion was received from the external auditors in 2019 and the Contract 

Standing Orders and financial instructions are designed to ensure best value. 

• Quarterly finance and performance reports are submitted to and reviewed by Cabinet. 

• An annual budget report is submitted and there is an established budget setting and monitoring process. 

• The Medium-Term Financial Plan is regularly reviewed and updated, with the latest iteration covering the 

period 2020 – 2024 was endorsed by Cabinet in February 2020. 

• Approved Asset Management Strategy in place. 

• The Council consults widely on its proposals considering the economic, social, and environmental 

impacts of plans, policies, and decisions. 

• There is a Forward Plan of key decisions and scrutiny committee arrangements in place. 

• A customer feedback procedure is in place. 

• Key corporate projects, for example digitalisation, the housing management system, and the corporate 

asset management system, have governance boards in place to provide oversight and ensure effective 

delivery. 

Effectiveness and future developments 

As part of the corporate strategy the Council has continued to facilitate investment and growth in Rugby. 

This is evidenced by further progress in developing the site of the old Rugby Radio Station; the primary school 

is open along with a major link road, and the secondary school is expected to open in Autumn 2020. The 

Council is also working in partnership with Warwickshire County Council to develop a sustainable transport 

plan for the Borough, including where interventions could be made to expand road capacity in Rugby. 

Route optimisation software is being implemented for refuse services; this will ensure that refuse rounds are 

completed in a more efficient manner requiring fewer rounds to be completed. The software will result in an 

improved customer experience as reports of missed bins will be addressed more quickly. It is expected that 

significant financial savings will also be realised, helping to ensure that the Council has the funds available 

to achieve the corporate strategy outcomes.  

An approved Asset Management Strategy is in place to facilitate delivery of the Corporate Strategy priority 

of “optimising the use of our land and assets”. A new Corporate Asset Management System is being 

implemented to enable better management and utilisation of the Council’s assets. The strategy sets out the 

high-level integrated vision of the Council’s approach to all its property assets both in terms of operational 

land and buildings, and affordable housing and land. There are five key principles set out in the strategy: 

• Acquire or develop homes to meet the housing service strategy and customer needs. 

• Dispose of small and difficult parcels of land to free up cash and staff resources. 

• Ensure statutory, health & safety and disability compliance of all Council built environment assets. 

• Ensure efficient and effective space, energy usage, and sustainability within the Council’s built assets 

to maximise value; and 

• Efficient and effective asset management systems and internal communication procedures. 

The Council led the bid to Central Government to set up and run a Warwickshire wide pilot service to prevent 

homelessness at an early stage. This way of working was new and untested in a Local Authority environment. 

PHIL (Preventing Homelessness Improving Lives) has now completed 224 preventions, compared with 50 by 

the end of last year. This has been achieved through setting up an enhanced partnership working approach 

including receiving referrals from partnership agencies, sending out regular correspondence to partners 
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through a newsletter, having a social media presence, facilitating an online housing options self-assessment 

tool and presenting at strategic meetings. The project is governed by the Warwickshire Heads of Housing 

Board (WHOH). Work is ongoing to evaluate the costs and benefits of the project and to determine future 

longer-term plans.  

The Council has continued to support the Business Improvement District by providing match funding for town 

centre events including the Food Festival, Bike Fest, Christmas Lights Switch on and the Festival of Culture. 

A Private Sector Housing Charter has been developed outlining what residents should expect from a private 

sector landlord. Public Space Protection Orders have continued to be reviewed particularly in relation to 

nuisance behaviour in alleyways and the Licensing team has been inspecting vehicles used in school 

transport, resulting in the removal of unsafe vehicles. 

The Council has pledged to improve the quality of its digital services and technology and has begun to 

reshape its capability to deliver that change. The creation of a Digital Board and a new Digital Strategy will 

form a road map of digital change and culture throughout the Council. By using the digital-by-default 

model, the Council will demonstrate how digital innovation, data and technology will help its services thrive. 

The strategy sets a clear vision and direction for how digital design, data and technology will support the 

Council’s ambitions as a council to work differently, deliver the Corporate Strategy, and make lasting 

changes to how the Council meets more of its community’s needs, quicker and more conveniently and 

making sure that it does so inclusively, leaving nobody behind in the process. In line with this strategy, a new 

contact management system is being implemented to bring together and enhance the Council’s online 

service offer, improving the website as a place for doing business with the Council online. 

Finally, the Council is currently working to develop a new Corporate Strategy as a matter of priority and 

considering the dramatically changed climate within which the Council is now operating due to the 

COVID 19 pandemic. The new Corporate Strategy is expected to cover the 3-year period from 2021 to 

2024. 

 

PRINCIPLE E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals 

within it 

Arrangements in place 

• Each member of the senior management team undertakes professional development appropriate to 

their role. 

• The respective roles of the Executive Director and Leader are clearly defined. 

• The senior management team meets formally every two weeks and informally every week and Cabinet 

meets on a regular basis.  

• Section 151 (Chief Finance) Officer, Monitoring Officer, and Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO/ CIO – 

Chief Information Officer) are in post.  

• The Constitution, which was revised and updated in December 2018, sets out roles and responsibilities 

and the Council’s decision-making process. An approved scheme of delegation is in place. Contract 

Standing Orders and associated toolkits are in place and are designed to ensure procurement activity 

is cost effective and ethical. 

• Registers of gifts, hospitality, and conflicts of interest in place. 

• Updated protocol in place setting out the relationship between and roles of members and officers. 
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• Member training and development programme in place (and currently under review), including 

dedicated training for planning and licensing committee members. 

• HR Strategy approved in April 2018. 

• Thorough induction processes are in place for all new employees and members, linked to the corporate 

values. 

• Job profiles clearly set out the responsibilities of officers throughout the organisation. 

• Learning and Development Strategy and Corporate Learning Group in place. 

• There is a system of regular team meetings and one to one meetings between managers and staff. 

• Employee health and wellbeing days are arranged, and confidential employee counselling support is 

always available. 

• A comprehensive suite of training and development courses is offered to all employees. 

• All managers are expected to complete the “Way We Manage” training programme. 

• Corporate Management Forum in place, where managers work together to review what has gone well 

and where the Council can do better. 

• The Council has a comprehensive suite of HR policies covering employee capability, disciplinary, 

recruitment and selection, disciplinary and grievance, and flexible working. 

• An established Corporate Apprenticeship Scheme in place. 

• Where projects are required, teams are put in place based upon the skills and experience available. 

• The Council develops the capacity of community and voluntary groups to become more self-sufficient. 

• The Council participates in the Local Authority Challenge. 

Effectiveness and future developments 

The Council has a Corporate Apprenticeship scheme and there have been 47 apprentices since the 

scheme started in 2011. The apprentices provide a range of valuable support to various Council services 

whilst undergoing a structured programme of self-development and qualifications. 

Over 100 managers have completed the Council’s “Way We Manage” corporate training programme. This 

is a significant investment in the workforce. The training includes governance issues such as financial 

management, performance management, health and safety and procurement procedures. The 

programme is being reviewed and updated, and the opportunity has been taken during the COVID 19 

pandemic to successfully deliver some modules of this training online via digital means. 

The HR Strategy was approved in April 2018 and is aligned with the corporate strategy and values and 

behaviours framework. There are six key principles set out within the strategy: 

• Attract and retain a “CANDO” workforce. 

• Develop leadership. 

• Build workforce skills and capability. 

• Nurture employee engagement and wellbeing. 

• Continuous review of terms & conditions and remuneration; and 

• Provide an excellent HR service. 

A consistent format is in place for one to one meetings between managers and staff. A standard agenda is 

in use which enables staff development needs to be identified and addressed throughout the year rather 

than at six monthly or yearly intervals. Furthermore, the training material is aligned to corporate values. The 

content of the “Way We Manage” training programme is being reviewed to ensure it enables managers to 

have the right skills to drive excellence. The management training programme has also been extended to 
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include a formal management qualification.  The Council has also introduced a new programme – The Way 

We Work – for new employees to ensure they have all the information about the Council and the skills set to 

offer excellent services to customers.  

The COVID 19 pandemic has also led to a step change in the way the Council works, with Council services 

able to continue being delivered digitally and remotely. Officers have made use of modern technology, for 

example by having virtual instead of face to face meetings 

The Corporate Learning Group meets bi-monthly and includes portfolio representatives who agree jointly on 

the approach to learning and development activity.  

Implementation of the Counter Fraud Strategy and Fraud Response Plan has led to a more consistent 

approach to investigation of irregularities across the Council and improved awareness amongst staff. This 

included the provision of investigative training to four additional managers, which has improved the 

resilience of the fraud investigation function. Counter Fraud, Bribery and corruption awareness training was 

delivered to managers and members in 2018 and a rolling programme of training for individual teams is in 

place. 

The Council has implemented an employee forum and appointed mental health first aiders. These people 

have been trained in how to spot the signs and symptoms of mental ill health and provide help on a first aid 

basis. In the same way as learning physical first aid, Mental Health First Aiders know how to recognise those 

crucial warning signs of mental ill health and feel confident to guide someone to appropriate support. This 

initiative encourages people to talk more freely about mental health, reducing stigma and creating a more 

positive culture.  

During the COVID 19 pandemic some 60% of the Council’s employees have been working from home and 

an increased emphasis has been placed on mental health during this time, with staff encouraged to reach 

out to each other on a regular basis. Regular communications have been issued including guidance on 

how to keep well whilst working from home, and free access to online counselling has also been provided. 

The COVID 19 pandemic has also led to a step change in the way the Council works, with Council services 

able to continue being delivered digitally and remotely. Officers have made use of modern technology, for 

example by having virtual instead of face to face meetings. Officers have also shown a very high level of 

dedication and flexibility, with many taking on additional duties or being redeployed to support the front 

line, as well as dealing with their own personal challenges created by the pandemic. 
As indicated above, the member training programme is currently being reviewed to ensure there is effective 

engagement and that members are developed to fulfil their roles as effectively as possible. Some 

improvements have been implemented in 2019/20, for example the provision of scrutiny, licensing, and 

planning committee training. Equalities and diversity training was also delivered virtually, and this was very 

well attended. The revised training programme will focus on the key governance areas and the opportunity 

is being taken to apply lessons learned during the COVID 19 pandemic by exploring the provision of more 

online member training. See Action 2.   

 

PRINCIPLE F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial 

management 

Arrangements in place 
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• The Council has a risk management strategy in place which was reviewed and updated in February 

2019. Strategic and operational risk registers are in place; the strategic risk register was redesigned in 

February 2020. Senior management, Audit & Ethics Committee, Cabinet, Strategic Risk Management 

Group, and the Health & Safety Members Working Party, all oversee the risk management arrangements. 

• A regular risk assessment of the Council’s financial reserves and balances is conducted. Key risks are 

identified, and potential financial impacts are quantified. Reserves are reviewed annually in the context 

of the risk assessments. 

• A new Medium-Term Financial Strategy was approved in April 2018 and an updated Medium-Term 

Financial Plan was presented to Cabinet in February 2020. 

• Financial information is published on a regular basis and established and embedded budget setting and 

monitoring procedures are in place. 

• Cabinet and Committee system in place including two scrutiny committees and an Audit & Ethics 

Committee with independent Chair and Vice Chairs. 

• Training is provided to all members of the Audit & Ethics, Scrutiny, Planning and Licensing Committees to 

ensure that they are suitably skilled to carry out their role effectively. 

• Counter fraud strategy, fraud response plan and confidential reporting code in place. 

• The internal audit service provides an independent and objective annual report and opinion. 

• Service planning and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) have been developed in line with the Corporate 

Strategy. 

• A corporate system is used to monitor, manage, and report performance and conduct verification 

checks on the quality of data. Performance data is reported quarterly to Cabinet and is reviewed by a 

scrutiny committee. 

• Data sharing protocols are in place where applicable. 

 

 

Effectiveness and future developments 

The annual report of the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager provides a Substantial level of 

assurance that the Council has an adequate and effective control environment in place. The Internal Audit 

Service uses Risk Based Internal Auditing (RBIA), which is recognised as best practice. The work of internal 

audit is aligned closely with the aims and risk profile of the Council and the service is responsive to emerging 

issues and risks.  

A Data Maturity assessment was completed and overall, the Council scored a basic level of performance 

management and data maturity, with elements of Intermediate. A Data Maturity Improvement action plan 

has been developed and some actions to elevate the Council’s maturity level are already in progress. One 

of those requirements was an assessment of the quality of data used to inform Key Performance Indicators 

(KPIs). A Data Quality Assurance Programme had been developed by the Corporate Assurance & 

Improvement team; of 198 measures reviewed in 2019/20 169 (85%) were provided with a high or substantial 

level of assurance. The overall score of the Self-Assessment was broken down into five areas. Data Use 

(scored Basic), Data Culture (scored Basic), Data Management (scored Basic), Data Skills (scored 

Intermediate) and Data Governance (scored Intermediate). The key actions planned for 2020/21 (see 

Action 9) include: 
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• A review of service objectives to ensure they are clearly defined and relevant. This is key to ensuring that 

data captured and reported is relevant to those objectives. 

• A full evaluation of each department’s data maturity, including any data which is captured and used 

to support decision making outside of the Rugby Performance Management System (RPMS). 

• Automation of the capture and reporting of data, which will free up resource to focus on the value-

added work of reviewing data and using it to drive performance improvement across the organisation. 

Alongside this a review will be completed to identify any data analysis skills gaps. 

Further progress has been made during 2019/20 to implement the Risk Management Strategy. Recent risk 

management work has included: 

• A review and update of operational risk registers across the Council.  

• Development of a corporate risk register for managing the implications of the COVID 19 pandemic for 

the organisation. This helps to provide assurance that the Council has considered the potential impacts 

of COVID 19, that appropriate controls have been established to monitor and manage COVID 19 

related risks, and that appropriate action is being taken to manage the likelihood of risks materialising, 

and the associated impacts. Appropriate steps are also being taken to prepare for the recovery of the 

organisation, the town and local economy and the environment. This work will feed into the Council’s 

new Corporate Strategy for 2021 to 2024. 

• An external review of the ICT risk register,  

• Development of guidance to support managers in reviewing and updating their operational risk 

registers using the RPMS system. 

 

Further work is planned during 2020/21 to implement the Risk Management Strategy (see Action 5) and this 

includes: 

• Delivery of internal audit assurance work in relation to the key controls declared on operational risk 

registers.  

• A review of the quality of operational risk registers, including ensuring their alignment with service 

objectives. 

• Provision of risk management advice in advance of key decisions being taken. This will help to ensure 

that key risks are considered in advance of decisions being taken, and that such decisions are more 

informed. 

• Finalisation of the corporate risk register, ensuring those risks which cut across service areas are 

coordinated and managed at the corporate level. 

The Medium-Term Financial Strategy sets out the measures being taken by the Council to prepare as far as 

possible for the future. The Council has continued to implement policies to support its route to financial self-

sufficiency. This includes ongoing work to understand the costs of running the various services and the 

benefits to customers, ensuring that services are run efficiently and effectively. Examples of outcomes from 

this work are the implementation of route optimisation software for the green waste service, ongoing 

implementation of the digitalisation programme, and installing audio visual in the Council Chamber, 

reducing administration expenditure. A review of fees and charges was also carried out during the year. The 

Council does, however, face considerable financial uncertainty particularly with the backdrop of the COVID 

19 pandemic and its impact on income and expenditure. 

Appendix A



 

150 

 

There are several projects being implemented to help the Council become financially self-sufficient by 

becoming a more efficient and effective organisation. These projects include: 

• Implementation of a new housing management system to provide an improved customer 

experience and deliver a digitally enabled service that residents can access. 

• Implementation of a new IT system called “Agile” in the Development Management and 

Enforcement service, enabling a more efficient process for staff and customers. 

• Route optimisation of the domestic and trade waste and recycling rounds. 

• Implementation of a corporate asset management system and the asset management strategy, 

including a review of the assets which the Council owns and strategically acquiring assets, for 

example to prevent homelessness. 

• Implementation of a new IT solution for the Licensing service. 

• A focus on promoting the use of digital channels by customers. 

• Working to set up a regional Materials Recycling Facility which will be Local Authority owned and 

operated. This is the first example of local authorities working together in this area. A governance 

framework is being set up for the project, which will involve working with partners to deliver best value 

recycling for the community. 

• A new 14 year rolling fleet replacement programme has been developed. 

An external review of the Council’s arrangements for managing health and safety for the waste, transport 

and parks services was carried out during the year, resulting in enhanced monitoring to ensure safe working 

for members of staff and the public. The Council is extending its in house health and safety expertise with 

one person currently studying for a professional qualification. Work has also been ongoing with the 

environment agency to provide assurance that statutory requirements are being met.  

The Council has developed the robustness of its emergency planning and business continuity arrangements 

during 2019/20; a new Joint Emergency Planning Officer is in place providing support and resilience to this 

function. A new emergency plan has been developed for approval, and a training exercise was conducted 

with the Senior Management Team. 

Finally, a new suite of key performance measures was established for Waste Services leading to better 

accountability. The Council achieved a 50% reduction in the number of missed bins, along with an increase 

in mixed recycling tonnage and the number of green waste service subscriptions.  

 

PRINCIPLE G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective 

accountability 

Arrangements in place 

• A range of information is published including an annual report of internal audit, the financial statements, 

the annual report of the external auditor and this annual governance statement, which contains an 

action plan demonstrating a commitment to continuous improvement. 

• All reports are subject to a robust internal review process to ensure they are presented in an 

understandable style. 

• The performance information set out in the financial statements is prepared in consideration of the 

presentational approach adopted by other similar authorities. 

• Performance data is reported quarterly to Cabinet and is reviewed by a scrutiny committee. 
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• There is an open data section on the Council’s website which includes details of senior officer salaries. 

• Independent scrutiny training provided to members, the Democratic Services team and senior 

management during 2019/20. 

• Implementation of external audit recommendations is monitored by the Financial Services Manager/ 

Interim Chief Finance Officer. 

• Implementation of internal audit recommendations is monitored by the Corporate Assurance and 

Improvement Manager and reported to senior management and the Audit & Ethics Committee. 

• The Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager is provided with direct unfettered access to the 

Chair and Vice Chairs of the Audit & Ethics Committee. 

• Internal audit plan coverage includes governance and ethics related audits, in line with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards. 

• The Council submits itself to external peer reviews including by the Local Government Association and 

has welcomed an equalities and diversity peer review and challenge. Action plans arising from these 

reviews are monitored by the senior management team. 

• Governance arrangements for jointly managed organisations and partnerships have been assessed by 

Internal Audit and a Substantial level of assurance was provided. 

• A follow up Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office visit to the Council concluded that satisfactory 

arrangements in place including a Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) policy. Training in the 

application of the RIPA policy is to be provided to officers in 2020/21. 

• Invitations to tender are published along with the contracts register. 

 

Effectiveness and future developments 

The Annual Audit Letter for 2018/19 provided assurance over the Council’s financial control and overall 

governance arrangements. 

The presentation of the Council’s financial statements is designed to make them easy to read and for 

stakeholders to understand. The design of this annual governance statement is also intended to make it 

easy to read, and it has been prepared in line with good practice guidelines published by the Chartered 

Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA).  

The internal audit service was subject to an external quality assessment in September 2017 which concluded 

that there were no areas of non-compliance with the public sector internal audit standards that would affect 

the overall scope or operation of the internal audit activity. A self-assessment conducted by the Corporate 

Assurance and Improvement Manager in May 2020 has concluded that the internal audit service continues 

to operate in general conformance with the standards. 

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) has published guidance on the function 

and operation of audit committees in local authorities. Self-assessment checklists and effectiveness 

evaluation forms were circulated to all members and named substitutes of the Audit & Ethics Committee, 

using the CIPFA guidance as a benchmark. This exercise highlighted several areas in which the effectiveness 

of the Audit & Ethics Committee could be enhanced. The Committee has formed a working group, to 

examine the opportunities for improvement and develop and implement an appropriate action plan. As 

part of this plan independent in-house training was procured with the intention being that this would support 

the Committee to maximise its effectiveness. This training was scheduled for June 2020 but is being 

rescheduled due to the COVID 19 pandemic. See action 6. 
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During the COVID 19 pandemic the Council has ensured continuity of decision making by applying the use 

of Emergency Powers as set out in the Constitution. During this time there have been regular Question and 

Answer sessions between senior management and members. Decisions taken under delegated authority 

have been published. The Council has implemented virtual meetings live streamed to the public, with 

recordings placed on the website, making them more accessible. These arrangements have ensured 

discipline and structure to the Council’s decision making during the pandemic. 

An internal audit review of compliance with the Local Government Transparency Code found that of the 

13 sets of mandatory information only 3 were being published in accordance with the code regarding both 

content and timeliness. There were 2 of these 13 areas where no data was being published at all. For the 

other 11 areas data was only partly published and/or was not being updated in accordance with the 

stipulated frequency under the code. There was no central schedule of publication held and no chase 

mechanism in place to ensure up to date information is obtained from the relevant departments on a 

regular basis. The report was considered in full by the Audit & Ethics Committee in January 2020 and a follow 

up internal audit review will be completed in 2020/21. See Action 7. 

 

6. PROGRESS ON DELIVERY OF LAST YEAR’S ACTION PLAN 

 Improvement Action Assessment of Progress 

1 Require all employees to confirm 

that they have read and 

understand the Counter Fraud, 

Bribery and Corruption Strategy and 

Fraud Response Plan. 

Completed 

2 Develop an Information 

Governance framework for the 

Council and implement the action 

plan arising from an internal audit 

review of Data Protection 

Governance. Ensure that the 

Information Governance Group 

reports periodically to the Senior 

Management Team on its activities 

and any significant issues and 

emerging risks. 

In Progress 

 

During 2019/20 the Information Governance 

Group has made progress in several areas 

including development of an Information 

Management framework, training, and 

developing and implementing a clear desk 

policy. A decision was also taken to procure 

cyber insurance to help protect the Council from 

adverse impacts arising from a cyber-attack. 

Furthermore, the Council took the decision to 

upgrade its systems to reduce the likelihood of a 

successful cyber-attack. Staff were also provided 

with additional instructions about sharing 

information, locking screens, and protecting 

passwords whilst working in a more agile way 

during the COVID 19 pandemic. 
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 Improvement Action Assessment of Progress 

3 Update the IT Code of Conduct to 

reflect the increasing number of 

agile workers. Develop and 

implement an agile working policy. 

In Progress 

 

The agile working policy is being developed and 

refined, considering the dramatic increase 

during the COVID 19 pandemic. The policy will 

be finalised along with the updated IT Code of 

Conduct as soon as practicable. 

4 Implement the action plan arising 

from the Warwickshire Pride survey 

of the Rugby borough LGBT+ 

community. Deliver LGBT+ training 

to all Council employees. 

Completed 

 

This included provision of mandatory LGBT+ 

training to officers and members. 

5 Publish the decisions which involve 

officers exercising their delegated 

authority, including the rationale. 

Completed 

6 Develop a financial inclusion 

strategy to support tenants. 

In Progress 

 

A draft of the new Strategy has been produced. 

The Council is also playing a leading role in the 

development of the new Warwickshire 

Homelessness Strategy, working in partnership 

with the County Council and Public Health to 

develop the financial inclusion chapter.  

7 Complete the internal audit review 

of customer feedback 

arrangements, including 

consideration of their effectiveness 

and how services measure 

customer satisfaction more widely 

outside of the formal system. Report 

the results of the audit back to the 

Council’s Operational Manager 

Group. 

Completed 

8 Review the member training 

programme, ensuring there is 

effective engagement and that 

members are developed to fulfil 

their roles as effectively as possible. 

In Progress 

 

Improvements have been implemented in 

2019/20, for example the provision of scrutiny, 
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 Improvement Action Assessment of Progress 

licensing, and planning committee training. 

Equalities and diversity training was also 

delivered virtually, and this was very well 

attended. The revised training programme will 

focus on the key governance areas and the 

opportunity is being taken to apply lessons 

learned during the COVID 19 pandemic by 

exploring the provision of more online member 

training. 

9 Publish the report summarising the 

Council’s performance against the 

corporate strategy in 2018/19 on 

the Council’s website alongside the 

financial statements. Finalise the 

agreed suite of KPIs for the 2019/20 

financial year. 

Completed 

10 Implement the Risk Management 

Strategy action plan. 

In Progress 

 

The work completed, and the further work 

planned for 2020/21, are set out under Principle E 

within this statement. 

11 Obtain approval for the corporate 

risk register from the Strategic Risk 

Management Group and submit it 

to the Audit & Ethics Committee for 

review. 

In Progress 

 

In recent months, the Strategic Risk Register and 

COVID 19 corporate risk register have been 

prioritised. Both have been completed, 

reviewed, and endorsed. The corporate risk 

register exists in draft form and will be 

reconsidered later in 2020 as part of the 

Council’s recovery planning once the immediate 

emergency COVID 19 response has passed. 

 

12 Develop and implement the 

programme of training for the 

scrutiny committee chairs, 

members, the Democratic Services 

team and senior management. 

Update the scrutiny area of the 

Completed 
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 Improvement Action Assessment of Progress 

Council’s website to encourage 

better public engagement. 

13 Develop and implement an action 

plan to enhance the effectiveness 

of the Audit & Ethics Committee. 

In Progress 

 

The Committee has formed a working group, to 

examine the opportunities for improvement and 

develop and implement an appropriate action 

plan. As part of this plan independent in-house 

training was procured with the intention being 

that this would support the Committee to 

maximise its effectiveness. This training was 

scheduled for June 2020 but is being 

rescheduled due to the COVID 19 pandemic. 

 

7. UPDATED ACTION PLAN 

 Action Lead officer Target 

completion 

date 

1 Finalise and cascade the agile working policy, 

along with the updated IT Code of Conduct. 

Head of 

Communities and 

Homes 

31/12/2020 

2 Complete the current review of the member 

training programme, ensuring there is effective 

engagement and that members are 

developed to fulfil their roles as effectively as 

possible. 

Legal, Democratic 

and Electoral 

Services Manager 

31/03/2021 

3 Rugby Art Gallery and Museum to deliver joint 

project with Warwickshire Pride. 

Arts Heritage and 

Visitor Services 

Manager 

30/11/2021 

4 Finalise, approve, and implement the new 

Information Governance Framework. 

Head of 

Communities and 

Homes 

31/12/2020 

5 Deliver the planned Risk Management work for 

2020/21, including finalisation of the corporate 

risk register. 

Corporate 

Assurance and 

Improvement 

Manager 

31/03/2021 
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6 Deliver independent Audit & Ethics Committee 

effectiveness training. 

Corporate 

Assurance and 

Improvement 

Manager 

31/03/2021 

7 Implement the action plan arising from the 

internal audit review of compliance with the 

Local Government Transparency Code. 

 

 

Communications, 

Consultation, and 

Information 

Manager 

30/09/2020 

 Action Lead officer Target 

completion 

date 

8 Finalise and implement the new Financial 

Inclusion strategy. 

Head of 

Communities and 

Homes 

 

31/03/2021 

9 Implement the Data Maturity action plan. Corporate 

Assurance and 

Improvement 

Manager 

31/03/2021 

 

8. SUMMARY, CONCLUSION AND CERTIFICATION 

 
8.1 Good governance is about running things properly. It is the means by which the Council shows it is 

taking decisions for the good of the people in the area, in a fair, equitable and open way. It also 

requires standards of behaviour that support good decision making – collective and individual 

integrity, openness, and honesty. It is the foundation for the delivery of good quality services that 

meet all local people’s needs. It is fundamental to showing public money is well spent. Without good 

governance the Council will struggle to deliver the outcomes set out in the corporate strategy.  

 

8.2 This statement has been considered by the Audit & Ethics Committee, which was satisfied that it is 

an accurate reflection of the governance framework and that the arrangements continue to be 

regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework. Several future 

developments have been highlighted and these are specifically addressed within the Action Plan. 

 

8.3 The Council is satisfied that its overall governance framework provides a substantial level of 

assurance of effectiveness, although several further development areas have been highlighted. 

Delivery of the Action Plan will be monitored during 2020/21. 
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8.4 Our overall assessment is that the Annual Governance Statement is a balanced reflection of the 

governance environment and that an adequate framework exists within the Council to ensure an 

effective internal control environment is maintained. We are also satisfied that there are appropriate 

plans in place to address any significant governance issues and will monitor their implementation 

and operation. 

 

 

 

 

Mannie Ketley - Executive Director 

 Date: 

 

 

 

 Councillor S Lowe - Leader of Rugby Borough Council 

 Date: 
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

 

Accruals Basis 

The accruals principle is that income is recorded when it is earned rather than when it is received, and 

expenses are recorded when goods or services are received rather than when the payment is made. 

 

Appointed Auditors 

From 1 April 2015 the appointment of External Auditors to Local Authorities is undertaken by Public Sector 

Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA), an independent company limited by guarantee and incorporated by 

the Local Government Association in August 2014. This role was previously undertaken by The Audit 

Commission. Grant Thornton is the Council’s appointed Auditor. 

 

Balances 

The balances of the Council represent the accumulated surplus of income over expenditure on any of the 

Funds. 

 

Capital Expenditure 

This is expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset, or expenditure, which adds to, and not merely 

maintains, the value of an existing fixed asset. 

 

Capital Receipts 

Income received from the sale of land or other capital assets, a proportion of which may be used to finance 

new capital expenditure, subject to the provisions contained within the Local Government Act 2003. 

 

Carrying Amount 

The Balance Sheet value recorded of either an asset or a liability. 

 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 

CIPFA is the leading professional accountancy body for public services. 

 

Code of Practice (the Code) 
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting determines how Local Authorities should interpret all 

issued Accounting Standards in the light of statutory legislation and guidance, in order to present fairly the 

accounts of a public body. 
 

Collection Fund 

The Council as a billing authority has a statutory obligation to maintain a separate Collection Fund. This 

shows the transactions of the Council in relation to the collection from taxpayers of council tax and Non-

Domestic Rates (NDR) and its distribution to local Government bodies and the Government. 

 

 

Community Assets 

These are non-current assets that the Council intends to hold in perpetuity which have no determinable finite 

useful life and, in addition, may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples include parks and historical 

buildings not used for operational purposes. 
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Contingent Liabilities or Assets 

These are amounts potentially due to or from individuals or organisations which may arise in the future but 

which at this time cannot be determined accurately, and for which provision has not been made in the 

Council’s Accounts. 

 

Creditors 

Amounts owed by the Council for work done, goods received, or services rendered, for which payment has 

not been made at the date of the balance sheet. 

 

Current Service Cost 

Current Service Cost is the increase in the present value of a defined benefit pension scheme’s liabilities 

expected to arise from employee service in the current period, i.e. the ultimate pension benefits “earned” 

by employees in the current year’s employment. 

 

Current Value 

The current value of an asset reflects the economic environment prevailing for the service or function the 

asset is supporting at the reporting date. 

 

Debtors 

These are sums of money due to the Council that have not been received at the date of the Balance 

Sheet 

 

Defined Benefit Scheme 

This is a pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme. Usually, the 

scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable and the benefits are not 

directly related to the investments of the scheme. The scheme may be funded or unfunded (including 

notionally funded). 

 

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 

MHCLG is a Central Government department with the overriding responsibility for determining the allocation 

of general resources to Local Authorities. 

 

Depreciation 

This is the measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful economic life of property 

plant and equipment assets. 

 

Derecognition 

Financial assets and liabilities will need to be removed from the Balance Sheet once performance under the 

contract is complete or the contract is terminated. 
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Earmarked Reserves 

The Council holds a number of reserves earmarked to be used to meet specific, known or predicted future 

expenditure. 

 

External Audit 

The independent examination of the activities and accounts of Local Authorities to ensure the Accounts 

have been prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and proper practices and to ensure the 

Council has made proper arrangements to secure value for money in its use of resources. 

 

Fair Value 

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell and asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

 

Finance Lease 

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset 

to the lessee. 

 

Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 

or equity instrument of another. The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both financial assets and financial 

liabilities and includes both the most straightforward financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables 

and trade payables and the most complex ones such as derivatives and embedded derivatives. 

 

Financial Regulations 

These are the written code of procedures approved by the Council, intended to provide a framework for 

proper financial management. Financial regulations usually set out rules on accounting, audit, 

administrative and budgeting procedures. 

 

General Fund 

This is the main revenue fund of the Council and includes the net cost of all services financed by local 

taxpayers and Government grants. 

 

Heritage Asset 

A tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that 

is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and culture. 

 

Housing Benefit 

This is an allowance to persons receiving little or no income to meet, in whole or part, their rent. Benefit is 

allowed or paid by Local Authorities but Central Government refunds part of the cost of the benefits and of 

the running costs of the services to Local Authorities. Benefits paid to the Council’s own tenants are known 

as rent rebate and that paid to private tenants as rent allowance. 
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Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

Local Authorities are required to maintain a separate account - the Housing Revenue Account - which sets 

out the expenditure and income arising from the provision of council housing. Other services are charged 

to the General Fund. 

 

Impairment 

A reduction in the value of assets below its value brought forward in the Balance Sheet. Examples of factors 

which may cause such a reduction in value include general price decreases, a significant decline in a fixed 

asset’s market value and evidence of obsolescence or physical damage to the asset. 

 

Infrastructure Assets 

Fixed Assets which generally cannot be sold and from which benefit can be obtained only by continued 

use of the asset created. Examples of such assets are highways, footpaths, bridges and water and drainage 

facilities. 

 

Intangible Assets 

These are assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and controlled by the Council. 

Examples include software, licenses and patent 

 

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 

Defined Accounting Standards that must be applied by all reporting entities to all financial statements in 

order to provide a true and fair view of the entity’s financial position, and a standardised method of 

comparison with financial statements of the other entities. 

16 

Inventories  

Amounts of unused or unconsumed stocks held in expectation of future use. Inventories are comprised of 

the following categories: 

• Goods or other assets purchased for resale 

• Consumable stores 

• Raw materials and components 

• Products and services in intermediate stages of completion 

• Finished goods 

 

Investment Properties 

Property, which can be land or a building or part of a building or both, that is held solely to earn rentals or 

for capital appreciation or both, rather than for operational purposes. 

 

Liabilities 

These are amounts due to individuals or organisations which will have to be paid at some time in the future.  

Current liabilities are usually payable within one year of the Balance Sheet date. 

 

Materiality 

Information is material if omitting it or misstating it could influence the decisions that users make on the basis 

of financial information about a specific reporting authority. 
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Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

This is a financial planning document that sets out the future years’ financial forecasts for the Council. It 

considers local and national policy influences and projects their impact on the general fund revenue 

budget, capital programme and HRA. 

 

Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 

This is the detail and assumptions behind the MTFS and is referred to when we are talking about the 

calculations in the MTFS. 

 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 

MRP is the minimum amount which must be charged to a Council’s revenue account each year and set 

aside as provision for credit liabilities, as required by the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 

Non- Domestic Rate (NDR) (also known as Business Rates) 

NDR is the levy on business property, based on a national rate in the pound applied to the ‘rateable value’ 

of the property. The Government determines national rate poundage each year which is applicable to all 

Local Authorities. 

 

Net Book Value (NBV) 

The amount at which non-current assets are included in the balance sheet, i.e. their historical cost or current 

value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation. 

 

Net Debt 

Net debt is the Council’s borrowings less cash and liquid resources. 

 

Net Realisable Value (NRV) 

NRV is the open market value of the asset in its existing use (or open market value in the case of non-

operational assets) less the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset. 

 

Operating Lease 

This is a type of lease, usually of computer equipment, office equipment, furniture, etc. where the balance 

of risks and rewards of holding the asset remains with the lessor. The asset remains the property of the lessor 

and the lease costs are revenue expenditure to the Council. 

 

Prior Period Adjustments 

These are material adjustments which are applicable to an earlier period arising from changes in accounting 

policies or for the correction of fundamental errors. 

 

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

PPE are tangible assets (i.e. assets that have physical substance) that are held for use in the production or 

supply of goods and services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be 

used during more than one year. 

 

Provisions 

Amounts set aside to meet liabilities or losses which it is anticipated will be incurred but where the amount 

and/or the timing of such costs are uncertain. 

 

Related Parties 
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Related parties are Central Government, other Local Authorities, precepting and levying bodies, subsidiary 

and associated companies, elected members, all senior officers from Director and above and the Pension 

Fund. For individuals identified as related parties, the following are also presumed to be related parties: 

• members of the close family, or the same household; and 

• partnerships, companies, trusts or other entities in which the individual, or member of their close family 

or the same household, has a controlling interest. 

 

Reporting Standards 

The Code of Practice prescribes the accounting treatment and disclosures for all normal transactions of a 

local authority. It is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Standards (IAS) 

and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) plus UK Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice (GAAP) and Financial Reporting Standards (FRS). 

 

Reserves 

Amounts set aside to help manage future risks, to provide working balances or that are earmarked for 

specific future expenditure priorities. 

 

Revaluation Reserve 

The Reserve records the accumulated gains on the non-current assets held by the Council arising from 

increases in value as a result of inflation or other factors (to the extent that these gains have not been 

consumed by subsequent downward movements in value). 

 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provision but that does not 

result in the creation of a non-current asset that has been charged as expenditure to the CIES. 

 

Section 106 (Developer) Contributions 

Planning obligations are legal contracts made under section 106 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning 

Act. They are generally entered into by agreement between councils and landowners. 

 

Treasury Management 

This is the process by which the Council controls its cash flow and its borrowing and lending activities. 

 

Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) 

A strategy prepared with regard to legislative and CIPFA requirements setting out the framework for treasury 

management activity for the Council. 

 

Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing 

This is borrowing for which no financial support is provided by Central Government. The borrowing costs are 

to be met from current revenue budgets. 

 

Useful Life  

The period over which the Council will derive benefits from the use of a non-current asset. 
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1. Overall message for 2019/20 

The “profit and loss” position for the council has moved from a deficit of £3.945m in 2018/19 
to a surplus of (£17.211m) in 2019/20. The movement of £21.156m is largely as a result of 
the calculated pension liability which has improved by £19.26m but does not represent a 
cash cost to the Council. 

The General Fund net cost of services has increased by £2.003m from 2018/19, this 
includes £1.026m of additional pension costs which includes the past service contributions 
relating to the McCloud case (£0.476m total for the Council) 

The HRA net cost of services has increased by £1.971m from 2018/19, this includes an 
additional charge of £0.969m as a result of increased depreciation and impairment of the 
assets held within the fund. This also includes £0.143m of additional pension costs which 
includes the past service contributions relating to the McCloud case (£0.476m total for the 
Council) 

The 2019/20 statement of accounts is largely unaffected by the Coronavirus pandemic  

The net asset position on the balance sheet has improved by £17.208m, as well as an 
improved pensions liability account, the council had the benefit of a large cash balances 
which was received in the form of grant from MHCLG to be paid to small businesses 
following the Coronavirus pandemic. The increase in borrowing during 2019/20 reflects a 
pivot towards longer-term debt to refinance the existing HRA Capital Financing Requirement 
and to fund future projects (redevelopment of multi-storey flat sites) in line with the strategy 
for 2019/20 – 2022/23 where value could 
be achieved. 

 

2. The audit preparation period 
Following the Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 the deadline 
for producing the draft statements is 31 August 2020 with the publication for the final, audited 
accounts moved to the 30 November 2020.  
 

The DRAFT accounts have now been published on our website and the external audit will 
begin on 30 June. Following the same process as 2018/19, the document management 
system “inflo” will be used to support the audit and working papers to support the accounts 
have already been shared with Grant Thornton. Due to the current situation with Coronavirus 
and with all of the Financial Services Team working from home, it is expected that the audit 
will be completed virtually rather than Grant Thornton being “on site” at the town hall. 
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In reading the accounts that there are places where there are rounding errors: please be 
assured that we understand the technique for removing these and will work systematically to 
do so after the audit is concluded. At the moment the tables are all ‘true’ i.e. they contain 
workings to many decimal places. 

 

3. Layout of the Statement of Accounts 
The statement of accounts document is in the same format as last year.  
Audit Committee are reminded that  
 
The Accounts comprise two main statements about the whole year – the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement and the Cashflow statement - and one which is a 
snapshot of the end of the year – the Balance Sheet. A number of figures throughout the 
accounts are estimates and not related to cash payments, some of them being the cause of 
sizeable differences between the management accounts and the final accounts such as 
valuations done by outside professionals of the value of our property, plant and equipment 
and pension fund assets and liabilities.  
 
The Narrative Report tells the story of the year from a financial and performance perspective 
and gives some context to the Accounts in terms of telling the reader about Rugby, its 
challenges and risks.  
 
After the Statement of Responsibilities, Section Two contains the main statements which 
comprise, Consolidated Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES), and then a statement 
unique to the public sector, the movement in reserves analysis followed by the Balance 
Sheet and an indirect Cashflow statement. This section also includes the Expenditure and 
Funding Analysis Note although this is, confusingly, a note and not a statement.  
 
Section Three contains the Notes to the Accounts which are of two types – reconciling and 
disclosure. Reconciling notes explain balances in the main statements, and disclosure notes 
tell the reader more about what isn’t in the statements such as contingent assets. Of 
particular interest usually to the press is note 7 which discloses information around exit 
packages, higher earner bandings, and the remuneration of senior officers and note 8 which 
discloses members allowances.  

 

Section Four contains the Housing Revenue Account Fund Statements, followed by the 
Collection Fund statements. Section Five will be populated after the audit with the auditor’s 
comments and section six contains a glossary to the Accounts. 
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4. Key Tables 
The balance sheet has moved by £17.208m to 31 March 2020, affected largely by the 
£7.905m pensions adjustments and cash received by government to pay out as grants for 
small business grants to those affected by Coronavirus. 

4.1 The Balance Sheet 

31 March 
2019 Balance Sheet 

Notes 31 March 
2020 

 
Description 

£000s   £000s  

234,967 Property, Plant and Equipment 18 243,429  

21,934 Heritage Assets 24 21,348  

723 Investment Property 19 740  

391 Intangible Assets   352  

16,977 Long Term Investments 38 30,580 A 

52 Long Term Advances 26 49  

130 Long Term Debtors 27 120  

280,621  Long Term Assets   296,618  

51,970 Short Term Investments 38 86,163 A 

3,107 Assets Held for Sale 20 2,988  

196 Inventories   171  

7,174 Short Term Debtors 27 7,772  

1,032 Cash and Cash Equivalents 29 / 38 17,502 A 

63,666  Current Assets   114,596  

(29,548) Short Term Borrowings 38 (59,209) A 

(12,859) Short Term Creditors 28 (14,385)  

(1,302) Short Term Provisions 41 (913)  

(43,897)  Current Liabilities   (74,507)  

(3,968) Long Term Provisions 41 (4,473)  

(64,509) Long Term Borrowing 38 (96,492) A 

(50,692) Pension Liability Account 36 (42,787) B 

(4,567) Capital / Revenue Grants Receipts in Advance 17 (4,540) 
 

(123,736)  Long Term Liabilities   (148,292)  

171,207  Net Assets   188,415  

(44,594) Usable reserves 13 (45,457)  

(126,613) Unusable reserves 12 (142,958)  

(171,207)  Total Reserves   (188,415)  
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A. Aggregate borrowing has increased during the year as the Council has taken the 

opportunity to borrow at historically low interest rates for refinancing and future 
capital expenditure, including £26.000m from the PWLB for the high rise replacement 
scheme. This is reflected in the increase in short and long term investments. These 
will fall over time as cash is matched to forthcoming capital expenditure 
requirements. The council held a greater degree of Cash and Cash Equivalents at 31 
March 2020 to maintain high liquidity levels and provide mitigation against uncertain 
cash flow requirements arising from the coronavirus pandemic, including the 
dispersal of grants to small businesses.  

 
B. The actuarial pension assessment has again created a shift in the balance sheet 

between years  
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4.2 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account 
 

31 March 2019 

  

31 March 2020 

Exp 

£000s 

Inc 

£000s 

Net 

£000s 

Exp 

£000s 

Inc 

£000s 

Net 

£000s 
 

5,639 (2,409) 3,230 Growth and Investment 5,829 (2,714) 3,115  

11,912 (5,111) 6,800 Environment and Public Realm 13,201 (5,564) 7,637  

19,672 (17,269) 2,403 
Communities and Homes - General 

Fund 
18,555 (15,607) 2,948  

15,454 (17,089) (1,635) Communities and Homes - HRA 16,731 (16,395) 336  

1,811 (519) 1,292 Corporate Resources 2,806 (966) 1,840  

1,977 (170) 1,807 Executive Directors Office 2,408 (394) 2,015  

56,465 (42,567) 13,898 Cost of Services 59,530 (41,640) 17,890  

1,302 (130) 1,172 
Other Operating Expenditure (Note 

14) 
1,301 (184) 1,118  

3,304 (1,079) 2,225 
Financing and Investment Income 

and Expenditure (Note 15) 
3,769 (1,246) 2,524  

  (17,264) (17,264) 
Taxation and Non-specific Grant 

Income (Note 16) 
  (17,222) (17,222)  

61,071 (61,040) 30 
Surplus (-) / Deficit on Provision of 

Services 
    4,309  

    0 

(Surplus) / Deficit on revaluation of 

property, plant and equipment 

assets (Note 22) 

    (9,376)  

    (81) 
(Upwards) or Downward valuation 

of financial instruments (Note 40) 
    0  

    0 
Remeasurement of the net defined 

benefit liability/ (asset)  (note 36) 
    (12,144)  

    (81) 
Other Comprehensive Income (-) 

and Expenditure 
    (21,520)  

    (51) 
Total Comprehensive Income (-) 

and Expenditure 
    (17,211)  

 

1. Of the £3.992m increase in the cost of services from 2018/19,  
a. £1.169m relates to IAS 19 pension contributions of which £0.476m relates to 

the accounting adjustment as a result of the historical McCloud case  
b. £0.969m is as a result of depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 

within the HRA 
c. £0.565m through the increased requirement to use agency staff to support 

core business 
d. £0.578m increased staffing costs which includes 2% pay award 

 
2. The significant move in the pensions remeasurement is due to the actuarial 

assessment of the financial liability as a snapshot on 31 March does not represent a 
cash cost to the Council.  
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4.3 Usable Reserve Position (Note 12) 
The closing position on reserves will be £25.397m, of which £9.753m is for the General Fund 
and £15.644m is for the HRA. 

  

31 
March 
2019 

Transfers 
Out 

Transfers  
In  

Transfers 
within 

31 

March 
2020 

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 

Budget Stability Reserve (2,145) 99 (449) - (2,494) 

Business Rates Equalisation Reserve (1,716) 126 (2,597) 541 (3,646) 

Section 106 (Developer) Contributions - 
Revenue (1,153) 151 (149) - (1,152) 

Revenue Grants & Contributions from Third 
Parties (585) 332 (156) - (409) 

Welfare Support Reserve (500) 385 (324) - (439) 

Town Centre Improvement Reserve (325) - (2) - (327) 

Works Services Unit Operational Reserve (320) 320 - - 0 

Hall of Fame Licence Reserve (300) - - - (300) 

Carry forward Reserve (125) 125 (331) - (331) 

Other smaller reserves e.g. plant & equipment 
reserves (774) 208 (88) - (654) 

Total General Fund Earmarked Reserves  (7,943) 1,745 (4,096) 541 (9,753) 
Housing Repairs Account (1,021) 4,123 (3,769) - (668) 

Housing Revenue Account Capital Balances (15,854) 5,148 (4,059) - (14,765) 

Sheltered Accommodation (160) - (52) - (212) 

Total HRA Earmarked Reserves (17,034) 9,270  (7,88) - (15,644) 
TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES (24,977) 11,015  (11,976) 541 (25,397) 
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The next table explains the movements on earmarked and general fund reserves and ties 
that into the Expenditure and Funding Analysis outturn position. 

 Opening 
Balance 

at 31 
March 
2019 
 
 
 

£000s 

Management  
Outturn 

 
 
 
 

 
£000s 

Post 
Outturn 

Adjustment 
 
 
 

 
£000s 

Transfers 
to and 

from 
reserves 

 
 
 

£000s 

(Surplus) 
or Deficit 

 
 
 
 
 

£000s 

Closing 
Balance 

at 31 
March 
2020 

 
 
 

£000s 
General Fund (2,253) 538 6 (541) 3 (2,250) 
Other General 
Fund Earmarked 
Reserves 

(7,942) - - (1,810) (1,810) (9,753) 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

(5,086) - - - - (5,086) 

Other HRA 
Earmarked 
Reserves 

(17,034) - - 1,390 1,390 (15,644) 

TOTAL (32,315) 544 6 (961) (417) (32,733) 
 
The General Fund balance has received a transfer of £0.541m from the Business Rates 
Equalisation Reserve in order to support the Council with the financial risks that it currently 
faces which includes those directly as a consequence of the Coronavirus pandemic 
 
The chart below shows the impact on the use of reserves as at 31 March 2020 
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What the risk assessment shows is that there is potentially a funding gap of £3.2m in our 
corporate reserves if all the risks crystallised, particularly the funding risks. At this stage the 
true cost of coronavirus and the medium-term impact on the financial position is still being 
established, therefore this will be continually monitored throughout 2020/21 as the recovery 
develops with any updates reflected in future Cabinet reports.   
 
The assessment identifies that in 2020/21 a potentially significant contribution could be 
required from reserves of £4.4m to mitigate against pressures and it is expected that the 31 
March 2020 balance of the General Fund (£2.3m) the Budget Stability reserve (£2.5m) will 
have a total remaining balance of (£1.6m) compared with potential risks identified of £5.9m. 
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4.4 Salary and Allowances 
The following notes are often of interest to external stakeholders and are therefore produced 
here for Audit Committee’s information.  
 
Benefits payable during employment  
Short term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. 
They include salaries, wages and other employment related payments and are recognised 
as an expense in the year in which the service is rendered by the employees. An accrual is 
made for the cost of holiday entitlements earned by employees but not taken before the 
year-end which employees can carry forward into the following financial year.  
 
The remuneration of the Council’s senior employees is as follows: 

Post Holder  Salary, Fees 
& Allowances 
 

£ 

Expenses 
Allowances 

 
 

£ 

Compensation for 
Loss of Office 

 
£ 

Pension 
Contributions 

 
 

£ 

Total 
 
 
 

£ 

Notes 

Executive 
Director  

2019/20 99,300 20  19,070 118,390  

2018/19 97,350 1,490  18,690 117,530  

Head of 
Communities & 
Homes 

2019/20 71,980   13,820 85,800  

2018/19 70,570   13,550 84,120  

Head of 
Corporate 
Resources 

2019/20 71,980   13,820 85,800  

2018/19 70,570   13,550 84,120  

Head of 
Environment & 
Public Realm  

2019/20 71,980   13,820 85,800  

2018/19 69,920   13,420 83,340  

Head of Growth 
& Investment  

2019/20 69,350   13,320 82,670  

2018/19 32,710   6,280 38,990 1 

 

Senior Officers served for the whole of 2019/20 and 2018/19 unless as stated: 

1. The Head of Growth & Investment (B) was appointed to the post on the 1 October 
2018. 

The number of other Council’s employees receiving more than £0.050m remuneration for the 
year (excluding employer’s pension contributions) is shown in the table below. 
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Remuneration Band 
 

2018/19 
Number of employees 

2019/20 
Number of employees 

£50,000 - £54,999 - 1 
£55,000 - £59,999 1 - 
£60,000 - £64,999 - 1 
£65,000 - £69,999 - - 
£70,000 - £74,999 - - 
£75,000 - £79,999 - - 
£80,000 - £84,999 1 - 
£85,000 - £89,999 - - 

 
Exit Packages 
Exit packages are amounts payable because of the Council’s decision to terminate an officer’s 
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary 
redundancy. These are charged on an accruals basis to the relevant service line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Council is demonstrably 
committed to the termination of the employment of an officer or group of officers or making an 
offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.   

Rugby Borough Council terminated the contracts of 8 employees in 2019/20, incurring 
liabilities of £97,310 (£102,280 in 2018/19).  The number of exit packages with total cost per 
band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table following: 

 

Exit package cost 
bands (including 
special payments) 

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of 
agreed other 
departures 

Total number of 
exit packages by 

cost band 

Total cost of exit 
packages in each cost 

band 

2018/19 

2019/20 

2018/19 

2019/20 

2018/19 

2019/20 

2018/19 
(£) 

2019/20 
(£) 

£0 - £20,000 - - 4 7 4 7 30,900 73,240 
£20,001 - £40,000 - - 1 1 1 1 27,510 24,070 
£40,001 - £60,000 1 - - - 1 - 43,870 - 
£60,001 - £80,000 - - - - - - - - 
£80,001 - £100,000 - - - - - - - - 
Total 1 - 5 8 6 8 102,280 97,310 
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Note 8.  Members Allowances 
 
The total costs of members’ allowances paid in the year were as follows: 
 
2018/19 

£ 
 2019/20 

£ 
345,100 Allowances 353,330 

5,620 Employers’ National Insurance 5,740 
12,190 Expenses 7,910 

362,910 Total 366,980 
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 To provide excellent, value for money 

services and sustainable growth 
 Achieve financial self-sufficiency by 2020 
 Enable our residents to live healthy, 

independent lives 
 Optimise income and identify new revenue 
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 Prioritise use of resources to meet changing 

customer needs and demands (CR) 
 Ensure that the council works efficiently and 
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 Promote sustainable growth and economic 
prosperity (GI) 

 Promote and grow Rugby’s visitor economy 
with our partners (GI) 

 Encourage healthy and active lifestyles to 
improve wellbeing within the borough (GI) 

  
Statutory/Policy Background: Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 
  
Summary: The report sets out progress against delivery of 

the Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21. 
  
Financial Implications: No direct implications 
  
Risk Management Implications: Non delivery of an adequate internal audit plan 

would have an adverse impact on the level of 
assurance provided in the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

  
Environmental Implications: No direct implications 
  
Legal Implications: No direct implications 
  
Equality and Diversity: No direct implications 
  
Options: None 
  
Recommendation: The report be considered and noted. 

 
  
Reasons for Recommendation: To comply with the requirements of the terms of 

reference of the Audit and Ethics Committee, 
and to discharge the Committee’s 
responsibilities under the Constitution. 
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Agenda No 5 
 

 
Audit and Ethics Committee - 7 July 2020 

 
2020/21 Internal Audit Plan - Progress Update 

 
Public Report of the Executive Director 

 
Recommendation 
 
The report be considered and noted. 
 

 
1.  Introduction 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out progress against the Internal Audit Plan 

for 2020/21. 
 
The Council has a legal duty to maintain an adequate and effective Internal 
Audit service. The primary role of Internal Audit is to provide independent 
assurance that the Council has put in place appropriately designed internal 
controls to ensure that: 
 
• The Council’s assets and interests are safeguarded; 
• Reliable records are maintained; 
• Council policies, procedures and directives are adhered to; and 
• Services are delivered in an efficient, effective and economic manner. 
 
This work is normally referred to as Section 151 work. 

 
2.  Summary of Audit Work 
 
2.1 The Internal Audit plan for 2020/21 was approved by the Audit and Ethics 

Committee on 9 June 2020. Progress against delivery of that plan is set out at 
Appendix A. 

 
2.2 Appendix A also sets out the progress against the recommendations made by 

Internal Audit and details the latest position in relation to agreed actions which 
are overdue. 

 
3. Revisions to the 2020/21 Audit Plan 
 
3.1 The Committee’s role as gatekeeper requires it to approve any significant 

changes to the internal audit plan, in accordance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. It is also good practice to continually review the audit 
plan in light of emerging issues, to ensure that the work of internal audit adds 
maximum value by proactively responding to and aligning its work with the 
most significant risks facing the organisation. At this time there are no 
proposed amendments to the internal audit plan. 
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Name of Meeting:  Audit and Ethics Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  7 July 2020 
 
Subject Matter:  2020/21 Internal Audit Plan - Progress Update 
 
Originating Department: Corporate Resources 
 
 
DO ANY BACKGROUND PAPERS APPLY   YES   NO 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Doc No Title of Document and Hyperlink 
Appendix A Internal Audit Plan – Progress Update  

 
  
  
  
  

The background papers relating to reports on planning applications and which are 
open to public inspection under Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972, 
consist of the planning applications, referred to in the reports, and all written 
responses to consultations made by the Local Planning Authority, in connection with 
those applications. 

 
 

 Exempt information is contained in the following documents: 
 
Doc No Relevant Paragraph of Schedule 12A 
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Introduction 
 

1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards) require the Audit 
and Ethics Committee to scrutinise the performance of Internal Audit and to 
satisfy itself that it is receiving appropriate assurance that the controls put in 
place by management address the identified risks to the Council.  This report 
aims to provide the Committee with details on progress made in delivering 
planned work, the key findings of audit assignments completed since the last 
Committee meeting, updates on the implementation of actions arising from 
audit reports and an overview of the performance of the team.  

 
Performance 
 
2.1 Will the Internal Audit Plan be delivered? 
 

The expected position by the date of the Committee meeting is as follows: 
 

• 2 draft reports have been issued; and 
• 6 assignments are in progress. 

 
As reported at the last Committee meeting, delivery of internal audit work is 
continuing as far as possible remotely through COVID 19 pandemic response. 
It is envisaged that most audit work can be completed remotely; the exception 
might be where there are complex processes which are difficult to explain 
online, or where the auditor needs to observe a process live with an officer. 
Use of the screen share option within MS Teams may help to mitigate this. 
Moving forward, as the organisation develops and implements its 
arrangements for a safe return to work, it may be possible for some meetings 
to be reinstated if any audit work cannot be completed remotely; however, 
safety will remain the primary consideration. If there are any areas which 
cannot practically be covered in any audits, these will be highlighted in the 
reports and any significant implications will be reported to the Committee. 
Where there are any gaps in assurance, it may be possible to revisit those 
areas later in the financial year.  
 
One member of the team is currently redeployed to the Community Advice 
and Support service. Resource calculations have updated with the 
assumption that one member of team remains redeployed until the end of 
August. Whilst there is no immediate prospect of other members of the team 
being redeployed, that could change. The impact on resources and delivery of 
the internal audit plan would then be reviewed as soon as possible. 
 
The Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager currently expects to 
deliver a more than adequate internal audit plan which meets the 
requirements of the PSIAS. There is, however, clearly a higher risk than 
normal that this may not be possible. The situation will be closely monitored 
and the Committee will be informed as soon as possible of any change in the 
position. 
 
Progress on individual assignments is shown at pages 7 to 9 of this report.  
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2.2 Based upon recent Internal Audit work, are there any emerging issues 

that impact upon the Internal Audit opinion of the Council’s Control 
Framework? 

 
At this stage there are no emerging issues arising from the work of Internal 
Audit which significantly impact upon the Internal Audit opinion of the 
Council’s Control Framework. 

 
2.3 Are clients progressing audit recommendations with appropriate 

urgency? 
 
 At the date of reporting, a combined 75.3% of management actions have 

been implemented by the agreed implementation date, with a further 
13.9% implemented late, giving an overall implementation rate of 89.2%. 
There has been a very small decrease in the overall implementation rate 
compared to 90% in March. Considering the impact of the COVID 19 
pandemic on the workload of officers, performance is better than expected. A 
summary analysis of progress on implementation of audit recommendations is 
shown at pages 10 to 11. At the time of reporting there are 10 agreed 
management actions for which implementation is overdue, none of 
which are regarded as High Risk and 3 of which are regarded as Medium 
risk. The details of the actions related to High or Medium risks, along with a 
summary of the latest position, are set out at page 12 of this report. 
Implementation of the actions will continue to be monitored by the Corporate 
Assurance and Improvement Team and reported to each Committee meeting. 
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2.4 Internal Audit Performance Indicators 
 

The effectiveness with which Internal Audit discharges its section 151 
responsibilities is being measured by the following indicators, as agreed by 
the Audit and Ethics Committee: 

 
 
 

Theme Title of 
Performance 
Indicator 

Current Performance 

Delivery Average end to end 
time for audits 
(number of days) 

Q1 2020/21 Result: 86 days 
 
Q4 2019/20 Result: 110 days 
 
Q3 2019/20 Result: 115 days 
 
Q2 2019/20 Result: 133 days 
 
Average - Terms of Reference to 
draft report issue: 63 days (reduction 
of 1 days from previous quarter) 
 
There has been a reduction of 47 
days in the end to end time over the 
last 9 months. A new approach has 
been adopted for clearing audit 
reports with management, which has 
enabled a substantial improvement in 
the time taken to clear reports. 

Adding Value Customer 
Satisfaction – 
Average Rating 

Reported as an annual measure. 

Timeliness Timeliness of 
Reporting – 
Average time taken 
to issue draft reports 
following fieldwork 
completion 

8.9 days 
 
Spike caused by prioritisation of 
COVID 19 related work; it was harder 
to schedule in audit file reviews. 
However, it has still taken less than 
two weeks on average to issue a draft 
audit report, once fieldwork has been 
completed. 

Effectiveness Implementation of 
Agreed Actions – 
Percentage 
implemented on 
time 

75.3% - at the time of reporting there 
are 10 recommendations which are 
past their agreed implementation 
date, none of which are regarded as 
High risk and 3 as Medium risk. Refer 
to page 12 for detail. 
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2.5 Internal Audit Performance Trend Graphs 
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Limitations and Responsibilities 
 
Limitations inherent to the Internal Auditor’s work 
 
Internal Audit is undertaking a programme of work agreed by the council’s senior 
managers and approved by the Audit and Ethics Committee subject to the limitations 
outlined below. 
 
Opinion 
 
Each audit assignment undertaken addresses the control objectives agreed with the 
relevant responsible managers. There might be weaknesses in the system of internal 
control that Internal Audit are not aware of because they did not form part of the 
programme of work were excluded from the scope of individual internal audit 
assignments or were not brought to the attention of Internal Audit. As a 
consequence, the Audit and Ethics Committee should be aware that the Audit 
Opinion for each assignment might have differed if the scope of individual 
assignments was extended or other relevant matters were brought to Internal Audit’s 
attention. 
 
Internal Control 
 
Internal control systems identified during audit assignments, no matter how well 
designed and operated, are affected by inherent limitations. These include the 
possibility of poor judgement in decision making, human error, control processes 
being deliberately circumvented by employees and others, management overriding 
controls, and unforeseeable circumstances. 
 
Future Periods 
 
The assessment of each audit area is relevant to the time at which the audit was 
completed. In other words, it is a snapshot of the control environment at that time. 
This evaluation of effectiveness may not be relevant to future periods due to the risk 
that: 
 

• The design of controls may become inadequate because of changes in 
operating environment, law, regulatory requirements or other factors; or 

• The degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate. 

Responsibilities of Management and Internal Auditors 
 
It is management’s responsibility to develop and maintain sound systems of risk 
management, internal control and governance, and for the prevention or detection of 
irregularities and fraud. Internal audit work should not be seen as a substitute for 
management’s responsibilities for the design and operation of these systems. 
 
Internal Audit endeavours to plan its work so that there is a reasonable expectation 
that significant control weaknesses will be detected. If weaknesses are detected 
additional work is undertaken to identify any consequent fraud or irregularities. 
However, Internal Audit procedures alone, even when carried out with due 
professional care, do not guarantee that fraud will be detected, and its work should 
not be relied upon to disclose all fraud or other irregularities that might exist. 
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  Progressing the Annual Internal Audit Plan 
 
 
 
 
 

Assignment Budget 
(days) 

Not 
Started Planning 

Field 
Work 

Underway 

Field 
Work 

Complete 
Draft 

Report 
Final 

Report 
Assurance 

Rating Comments 

Financial Risks          

Payroll 20    
 

     

Business 
Refund Grants – 
Mandatory 
 

30  

 
    

  

Business Grants 
– Discretionary 
 

20  
 

 
 

  
   

Counter Fraud          

Expenses 15        
 

ICT          
Payment Card 
Industry Data 
Security 
Standards 
 

8        

 

IT Strategy, 
Governance & 
Policies 
 

8  

 

     

 

CCTV 8         
 

KEY 
Current status of assignments is shown by     
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Assignment Budget 
(days) 

Not 
Started Planning 

Field 
Work 

Underway 

Field 
Work 

Complete 
Draft 

Report 
Final 

Report 
Assurance 

Rating Comments 

Corporate Risks          
Corporate 
Health & Safety 15         

Equal Pay/ 
Single Status 10         

Risk 
Management 
Controls 
Assurance 

40    

 
    

 

Performance 
Management 
Effectiveness 

80  
 

     
 

Complaints, 
Compliments & 
Suggestions – 
Follow up 

10  

 

 

 

   

 

Operational 
Procedures 25  

 
 

 
     

 

Housing Project 
Management 20  

 
 

 
     

 

HR Capability & 
Disciplinary 15  

 
     

 

Ethical Risks          
Local 
Government 
Transparency 
Code – Follow 
up 

10  
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Assignment Budget 
(days) 

Not 
Started Planning 

Field 
Work 

Underway 

Field 
Work 

Complete 
Draft 

Report 
Final 

Report 
Assurance 

Rating Comments 

Member 
Development  10         

Operational 
Risks          

Follow up work 16         
Community 
Safety 
Partnership 

18        
 

Planning, 
Development & 
Enforcement 

30    
 

   
 

Licensing 18         
WSU Garage 20         
Land Charges 15         
Additional 
Support          

Annual 
Governance 
Statement 

12 

    

  Substantial 

Statement submitted to Audit & 
Ethics Committee, and the 
Senior Management Team, for 
approval.  
 

National Fraud 
Initiative 8   Ongoing co-ordination of the 

Council’s NFI work. 
Control 
Environment - 
Advice 

8  
 

 
 

   
 

Corporate 
Investigation 
Work 

25  
 

 
 

   
There is one investigation in 
progress at the moment. 
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Summary: Implementation of Audit Recommendations 
 
Audit Not yet due Overdue Within time Extended time  Out of time Total Recs 
Business Continuity and Emergency Planning 0 0 0 0 1 1 
Corporate Credit Cards 1 0 0 0 0 1 
Council Tax and NDR 1 3 0 0 2 6 
Fleet Management 1 0 3 5 0 9 
Financial System Key Controls 0 1 1 0 1 3 
Housing Rent Arrears 0 0 0 0 2 2 
Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards 0 0 0 2 0 2 
Partnership Governance 0 0 1 0 0 1 
Property Repairs Stock Control 1 0 0 2 0 3 
PTC Interface 0 0 2 0 0 2 
Risk Management 0 1 1 3 0 5 
Values and Behaviours 1 0 5 0 0 6 
Absence Management 4 0 4 0 0 8 
Benefits 0 0 0 0 1 1 
Car Parking Enforcement 0 0 1 0 0 1 
Creditors 2 1 2 0 2 7 
Data Protection Governance 5 0 3 1 0 9 
Elections 1 1 0 0 0 2 
Fraud Risk Review 1 1 4 6 0 12 
Grants to Community Groups 0 0 13 0 0 13 
Green Waste Optimisation 0 0 2 0 0 2 
Health and Safety Follow Up 11 0 0 0 2 13 
Independent Living 2 1 8 0 2 13 
Insurance 0 0 1 0 0 1 
ICT Backup 0 0 3 1 0 4 
Patch Management 2 0 4 0 0 6 
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Audit Not yet due Overdue Within time Extended time  Out of time Total Recs 
Property Repairs 1 0 6 2 2 11 
Treasury Management 0 0 2 0 4 6 
Tenant Recharges 0 1 5 0 1 7 
Freedom of Information 2 0 6 0 0 8 
Local Government Transparency Code 4 0 6 7 1 18 

Complaints, Compliments & Suggestions 3 0 4 0 1 8 

IT Security  3 0 0 0 0 3 
Cash & Bank 12 0 2 0 0 14 
Customer Service Centre Demand Management 8 0 0 0 0 8 
Housing Rent Arrears 10 0 0 0 0 10 
Digitalisation 8 0 1 0 0 9 
Totals 84 10 90 29 22 235 

 
 

Notes: 
 

Extended time: This is where the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager had agreed an extension to the original timescale. 
 

Out of time: This is where the action was implemented later than the agreed timescale. 
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Details of Overdue Medium and High Risk Audit Recommendations 
 
 
 

Audit Title Due Date Latest Note  Risk Rating Description 

Council Tax & NDR 
Fraud  

Ensure the NFI data matching 
review is carried out in a more 
timely manner. 

31-Dec-2019 Awaiting update from the 
Revenues Manager  Medium Risk 

Fraud Risk Review  
CAST - Ensure the training 
programme for officers includes 
fraud awareness. 

31-Mar-2020 

There have been a number of 
recent new recruits to the team. At 
present the focus is on managing 
the surge in demand on the service 
due to the economic impacts of the 
COVID 19 pandemic. It is currently 
planned to deliver this training by 
the end of September 2020. 

 Medium Risk 

Tenant Recharges  

A report detailing the collection 
rate of recharge sundry debts 
should be produced quarterly and 
forwarded to the Resources Head 
of Service, Property Manager and 
Property Repairs Manager. 

31-Jul-2019 

The report has been produced; 
however, it requires a review prior 
to circulation as there are concerns 
it may contain inaccuracies.  

 Medium Risk 
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Agenda No 6 
 

AGENDA MANAGEMENT SHEET 
 
Report Title: Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 
  
Name of Committee: Audit and Ethics Committee 
  
Date of Meeting: 7 July 2020 
  
Report Director: Executive Director  
  
Portfolio: Corporate Resources 
  
Ward Relevance: None 
  
Prior Consultation: Executive Director, Senior Management Team, 

Monitoring Officer 
  
Contact Officer: Chris Green – Corporate Assurance and 

Improvement Manager 
Tel: 01788 533451 

  
Public or Private: Public 
  
Report Subject to Call-In: No 
  
Report En-Bloc: No 
  
Forward Plan: No 
  
Corporate Priorities: 
 
(CR) Corporate Resources 
(CH) Communities and Homes 
(EPR) Environment and Public 
Realm 
(GI) Growth and Investment 
 

This report relates to the following priority(ies): 
 To provide excellent, value for money 

services and sustainable growth 
 Achieve financial self-sufficiency by 2020 
 Enable our residents to live healthy, 

independent lives 
 Optimise income and identify new revenue 

opportunities (CR) 
 Prioritise use of resources to meet changing 

customer needs and demands (CR) 
 Ensure that the council works efficiently and 

effectively (CR) 
 Ensure residents have a home that works for 

them and is affordable (CH) 
 Deliver digitally-enabled services that 

residents can access (CH) 
 Understand our communities and enable 

people to take an active part in them (CH) 
 Enhance our local, open spaces to make 

them places where people want to be (EPR) 
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 Continue to improve the efficiency of our 
waste and recycling services (EPR) 

 Protect the public (EPR) 
 Promote sustainable growth and economic 

prosperity (GI) 
 Promote and grow Rugby’s visitor economy 

with our partners (GI) 
 Encourage healthy and active lifestyles to 

improve wellbeing within the borough (GI) 
  
Statutory/Policy Background: The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

require the Council to publish an Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) 

  
Summary: The report describes how the AGS for 2019/20 

was produced. The AGS itself forms an 
appendix to the report. 

  
Financial Implications: No direct implications 
  
Risk Management Implications: If the AGS is not approved and published the 

Council may experience reputational damage, 
adverse media coverage and stakeholder 
concern. 

  
Environmental Implications: No direct implications 
  
Legal Implications: There would be a breach of the Accounts and 

Audit Regulations if the AGS was not published. 
  
Equality and Diversity: No direct implications 
  
Options: None 
  
Recommendation: The Annual Governance Statement be 

approved, subject to any final amendments by 
the Senior Management Team. 
 

  
Reasons for Recommendation: To comply with the requirements of the terms of 

reference of the Audit & Ethics Committee, and 
to discharge the Committee’s responsibilities 
under the Constitution. 
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Agenda No 6 
 

 
Audit and Ethics Committee - 7 July 2020 

 
Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 

 
Public Report of the Executive Director 

 
Recommendation: 
 
The Annual Governance Statement be approved, subject to any final amendments 
by the Senior Management Team. 
 

 
1.  Introduction 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 

for 2019/20, describing the governance arrangements that were in place during 
the financial year. 
 

1.2 The AGS is formally approved by the Senior Management Team and signed by 
the Executive Director and Leader of the Council, who take personal 
responsibility for the control framework described and for the delivery of the 
identified improvements to the framework. 
 

1.3 The AGS for 2019/20 was drafted by the Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager in consultation with the Senior Management Team and 
various managers across the Council. 
 

1.4 A copy of the AGS for 2019/20 is appended. 
 
 
2.        Report Details 
 
2.1 Corporate governance is defined as the systems and processes, and cultures 

and values, by which local government bodies are directed and controlled and 
through which they account to, engage with and where appropriate lead their 
communities.  
 

2.2 There is a strong correlation between effective governance and effective 
service delivery and achievement of corporate objectives. To deliver the 
Council’s vision and support the drive for continuous improvement strong 
governance arrangements need to be in place. 

 
2.3 A number of evidence sources were utilised for the purpose of drafting the AGS, 

including: 
 
• Consultation with, and assurances provided by, key officers. Meetings 

were held with each Head of Service, the Executive Director, and the 
Legal, Democratic and Electoral Services Manager. Governance 
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arrangements were reviewed with each officer and examples of 
effectiveness and outcomes were also discussed at the meetings. Further 
evidence was provided by various officers across the Council. 

• Work undertaken during the year by Internal Audit and other inspection 
bodies. 

• Key corporate documents including the Corporate Strategy, Committee 
reports, the Annual Audit Letter, the Constitution, the draft financial 
statements, the Annual Report of the Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager, the Learning and Development Strategy, and the 
officer and member training programmes. 

 
2.4 There is one recently completed governance related internal audit which 

impacts on the AGS for 2019/20: Local Government Transparency Code. This 
audit resulted in only Limited Assurance and was considered in full by the Audit 
& Ethics Committee in January 2020. An action plan was agreed, delivery of 
which is being monitored by the Corporate Assurance and Improvement team 
and reported to the Audit and Ethics Committee. A follow up audit has been 
scheduled for 2020/21 and the results will be reported to the Audit and Ethics 
Committee. The level of assurance provided in the AGS has been considered 
taking into account the level of assurance for this audit. However, the level of 
assurance also acknowledges the many areas where the Council’s governance 
arrangements are considered to be robust, and the actions taken during the 
year to improve existing arrangements, such as enhancements to the 
information governance framework. The Council is satisfied therefore that its 
overall governance framework provides a Substantial level of assurance of 
effectiveness. The full AGS is set out at Appendix A. 
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Name of Meeting:  Audit and Ethics Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  7 July 2020 
 
Subject Matter:  Annual Governance Statement 
 
Originating Department: Corporate Resources 
 
 
DO ANY BACKGROUND PAPERS APPLY   YES   NO 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
Doc No Title of Document and Hyperlink 
Appendix A Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 
            
            
            
            
            

 
The background papers relating to reports on planning applications and which are 
open to public inspection under Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972, 
consist of the planning applications, referred to in the reports, and all written 
responses to consultations made by the Local Planning Authority, in connection with 
those applications. 

 
 

 Exempt information is contained in the following documents: 
 
Doc No Relevant Paragraph of Schedule 12A 
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

 

2019-20 

 

 

 

 

 

PROUD OF OUR PAST, FIT FOR THE FUTURE 

Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 

 

1. SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 
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1.1 Rugby Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that it conducts its business in 

accordance with the law and proper standards. Public money must be used 

economically, efficiently and effectively, safeguarded and properly accounted for. 

The Council must have in place proper governance arrangements and carry out its 

functions effectively, including suitable risk management arrangements. 

 

1.2 The Council must conduct a review, at least once a year, of the effectiveness of its 

system of internal control and report the findings in an annual governance statement. 

The statement must be prepared in accordance with proper practices and be 

reported to a Committee of Councillors. This document comprises the Council’s annual 

governance statement for 2019/20. 

 

2. WHO IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING GOOD GOVERNANCE? 

 

2.1 The Council’s governance arrangements are overseen by the Audit & Ethics 

Committee. The Executive Director has overall responsibility for ensuring that effective 

controls and processes are implemented across the Council and these are regularly 

reviewed and updated. Regular reports are submitted to the Audit & Ethics Committee 

highlighting any identified enhancements. The Chief Finance Officer (s151 Officer) is 

responsible for ensuring that effective financial controls are in place, for the 

maintenance of an effective internal audit function and for reviewing the overall 

effectiveness of the governance framework. The overview and co-ordination of this 

process is undertaken by the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager. 

 

3. WHAT THIS STATEMENT TELLS YOU 

 
3.1 This Statement provides a summarised account of how the Council’s management 

arrangements are set up to meet the principles of good governance set out in the 

Constitution and how assurance is obtained that these are both effective and 

appropriate. It is written to provide the reader with a clear, simple assessment of how 

the governance framework has operated over the past financial year, how effective 

that framework has been in enabling the Council to achieve its intended outcomes, 

and to identify any improvements made and any weaknesses or gaps in arrangements 

that need to be addressed. Its main aim is to provide the reader with confidence that 

the Council is managed effectively and efficiently; that services are delivered in 

accordance with current legislation, the corporate strategy and in a way that 

optimises value for money. 

 

4. THE PRINCIPLES OF GOOD GOVERNANCE 

 
4.1 The principles of good governance are set out in the CIPFA Framework for Delivering 

Good Governance in Local Government 2016. The framework positions the attainment 

of sustainable economic, societal, and environmental outcomes as a key focus of 

governance processes and structures. This statement explains how the Council has 

complied with the framework and meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 (England). 

 

4.2 Good governance is dynamic, and the Council is committed to improving its 

governance on a continuing basis through a process of evaluation and review. The 

diagram below, taken from the International Framework for Good Governance in the 
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Public Sector, illustrates the various principles of good governance in the public sector 

and how they relate to each other.  

 

 

Principles A and B permeate implementation of principles C to G 

 

5. THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

 
5.1 The governance framework comprises the policies, plans, systems, processes, culture 

and values (the system of ‘internal control’) that the Council has in place to ensure its 

intended outcomes for stakeholders and the community are defined and delivered. 

To deliver good governance objectives must be achieved whilst also acting in the 

public interest. The framework enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its 

strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery 

of appropriate, cost effective services. 

 

5.2 The governance arrangements are designed to ensure that an appropriate and 

proportionate approach is taken to managing risk whilst ensuring that objectives are 

achieved. The governance framework has been in place for the year to the date of 

approval of this annual governance statement. The arrangements are not designed to 

eliminate all risks but rather provide a reasonable degree of assurance of effectiveness. 

 

5.3 The governance framework and an assessment of its effectiveness are set out on the 

following pages. 
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PRINCIPLE A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law 

Arrangements in place 

• Member and officer codes of conduct 

• Confidential Reporting Code 

• Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Strategy 

• Fraud Response Plan 

• Contract Standing Orders 

• Declaration of interests procedure 

• Register of interests 

• Register of gifts and hospitality 

• Customer feedback and complaints procedure 

• Equalities & Diversity policy statement 

• Register of Equality Impact Assessments 

• Information security policies, senior information risk owner in post (SIRO) and Information 

Governance Group in place.  

• Corporate values in place which all employees are expected to act in accordance with 

• Recruitment/ selection procedures aligned with corporate values 

• A standard format is in place for 1 to 1 meetings between managers and staff, designed 

to ensure that the corporate values are embedded and adhered to 

• The Council participates in the National Fraud Initiative  

• Delivery of fraud and corruption awareness training 

• Internal audit plan coverage includes governance and ethics related audits, in line with 

the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  

• Any planning applications submitted by staff are reviewed in public 

• Agenda management sheets of Council reports include a requirement to highlight the 

legal implications of decisions 
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• Records of regulatory training required and undertaken are retained on the Council’s HR 

system 

• There is a Warwickshire independent persons panel in place which is available for 

consultation regarding any conduct related complaints. The group provides advice to the 

Council on the appropriate course of action to take to address such complaints. 

• The Council has implemented plans to ensure compliance with the requirements of the 

Homelessness Reduction Act 2018. 

Effectiveness and future developments 

Implementation of the Counter Fraud Strategy and Fraud Response Plan has led to a more 

consistent approach to investigation of irregularities across the Council and improved 

awareness amongst staff. Furthermore, dedicated time is set aside within the internal audit 

work plan to ensure that resources are available to thoroughly investigate any allegations and 

to enable proactive risk-based testing to be conducted during the year. Counter Fraud, Bribery 

and corruption awareness training has been delivered to all managers and to members. 

Training is also being delivered to individual teams on a rolling basis; 6 teams were provided 

with training during 2019/20. The Council has implemented a new cloud-based system of meta 

compliance and in 2019 all employees were asked to confirm that they have read and 

understood the Fraud Response Plan; a questionnaire was included to confirm employees’ 

understanding. A review of fraud risks and mitigating controls across all Council departments 

was completed in 2018/19; this resulted in a Substantial level of assurance. The Council’s 

approach to assessing fraud risks, and its fraud awareness training arrangements, have been 

recognised and published as examples of best practice in Local Government.  

A framework of corporate values and behaviours was implemented in early 2017/18. There is 

a high commitment to embedding the values across the organisation. A behaviours document 

was issued to all officers with a covering letter and compliance is mandatory. There are five 

core corporate values: Customer First, Act with Respect, Nurture People, Drive Excellence, and 

Own It, (CANDO). In line with the values all members of staff are expected to have regular one 

to one meetings with their line manager at which success is recognised and any concerns 

regarding conduct are also raised. Such meetings are expected to take place monthly unless 

agreed by exception with the relevant head of service. This process also ensures that staff 

development needs are considered on a rolling basis rather than once or twice per year. 

Customer Care training is mandatory for all staff in accordance with the Council’s value of 

putting “customers first”. 

Rolling licensing committee training has been provided to members leading to a clearer 

evaluation of prosecution cases. The Council has invested in the provision of enhanced 

regulatory training to planning committee members leading to a greater awareness and 

understanding when making decisions, and a reduction in appeals.  

Recognising success is built in to the one to one process and notable successes are celebrated 

at employee briefing sessions and at the Corporate Management Forum. An online “Praise” 

system is in place which enables employees who have excelled to receive a praise “badge” 

in recognition of their contribution. The various categories are “Customer First”, “Team Player”, 

“Owned It”, “Problem Solver”, “Drove Excellence”, “Nurtured People”, and “Above and 

Beyond”. All officers who received “Above and Beyond” badges were considered by the 

Corporate Management Forum, who voted for the best 3 examples of excellence with the 

winners being recognised with a small reward. 

The Council’s information security procedures are comprehensive. An Information 

Governance Group is in place comprising the Head of Communities and Homes (CIO – Chief 

Information Officer and Senior Information Risk Owner – SIRO), the Communication 

Consultation and Information Manager (Data Protection Officer), the Corporate ICT Manager 
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and the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager. Personal data breaches and near 

misses are reported to the communications, consultation, and information team for triage, and 

are then referred to the Information Governance Group. The Group decides on what further 

action to take, which may include making a statutory report to the Information Commissioner. 

There were no such cases during 2019/20. During 2019/20 the Group has made progress in 

several areas including development of an Information Management framework, training, and 

developing and implementing a clear desk policy. This progress followed an internal audit 

review completed in 2018/19. A decision was also taken to procure cyber insurance to help 

protect the Council from adverse impacts arising from a cyber-attack. Furthermore, with the 

emergence of the COVID 19 pandemic towards the end of the financial year and an 

associated increase in cyber-attacks and phishing scams, the Council urgently reviewed the 

robustness of its information security framework and took the decision to upgrade its systems 

to reduce the likelihood of a successful attack. Staff were also provided with additional 

instructions about sharing information, locking screens, and protecting passwords whilst 

working in a more agile way during the pandemic. 

The Council is moving towards an increasingly agile workforce, with technological 

developments enabling more employees to work remotely and/ or at home. The COVID 19 

pandemic has accelerated this process with approximately 60% of staff currently working at 

home. This was a step change in the Council’s way of working and digital means have 

enabled Council services to continue being effectively provided during the pandemic. Whilst 

there are codes of conduct in place for members and officers, the IT Code of Conduct requires 

updating to reflect the increasing number of agile workers. Furthermore, The Council is 

developing an agile working policy to ensure there is a consistent framework in place for all 

staff. Management of such working practices will also be incorporated, and the IT Code of 

Conduct is also being updated. In the meantime, whilst the formal agile working policy is being 

developed, instructions have been issued to staff and these are accessible on the Intranet. 

See Action 1. 

 

PRINCIPLE B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

Arrangements in place 

• The Council publishes a range of information including meeting agendas and reports, 

financial and procurement data, invitations to tender, senior officer salaries, the contracts 

register, annual governance statement and financial statements, corporate performance 

information, planning applications and decisions and section 106 agreements. 

• Records are retained detailing any decisions taken by officers using their delegated 

authority, including the rationale. Such decisions are also published. 

• The strategic risk register is scrutinised by the Audit & Ethics Committee with open reporting 

to Cabinet.  

• The Council consults widely and comprehensively with stakeholders on its proposals. Wider 

engagement takes place via the West Midlands Combined Authority and the Local 

Enterprise Partnership. 

• There is a Scrutiny Committee work programme in place, with members of the public 

invited to recommend topics and attend annual work planning meetings. 

• A Forward Plan is in place setting out what consultation will be undertaken in advance of 

decisions being made, and with whom. 

• The Council holds an Equality & Diversity “excellent” accreditation and Equality Impact 

Assessments (EIA’s) are completed for Council decisions. A register of EIA’s is in place and 

kept up to date. 

• A communications strategy is in place. 
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• Customer feedback procedures are in place. 

• Active engagement with employees takes place in several ways including through a bi-

annual survey, regular employee briefings, core briefs, and the corporate management 

forum and through the Joint Union Consultation Forum. 

• Employment policies are developed in consultation with staff and trade unions. 

• Cross party working parties are operated as an additional measure which ensures 

engagement with all members on key Council decisions.  

 

Effectiveness and future developments 

Equality and diversity training is mandatory for all staff and Equality Impact Assessments are a 

key element of the Council’s decision making. A revised template for completing the 

assessments has been put in place and all managers have received training to ensure that the 

assessments are carried out in a consistent manner. In 2020/21 the Council will be seeking to 

be retain its “excellent” Equalities & Diversity accreditation. This will take the form of a self-

assessment followed by independent review and verification by the Local Government 

Association. In 2018/19 the Council commissioned Warwickshire Pride to conduct a survey on 

the experiences of the Rugby borough LGBT+ community. The results indicated that the LGBT+ 

community did not feel comfortable that Rugby is a friendly place for them. The results of the 

survey were analysed, and an action plan was developed jointly with Warwickshire Pride, the 

police, and the county council. This action plan has been delivered and this included provision 

of mandatory LGBT+ training to Council employees and Councillors during 2019/20. In addition, 

Rugby Art Gallery and Museum has partnered up with Warwickshire Pride to work on an 

exhibition linked to local experiences. The project will begin in 2020/21 after the current 

lockdown is lifted.  

The Council uses a range of approaches to engage with communities including through 

associations, forums, leafletting, parish councils, drop in events, Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, 

the website, surveys, and face to face. The current COVID 19 pandemic has enabled use of 

the more innovative means of communication to be maximised. There is a contract with 

language line to support any face to face communication issues and the Council accesses 

the Warwickshire County Council interpretation and translation service to translate written 

documents. The Council is a partner of Warwickshire Observatory, which provides information 

and intelligence about Warwickshire and its people. The information provided was used to 

inform the Council’s vision for Rugby Town Centre and to inform the development of the 

Corporate Strategy for 2017-20. The information is also used by staff when completing Equality 

Impact Assessments, which helps to ensure that decisions are taken after due consideration of 

the potential impacts across the community. 

Following an extensive consultation which generated over 6,000 submissions, the Local Plan 

was approved by the Council in April 2019. The Council also approved the Supplementary 

Planning Document for Coton Park East – delivering on the allocation set out in the Local Plan. 

The Council is also consulting on the South West Rugby Supplementary Planning Document 

with engagement across a broad spectrum of stakeholders. The Statement of Community 

Involvement was updated in October 2019, reflecting consultation on neighbourhood plans. 

During 2020/21 the Council will be working towards delivery of the Local Plan to meet housing 

and employment objectives. 

2019/20 saw the Council launch its ambitious masterplan detailing a range of improvements 

to the recreation ground at Featherbed Lane including a picnic area, wildflower meadows 

and dozens of trees. The Council then launched a public consultation to invite residents to 

communicate what they thought about the plans. Following this the Council will now finalise 

the plan before looking to secure funding for the project. 
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The decant of Rounds Gardens is in progress, which involves some 186 flats across 3 blocks in 

addition to sheltered accommodation. The Council is taking the same approach applied 

successfully for the decant of Biart Place with extensive communication, knowing the tenants 

and understanding what they need and ensuring there is suitable alternative housing. Project 

planning is robust and effective – working closely with the Council’s registered provider 

partners and the private sector. Flexibility is being applied by the Council to offer additional 

support to tenants where it is needed. There is also ongoing engagement with stakeholders in 

relation to the future of the Biart Place and Rounds Gardens sites, including wider business and 

community consultation.  

Rugby Art Gallery and Museum consults with audiences and community groups to ensure 

services are responsive to local needs and reflective of the local community. In 2019/20 a new 

partnership was developed with young carers; consultation resulted in visits and workshops 

being designed around their needs. Rugby Art Gallery and Museum has long term partnerships 

with the Benn Partnership Centre and Age UK to engage socially isolated adults and adults 

living with dementia in creative and stimulating experiences. Activities are constantly adapted 

following participant feedback. During the current Covid-19 Lockdown this work was 

transferred to digital resources with art packs distributed to participants via partners, the 

Shielding Hub and the Food Bank. 

 

PRINCIPLE C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 

benefits 

Arrangements in place 

• Approved Corporate Strategy in place covering the period 2017-2020, and which was 

subject to a public consultation exercise.  

• Medium Term Financial Plan is regularly reviewed and updated, with the latest iteration 

presented to Cabinet in February 2020. 

• Cabinet and Committee reports set out the potential impacts of changes on stakeholders.  

• Strategic and operational risk registers are in place, and a register of corporate risks has 

been drafted for approval.  

• A “clean” Value for Money opinion was received from the external auditors in 2019. 

• As part of plans to ensure the Council is fit for the future, decisions are taken for the long 

term including the implementation of green waste charges, digitalisation of services and 

internal processes, a forward plan for the Rugby Art Gallery and Museum, and through the 

commercialisation agenda. 

• The Council has declared a climate emergency and has committed to address its impact 

on the climate. 

• The Council consults widely on its proposals considering the economic, social, and 

environmental impacts of plans, policies, and decisions. 

• There is a clear vision for Rugby Town Centre including an action plan and marketing plan. 

• All planning and development decisions are considered openly and transparently in terms 

of their economic, social, and environmental benefits and impacts. 

Effectiveness and future developments 

The Family Lifestyle Programme came to the end of its 4-year programme funding with Public 

Health Warwickshire in October 2019. The Change Maker programme has successfully 

delivered a 9-week family weight management programme to families across Warwickshire to 

support them in living healthy lifestyles. The team successfully hit their objectives of supporting 

200+ families every year. The service was merged with the School Health and Wellbeing Service 

due to a re-structure within Public Health Warwickshire and Warwickshire County Council. 

Rugby Borough Council Sport and Recreation team created a partnership with Compass for 
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a joint application and were successfully awarded the new 9-year contract that began in 

November 2019. 

 

The Play Ranger service continued to evolve its community offer with the introduction of a new 

Forest School programme. This has been developed with internal Play Rangers who actively 

deliver the programme for Boughton Leigh Junior School, with Cawston Grange Primary School 

requesting the service upon completion of their new school forest area. National Playday is an 

annual event delivered on Whitehall Recreation Ground and reached approximately 1,500 

attendees over the course of 4 hours. The event is always welcomed by the community and 

well supported with various organisations and activities on offer.  

 

The Council’s social inclusion programme continues to develop with a strong 2019 seeing 

£120,000 of income generated from schools fees and charges and community funding and 

support from partners such as Hill Street Community Centre, Orbit Housing, Brownsover 

Community Association, Long Lawford Parish Council and Fareham Youth Trust. Youth Clubs 

continue to be delivered across Brownsover, Overslade, Hillmorton, Long Lawford and Hill 

Street Community Centre, with each Club having between 15 and 60 young people accessing 

youth services and diversionary activities. 

 

The programme of events for The Benn Hall continues to develop and evolve as the venue 

becomes a significant entertainment venue in the Town Centre. The venue reached over 95% 

capacity for several events, whilst additional Christmas Party Evenings were added due 

to increasing attendance. Local theatre productions from local promotor Five Star 

Entertainment saw 1000+ visitors over the show period for 'Annie', with similar attendances for 

'The Wind in The Willows'. The venue continues to provide support to the local community with 

the provision of hall hire for groups and organisations, including annual celebration events such 

as Rugby Town Juniors football presentation evening. Blood donation continues to take place 

at The Benn Hall as a regular booking, and this has been maintained throughout the Covid-19 

crisis. 

 

The Queens Diamond Jubilee Centre is the only Council owned leisure centre within the Rugby 

borough, operated in partnership with GLL under their brand 'Better'. The Centre provides gym, 

swim, spa, and sports hall activities across a range of membership options to be accessible to 

the whole community. The Centre's Swim School continues to offer a strong performing 

programme with over 2,100 registered members. This is supported by an average of 3,100 pre-

paid members who may access the various options of gym only, swim only or full 

membership. On an annual basis the Centre takes a team of Rugby participants to the 

Olympic Park, London to take part in the GLL Games. Here all GLL centres offer their members 

the opportunity to take part in a variety of competitions inside an Olympic venue and 

participants get to enjoy competing against other regional teams.  

 

The new Brownsover community facility has identified plans to expand activities for the 

community. The key areas of focus are provision of an internet café, tackling the skills gap and 

access to work, financial services, housing support and the credit union, providing access to 

health and wellbeing services in partnership with the new medical centre, and providing a 

space that can be hired for children’s parties. 

 

There are a wide range of activities across the Council’s various independent living schemes, 

including indoor curling, breakfast clubs, bingo, knit and natter groups and armchair yoga. In 

addition, during 2019/20 the Council worked with Public Health to host several wellbeing days, 

where general health checks and nutrition advice was given, along with general tips for 

keeping well. Attendees were also offered 12 weeks free membership of Slimming World, if 

appropriate. 

 

Work has been ongoing to implement the Council’s housing strategy. Priorities have been the 

provision of new affordable homes to meet community need and progressing the decant of 
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Rounds Gardens. The main conduit for delivering new homes was the delivery of S106 homes 

by Registered Providers. The Council also continued to grow its portfolio of housing via S106 

and the open market. In 2019/20 the Council worked with Orbit, Clarion, Citizen, Midland 

Heart, SAGE, Sanctuary and Bromford to build 228 new affordable homes. In addition, the 

Council built and acquired 33 new homes for rent. The Tenant Representative Panel has 

developed its core range of activities to take on more of a scrutiny role through – pre-letting 

inspections, communal cleaning inspections, estate walkabouts and the creation of a new 

readers panel. They have also contributed to a review of the conditions of tenancy and the 

tenant handbook. 

The Rugby Lotto, launched in May 2019, provides the voluntary and community sector with the 

opportunity to raise funds to achieve their objectives. The scheme is currently generating 

approximately £34,500 in revenue per annum for the sector in Rugby. The cost of running the 

Lotto is limited to the renewal of the annual Gambling Commission Licence, membership of 

the Lotteries Council and the occasional bolt-on prize as a marketing tool. Officers assess the 

eligibility of organisations to join the Lotto, but this is not onerous. An additional Service Level 

Agreement has been put in place with the Long Lawford Community Association for £7,500 

per annum for the period 2020-22, utilising funding from the Council’s allocation due from the 

proceeds of the Rugby Lotto. Pawprints Dog Rescue, which helped with the lotto launch 

campaign, has benefited to the tune of £4,500 during the first year - a much-needed 

contribution towards the charity's veterinary bills. 

 

In 2019/20 the Parks & Grounds service received several accolades including: 

• Heart of England in Bloom – Gold medal award in the small city category and overall 

winner in the Heart of England region. 

• Britain in Bloom – Silver Gilt award. 

• DEFRA Bees Needs Awards – the Council received 3 awards for all its efforts in helping to 

sustain pollinators. The awards were for all its efforts to sustain pollinators at Centenary Park, 

Gladstone Green, and the urban meadow project.   

• Green Flag Awards – these are the international standard for parks and green spaces and 

the Council again received 5 awards for Caldecott Park (for the 12th consecutive year), 

Centenary Park, Millennium Green, Rainsbrook Cemetery and Crematorium, and 

Gladstone Green Pocket Park. 

During this year the Council has implemented changes to its grounds maintenance service 

following a review to ensure that it is operating efficiently whilst still delivering a cost-effective 

service for residents. The Council has also spent a considerable amount of time working with 

Planning colleagues, examining the Local Plan to ensure these areas provide environmental 

benefits such as opens spaces for new and emerging communities. 

The Council has provided a pivotal role so far in the provision of support to the community 

during the COVID 19 pandemic including operating the local Foodbank, a Shielding Hub, 

providing additional Council Tax support and paying grant refunds to businesses. 

The COVID 19 pandemic also led to a spike in demand in for the Customer Advice and Support 

service. The merging of this service has helped enable those in crisis to be dealt with more 

effectively with a joined-up approach to their needs. The Council has also provided additional 

support to rough sleepers including the provision of temporary accommodation. The 

development of Rugby Pathway is the next step in this area – looking at customers with 

complex needs and entrenched rough sleepers. The Rugby Pathway will provide a 

wraparound support service including mental health and addiction problems and helping with 

access to health service support.  

A restructuring of the Community Wardens was completed which provided a major service 

improvement for residents and businesses with the wardens now providing community-based 

customer services 7 days per week. Services include responding to anti-social behaviour, 
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nuisance, dog warden services, car park support, and enforcement. The service has been 

extended to support other teams within the council that do not have out of hours cover. 

2019/20 saw a 60% increase in group visits on the previous year to the World Rugby Hall of 

Fame and The Rugby Town welcomed visitors from 38 different countries to the Hall of Fame 

and guided walking tours. In December 2019 World Rugby and the Council launched the 

international and national marketing campaign ‘Destination Rugby’. 2019/20 was also Rugby 

World Cup year and 535 school children visited the Hall of Fame, representing a 192% increase 

on the previous year. 

On 18 July 2019, the Council declared a climate emergency. In early 2020 Rugby Art Gallery 

and Museum staged the exhibition Fools Gold, by artists Pamela Schilderman and Hayley 

Harrison, interrogating climate change and the value of materials; challenging local 

audiences to engage in the conversations and pledge personal action. 

Finally, the Council is working to develop affordable funeral services for those who would 

otherwise be in funeral poverty, whilst ensuring such services provide a dignified funeral. Work 

is ongoing to source a suitable funeral director for these services. 

 

PRINCIPLE D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of intended 

outcomes 

Arrangements in place 

• The Council manages performance through published local and management 

performance indicators; this enables intervention to be targeted where it is needed. 

• The service planning process is designed to ensure that the Council targets the actions 

necessary to deliver the Corporate Strategy. 

• The corporate performance management system (RPMS) is used to monitor the delivery of 

action plans. 

• There are four distinct service areas with a Head of Service and dedicated member 

portfolio holder for each area. 

• Committee and Cabinet reports set out the risks and options associated with decisions. 

• A “clean” Value for Money opinion was received from the external auditors in 2019 and 

the Contract Standing Orders and financial instructions are designed to ensure best value. 

• Quarterly finance and performance reports are submitted to and reviewed by Cabinet. 

• An annual budget report is submitted and there is an established budget setting and 

monitoring process. 

• The Medium-Term Financial Plan is regularly reviewed and updated, with the latest iteration 

covering the period 2020 – 2024 was endorsed by Cabinet in February 2020. 

• Approved Asset Management Strategy in place. 

• The Council consults widely on its proposals considering the economic, social, and 

environmental impacts of plans, policies, and decisions. 

• There is a Forward Plan of key decisions and scrutiny committee arrangements in place. 

• A customer feedback procedure is in place. 

• Key corporate projects, for example digitalisation, the housing management system, and 

the corporate asset management system, have governance boards in place to provide 

oversight and ensure effective delivery. 

Effectiveness and future developments 

As part of the corporate strategy the Council has continued to facilitate investment and 

growth in Rugby. This is evidenced by further progress in developing the site of the old Rugby 
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Radio Station; the primary school is open along with a major link road, and the secondary 

school is expected to open in Autumn 2020. The Council is also working in partnership with 

Warwickshire County Council to develop a sustainable transport plan for the Borough, 

including where interventions could be made to expand road capacity in Rugby. 

Route optimisation software is being implemented for refuse services; this will ensure that refuse 

rounds are completed in a more efficient manner requiring fewer rounds to be completed. 

The software will result in an improved customer experience as reports of missed bins will be 

addressed more quickly. It is expected that significant financial savings will also be realised, 

helping to ensure that the Council has the funds available to achieve the corporate strategy 

outcomes.  

An approved Asset Management Strategy is in place to facilitate delivery of the Corporate 

Strategy priority of “optimising the use of our land and assets”. A new Corporate Asset 

Management System is being implemented to enable better management and utilisation of 

the Council’s assets. The strategy sets out the high-level integrated vision of the Council’s 

approach to all its property assets both in terms of operational land and buildings, and 

affordable housing and land. There are five key principles set out in the strategy: 

• Acquire or develop homes to meet the housing service strategy and customer needs. 

• Dispose of small and difficult parcels of land to free up cash and staff resources. 

• Ensure statutory, health & safety and disability compliance of all Council built 

environment assets. 

• Ensure efficient and effective space, energy usage, and sustainability within the 

Council’s built assets to maximise value; and 

• Efficient and effective asset management systems and internal communication 

procedures. 

The Council led the bid to Central Government to set up and run a Warwickshire wide pilot 

service to prevent homelessness at an early stage. This way of working was new and untested 

in a Local Authority environment. PHIL (Preventing Homelessness Improving Lives) has now 

completed 224 preventions, compared with 50 by the end of last year. This has been achieved 

through setting up an enhanced partnership working approach including receiving referrals 

from partnership agencies, sending out regular correspondence to partners through a 

newsletter, having a social media presence, facilitating an online housing options self-

assessment tool and presenting at strategic meetings. The project is governed by the 

Warwickshire Heads of Housing Board (WHOH). Work is ongoing to evaluate the costs and 

benefits of the project and to determine future longer-term plans.  

The Council has continued to support the Business Improvement District by providing match 

funding for town centre events including the Food Festival, Bike Fest, Christmas Lights Switch 

on and the Festival of Culture. 

A Private Sector Housing Charter has been developed outlining what residents should expect 

from a private sector landlord. Public Space Protection Orders have continued to be reviewed 

particularly in relation to nuisance behaviour in alleyways and the Licensing team has been 

inspecting vehicles used in school transport, resulting in the removal of unsafe vehicles. 

The Council has pledged to improve the quality of its digital services and technology and has 

begun to reshape its capability to deliver that change. The creation of a Digital Board and a 

new Digital Strategy will form a road map of digital change and culture throughout the 

Council. By using the digital-by-default model, the Council will demonstrate how digital 

innovation, data and technology will help its services thrive. The strategy sets a clear vision and 

direction for how digital design, data and technology will support the Council’s ambitions as 

a council to work differently, deliver the Corporate Strategy, and make lasting changes to how 

the Council meets more of its community’s needs, quicker and more conveniently and making 
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sure that it does so inclusively, leaving nobody behind in the process. In line with this strategy, 

a new contact management system is being implemented to bring together and enhance 

the Council’s online service offer, improving the website as a place for doing business with the 

Council online. 

Finally, the Council is currently working to develop a new Corporate Strategy as a matter of 

priority and considering the dramatically changed climate within which the Council is now 

operating due to the COVID 19 pandemic. The new Corporate Strategy is expected to cover 

the 3-year period from 2021 to 2024. 

 

PRINCIPLE E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it 

Arrangements in place 

• Each member of the senior management team undertakes professional development 

appropriate to their role. 

• The respective roles of the Executive Director and Leader are clearly defined. 

• The senior management team meets formally every two weeks and informally every week 

and Cabinet meets on a regular basis.  

• Section 151 (Chief Finance) Officer, Monitoring Officer, and Senior Information Risk Owner 

(SIRO/ CIO – Chief Information Officer) are in post.  

• The Constitution, which was revised and updated in December 2018, sets out roles and 

responsibilities and the Council’s decision-making process. An approved scheme of 

delegation is in place. Contract Standing Orders and associated toolkits are in place and 

are designed to ensure procurement activity is cost effective and ethical. 

• Registers of gifts, hospitality, and conflicts of interest in place. 

• Updated protocol in place setting out the relationship between and roles of members and 

officers. 

• Member training and development programme in place (and currently under review), 

including dedicated training for planning and licensing committee members. 

• HR Strategy approved in April 2018. 

• Thorough induction processes are in place for all new employees and members, linked to 

the corporate values. 

• Job profiles clearly set out the responsibilities of officers throughout the organisation. 

• Learning and Development Strategy and Corporate Learning Group in place. 

• There is a system of regular team meetings and one to one meetings between managers 

and staff. 

• Employee health and wellbeing days are arranged, and confidential employee 

counselling support is always available. 

• A comprehensive suite of training and development courses is offered to all employees. 

• All managers are expected to complete the “Way We Manage” training programme. 

• Corporate Management Forum in place, where managers work together to review what 

has gone well and where the Council can do better. 

• The Council has a comprehensive suite of HR policies covering employee capability, 

disciplinary, recruitment and selection, disciplinary and grievance, and flexible working. 

• An established Corporate Apprenticeship Scheme in place. 

• Where projects are required, teams are put in place based upon the skills and experience 

available. 

• The Council develops the capacity of community and voluntary groups to become more 

self-sufficient. 

• The Council participates in the Local Authority Challenge. 
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Effectiveness and future developments 

The Council has a Corporate Apprenticeship scheme and there have been 47 apprentices 

since the scheme started in 2011. The apprentices provide a range of valuable support to 

various Council services whilst undergoing a structured programme of self-development and 

qualifications. 

Over 100 managers have completed the Council’s “Way We Manage” corporate training 

programme. This is a significant investment in the workforce. The training includes governance 

issues such as financial management, performance management, health and safety and 

procurement procedures. The programme is being reviewed and updated, and the 

opportunity has been taken during the COVID 19 pandemic to successfully deliver some 

modules of this training online via digital means. 

The HR Strategy was approved in April 2018 and is aligned with the corporate strategy and 

values and behaviours framework. There are six key principles set out within the strategy: 

• Attract and retain a “CANDO” workforce. 

• Develop leadership. 

• Build workforce skills and capability. 

• Nurture employee engagement and wellbeing. 

• Continuous review of terms & conditions and remuneration; and 

• Provide an excellent HR service. 

A consistent format is in place for one to one meetings between managers and staff. A 

standard agenda is in use which enables staff development needs to be identified and 

addressed throughout the year rather than at six monthly or yearly intervals. Furthermore, the 

training material is aligned to corporate values. The content of the “Way We Manage” training 

programme is being reviewed to ensure it enables managers to have the right skills to drive 

excellence. The management training programme has also been extended to include a 

formal management qualification.  The Council has also introduced a new programme – The 

Way We Work – for new employees to ensure they have all the information about the Council 

and the skills set to offer excellent services to customers.  

The COVID 19 pandemic has also led to a step change in the way the Council works, with 

Council services able to continue being delivered digitally and remotely. Officers have made 

use of modern technology, for example by having virtual instead of face to face meetings 

The Corporate Learning Group meets bi-monthly and includes portfolio representatives who 

agree jointly on the approach to learning and development activity.  

Implementation of the Counter Fraud Strategy and Fraud Response Plan has led to a more 

consistent approach to investigation of irregularities across the Council and improved 

awareness amongst staff. This included the provision of investigative training to four additional 

managers, which has improved the resilience of the fraud investigation function. Counter 

Fraud, Bribery and corruption awareness training was delivered to managers and members in 

2018 and a rolling programme of training for individual teams is in place. 

The Council has implemented an employee forum and appointed mental health first aiders. 

These people have been trained in how to spot the signs and symptoms of mental ill health 

and provide help on a first aid basis. In the same way as learning physical first aid, Mental 

Health First Aiders know how to recognise those crucial warning signs of mental ill health and 

feel confident to guide someone to appropriate support. This initiative encourages people to 

talk more freely about mental health, reducing stigma and creating a more positive culture.  

During the COVID 19 pandemic some 60% of the Council’s employees have been working 

from home and an increased emphasis has been placed on mental health during this time, 
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with staff encouraged to reach out to each other on a regular basis. Regular communications 

have been issued including guidance on how to keep well whilst working from home, and free 

access to online counselling has also been provided. The COVID 19 pandemic has also led to 

a step change in the way the Council works, with Council services able to continue being 

delivered digitally and remotely. Officers have made use of modern technology, for example 

by having virtual instead of face to face meetings. Officers have also shown a very high level 

of dedication and flexibility, with many taking on additional duties or being redeployed to 

support the front line, as well as dealing with their own personal challenges created by the 

pandemic. 

As indicated above, the member training programme is currently being reviewed to ensure 

there is effective engagement and that members are developed to fulfil their roles as 

effectively as possible. Some improvements have been implemented in 2019/20, for example 

the provision of scrutiny, licensing, and planning committee training. Equalities and diversity 

training was also delivered virtually, and this was very well attended. The revised training 

programme will focus on the key governance areas and the opportunity is being taken to 

apply lessons learned during the COVID 19 pandemic by exploring the provision of more online 

member training. See Action 2.   

 

PRINCIPLE F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management 

Arrangements in place 

• The Council has a risk management strategy in place which was reviewed and updated 

in February 2019. Strategic and operational risk registers are in place; the strategic risk 

register was redesigned in February 2020. Senior management, Audit & Ethics Committee, 

Cabinet, Strategic Risk Management Group, and the Health & Safety Members Working 

Party, all oversee the risk management arrangements. 

• A regular risk assessment of the Council’s financial reserves and balances is conducted. 

Key risks are identified, and potential financial impacts are quantified. Reserves are 

reviewed annually in the context of the risk assessments. 

• A new Medium-Term Financial Strategy was approved in April 2018 and an updated 

Medium-Term Financial Plan was presented to Cabinet in February 2020. 

• Financial information is published on a regular basis and established and embedded 

budget setting and monitoring procedures are in place. 

• Cabinet and Committee system in place including two scrutiny committees and an Audit 

& Ethics Committee with independent Chair and Vice Chairs. 

• Training is provided to all members of the Audit & Ethics, Scrutiny, Planning and Licensing 

Committees to ensure that they are suitably skilled to carry out their role effectively. 

• Counter fraud strategy, fraud response plan and confidential reporting code in place. 

• The internal audit service provides an independent and objective annual report and 

opinion. 

• Service planning and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) have been developed in line with 

the Corporate Strategy. 

• A corporate system is used to monitor, manage, and report performance and conduct 

verification checks on the quality of data. Performance data is reported quarterly to 

Cabinet and is reviewed by a scrutiny committee. 

• Data sharing protocols are in place where applicable. 

Effectiveness and future developments 
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The annual report of the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager provides a 

Substantial level of assurance that the Council has an adequate and effective control 

environment in place. The Internal Audit Service uses Risk Based Internal Auditing (RBIA), which 

is recognised as best practice. The work of internal audit is aligned closely with the aims and 

risk profile of the Council and the service is responsive to emerging issues and risks.  

A Data Maturity assessment was completed and overall, the Council scored a basic level of 

performance management and data maturity, with elements of Intermediate. A Data Maturity 

Improvement action plan has been developed and some actions to elevate the Council’s 

maturity level are already in progress. One of those requirements was an assessment of the 

quality of data used to inform Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). A Data Quality Assurance 

Programme had been developed by the Corporate Assurance & Improvement team; of 198 

measures reviewed in 2019/20 169 (85%) were provided with a high or substantial level of 

assurance. The overall score of the Self-Assessment was broken down into five areas. Data Use 

(scored Basic), Data Culture (scored Basic), Data Management (scored Basic), Data Skills 

(scored Intermediate) and Data Governance (scored Intermediate). The key actions planned 

for 2020/21 (see Action 9) include: 

• A review of service objectives to ensure they are clearly defined and relevant. This is key 

to ensuring that data captured and reported is relevant to those objectives. 

• A full evaluation of each department’s data maturity, including any data which is 

captured and used to support decision making outside of the Rugby Performance 

Management System (RPMS). 

• Automation of the capture and reporting of data, which will free up resource to focus on 

the value-added work of reviewing data and using it to drive performance improvement 

across the organisation. Alongside this a review will be completed to identify any data 

analysis skills gaps. 

Further progress has been made during 2019/20 to implement the Risk Management Strategy. 

Recent risk management work has included: 

• A review and update of operational risk registers across the Council.  

• Development of a corporate risk register for managing the implications of the COVID 19 

pandemic for the organisation. This helps to provide assurance that the Council has 

considered the potential impacts of COVID 19, that appropriate controls have been 

established to monitor and manage COVID 19 related risks, and that appropriate action is 

being taken to manage the likelihood of risks materialising, and the associated impacts. 

Appropriate steps are also being taken to prepare for the recovery of the organisation, the 

town and local economy and the environment. This work will feed into the Council’s new 

Corporate Strategy for 2021 to 2024. 

• An external review of the ICT risk register,  

• Development of guidance to support managers in reviewing and updating their 

operational risk registers using the RPMS system. 

 

Further work is planned during 2020/21 to implement the Risk Management Strategy (see 

Action 5) and this includes: 

• Delivery of internal audit assurance work in relation to the key controls declared on 

operational risk registers.  

• A review of the quality of operational risk registers, including ensuring their alignment with 

service objectives. 

• Provision of risk management advice in advance of key decisions being taken. This will help 

to ensure that key risks are considered in advance of decisions being taken, and that such 

decisions are more informed. 
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• Finalisation of the corporate risk register, ensuring those risks which cut across service areas 

are coordinated and managed at the corporate level. 

The Medium-Term Financial Strategy sets out the measures being taken by the Council to 

prepare as far as possible for the future. The Council has continued to implement policies to 

support its route to financial self-sufficiency. This includes ongoing work to understand the costs 

of running the various services and the benefits to customers, ensuring that services are run 

efficiently and effectively. Examples of outcomes from this work are the implementation of 

route optimisation software for the green waste service, ongoing implementation of the 

digitalisation programme, and installing audio visual in the Council Chamber, reducing 

administration expenditure. A review of fees and charges was also carried out during the year. 

The Council does, however, face considerable financial uncertainty particularly with the 

backdrop of the COVID 19 pandemic and its impact on income and expenditure. 

There are several projects being implemented to help the Council become financially self-

sufficient by becoming a more efficient and effective organisation. These projects include: 

• Implementation of a new housing management system to provide an improved 

customer experience and deliver a digitally enabled service that residents can access. 

• Implementation of a new IT system called “Agile” in the Development Management 

and Enforcement service, enabling a more efficient process for staff and customers. 

• Route optimisation of the domestic and trade waste and recycling rounds. 

• Implementation of a corporate asset management system and the asset 

management strategy, including a review of the assets which the Council owns and 

strategically acquiring assets, for example to prevent homelessness. 

• Implementation of a new IT solution for the Licensing service. 

• A focus on promoting the use of digital channels by customers. 

• Working to set up a regional Materials Recycling Facility which will be Local Authority 

owned and operated. This is the first example of local authorities working together in 

this area. A governance framework is being set up for the project, which will involve 

working with partners to deliver best value recycling for the community. 

• A new 14 year rolling fleet replacement programme has been developed. 

An external review of the Council’s arrangements for managing health and safety for the 

waste, transport and parks services was carried out during the year, resulting in enhanced 

monitoring to ensure safe working for members of staff and the public. The Council is extending 

its in house health and safety expertise with one person currently studying for a professional 

qualification. Work has also been ongoing with the environment agency to provide assurance 

that statutory requirements are being met.  

The Council has developed the robustness of its emergency planning and business continuity 

arrangements during 2019/20; a new Joint Emergency Planning Officer is in place providing 

support and resilience to this function. A new emergency plan has been developed for 

approval, and a training exercise was conducted with the Senior Management Team. 

Finally, a new suite of key performance measures was established for Waste Services leading 

to better accountability. The Council achieved a 50% reduction in the number of missed bins, 

along with an increase in mixed recycling tonnage and the number of green waste service 

subscriptions.  

 

PRINCIPLE G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 

effective accountability 

Arrangements in place 
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• A range of information is published including an annual report of internal audit, the 

financial statements, the annual report of the external auditor and this annual governance 

statement, which contains an action plan demonstrating a commitment to continuous 

improvement. 

• All reports are subject to a robust internal review process to ensure they are presented in 

an understandable style. 

• The performance information set out in the financial statements is prepared in 

consideration of the presentational approach adopted by other similar authorities. 

• Performance data is reported quarterly to Cabinet and is reviewed by a scrutiny 

committee. 

• There is an open data section on the Council’s website which includes details of senior 

officer salaries. 

• Independent scrutiny training provided to members, the Democratic Services team and 

senior management during 2019/20. 

• Implementation of external audit recommendations is monitored by the Financial Services 

Manager/ Interim Chief Finance Officer. 

• Implementation of internal audit recommendations is monitored by the Corporate 

Assurance and Improvement Manager and reported to senior management and the Audit 

& Ethics Committee. 

• The Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager is provided with direct unfettered 

access to the Chair and Vice Chairs of the Audit & Ethics Committee. 

• Internal audit plan coverage includes governance and ethics related audits, in line with 

the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

• The Council submits itself to external peer reviews including by the Local Government 

Association and has welcomed an equalities and diversity peer review and challenge. 

Action plans arising from these reviews are monitored by the senior management team. 

• Governance arrangements for jointly managed organisations and partnerships have been 

assessed by Internal Audit and a Substantial level of assurance was provided. 

• A follow up Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office visit to the Council concluded that 

satisfactory arrangements in place including a Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 

(RIPA) policy. Training in the application of the RIPA policy is to be provided to officers in 

2020/21. 

• Invitations to tender are published along with the contracts register. 

 

Effectiveness and future developments 

The Annual Audit Letter for 2018/19 provided assurance over the Council’s financial control 

and overall governance arrangements. 

The presentation of the Council’s financial statements is designed to make them easy to read 

and for stakeholders to understand. The design of this annual governance statement is also 

intended to make it easy to read, and it has been prepared in line with good practice 

guidelines published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA).  

The internal audit service was subject to an external quality assessment in September 2017 

which concluded that there were no areas of non-compliance with the public sector internal 

audit standards that would affect the overall scope or operation of the internal audit activity. 

A self-assessment conducted by the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager in May 

2020 has concluded that the internal audit service continues to operate in general 

conformance with the standards. 

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) has published guidance on 

the function and operation of audit committees in local authorities. Self-assessment checklists 



  Appendix A 

19 
 

and effectiveness evaluation forms were circulated to all members and named substitutes of 

the Audit & Ethics Committee, using the CIPFA guidance as a benchmark. This exercise 

highlighted several areas in which the effectiveness of the Audit & Ethics Committee could be 

enhanced. The Committee has formed a working group, to examine the opportunities for 

improvement and develop and implement an appropriate action plan. As part of this plan 

independent in-house training was procured with the intention being that this would support 

the Committee to maximise its effectiveness. This training was scheduled for June 2020 but is 

being rescheduled due to the COVID 19 pandemic. See action 6. 

During the COVID 19 pandemic the Council has ensured continuity of decision making by 

applying the use of Emergency Powers as set out in the Constitution. During this time there 

have been regular Question and Answer sessions between senior management and members. 

Decisions taken under delegated authority have been published. The Council has 

implemented virtual meetings live streamed to the public, with recordings placed on the 

website, making them more accessible. These arrangements have ensured discipline and 

structure to the Council’s decision making during the pandemic. 

An internal audit review of compliance with the Local Government Transparency Code found 

that of the 13 sets of mandatory information only 3 were being published in accordance with 

the code regarding both content and timeliness. There were 2 of these 13 areas where no 

data was being published at all. For the other 11 areas data was only partly published and/or 

was not being updated in accordance with the stipulated frequency under the code. There 

was no central schedule of publication held and no chase mechanism in place to ensure up 

to date information is obtained from the relevant departments on a regular basis. The report 

was considered in full by the Audit & Ethics Committee in January 2020 and a follow up internal 

audit review will be completed in 2020/21. See Action 7. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. PROGRESS ON DELIVERY OF LAST YEAR’S ACTION PLAN 
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 Improvement Action Assessment of Progress 

1 Require all employees to confirm 

that they have read and 

understand the Counter Fraud, 

Bribery and Corruption Strategy and 

Fraud Response Plan. 

Completed 

2 Develop an Information 

Governance framework for the 

Council and implement the action 

plan arising from an internal audit 

review of Data Protection 

Governance. Ensure that the 

Information Governance Group 

reports periodically to the Senior 

Management Team on its activities 

and any significant issues and 

emerging risks. 

In Progress 

 

During 2019/20 the Information Governance 

Group has made progress in several areas 

including development of an Information 

Management framework, training, and 

developing and implementing a clear desk 

policy. A decision was also taken to procure 

cyber insurance to help protect the Council from 

adverse impacts arising from a cyber-attack. 

Furthermore, the Council took the decision to 

upgrade its systems to reduce the likelihood of a 

successful cyber-attack. Staff were also provided 

with additional instructions about sharing 

information, locking screens, and protecting 

passwords whilst working in a more agile way 

during the COVID 19 pandemic. 

3 Update the IT Code of Conduct to 

reflect the increasing number of 

agile workers. Develop and 

implement an agile working policy. 

In Progress 

 

The agile working policy is being developed and 

refined, considering the dramatic increase 

during the COVID 19 pandemic. The policy will 

be finalised along with the updated IT Code of 

Conduct as soon as practicable. 

4 Implement the action plan arising 

from the Warwickshire Pride survey 

of the Rugby borough LGBT+ 

community. Deliver LGBT+ training 

to all Council employees. 

Completed 

 

This included provision of mandatory LGBT+ 

training to officers and members. 

5 Publish the decisions which involve 

officers exercising their delegated 

authority, including the rationale. 

Completed 

6 Develop a financial inclusion 

strategy to support tenants. 

In Progress 

 

A draft of the new Strategy has been produced. 

The Council is also playing a leading role in the 

development of the new Warwickshire 

Homelessness Strategy, working in partnership 

with the County Council and Public Health to 

develop the financial inclusion chapter.  

7 Complete the internal audit review 

of customer feedback 

arrangements, including 

consideration of their effectiveness 

and how services measure 

customer satisfaction more widely 

outside of the formal system. Report 

the results of the audit back to the 

Council’s Operational Manager 

Group. 

Completed 
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 Improvement Action Assessment of Progress 

8 Review the member training 

programme, ensuring there is 

effective engagement and that 

members are developed to fulfil 

their roles as effectively as possible. 

In Progress 

 

Improvements have been implemented in 

2019/20, for example the provision of scrutiny, 

licensing, and planning committee training. 

Equalities and diversity training was also 

delivered virtually, and this was very well 

attended. The revised training programme will 

focus on the key governance areas and the 

opportunity is being taken to apply lessons 

learned during the COVID 19 pandemic by 

exploring the provision of more online member 

training. 

9 Publish the report summarising the 

Council’s performance against the 

corporate strategy in 2018/19 on 

the Council’s website alongside the 

financial statements. Finalise the 

agreed suite of KPIs for the 2019/20 

financial year. 

Completed 

10 Implement the Risk Management 

Strategy action plan. 

In Progress 

 

The work completed, and the further work 

planned for 2020/21, are set out under Principle E 

within this statement. 

11 Obtain approval for the corporate 

risk register from the Strategic Risk 

Management Group and submit it 

to the Audit & Ethics Committee for 

review. 

In Progress 

 

In recent months, the Strategic Risk Register and 

COVID 19 corporate risk register have been 

prioritised. Both have been completed, 

reviewed, and endorsed. The corporate risk 

register exists in draft form and will be 

reconsidered later in 2020 as part of the 

Council’s recovery planning once the immediate 

emergency COVID 19 response has passed. 

 

12 Develop and implement the 

programme of training for the 

scrutiny committee chairs, 

members, the Democratic Services 

team and senior management. 

Update the scrutiny area of the 

Council’s website to encourage 

better public engagement. 

Completed 

13 Develop and implement an action 

plan to enhance the effectiveness 

of the Audit & Ethics Committee. 

In Progress 

 

The Committee has formed a working group, to 

examine the opportunities for improvement and 

develop and implement an appropriate action 

plan. As part of this plan independent in-house 

training was procured with the intention being 

that this would support the Committee to 

maximise its effectiveness. This training was 

scheduled for June 2020 but is being 

rescheduled due to the COVID 19 pandemic. 
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7. UPDATED ACTION PLAN 

 Action Lead officer Target 

completion 

date 

1 Finalise and cascade the agile working policy, 

along with the updated IT Code of Conduct. 

Head of 

Communities and 

Homes 

31/12/2020 

2 Complete the current review of the member 

training programme, ensuring there is effective 

engagement and that members are 

developed to fulfil their roles as effectively as 

possible. 

Legal, Democratic 

and Electoral 

Services Manager 

31/03/2021 

3 Rugby Art Gallery and Museum to deliver joint 

project with Warwickshire Pride. 

Arts Heritage and 

Visitor Services 

Manager 

30/11/2021 

4 Finalise, approve, and implement the new 

Information Governance Framework. 

Head of 

Communities and 

Homes 

31/12/2020 

5 Deliver the planned Risk Management work for 

2020/21, including finalisation of the corporate 

risk register. 

Corporate 

Assurance and 

Improvement 

Manager 

31/03/2021 

6 Deliver independent Audit & Ethics Committee 

effectiveness training. 

Corporate 

Assurance and 

Improvement 

Manager 

31/03/2021 
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7 Implement the action plan arising from the 

internal audit review of compliance with the 

Local Government Transparency Code. 

 

Communications, 

Consultation, and 

Information 

Manager 

30/09/2020 

8 Finalise and implement the new Financial 

Inclusion strategy. 

Head of 

Communities and 

Homes 

 

31/03/2021 

9 Implement the Data Maturity action plan. Corporate 

Assurance and 

Improvement 

Manager 

31/03/2021 

 

 

 

 

8. SUMMARY, CONCLUSION AND CERTIFICATION 

 
8.1 Good governance is about running things properly. It is the means by which the 

Council shows it is taking decisions for the good of the people in the area, in a fair, 

equitable and open way. It also requires standards of behaviour that support good 

decision making – collective and individual integrity, openness, and honesty. It is the 

foundation for the delivery of good quality services that meet all local people’s needs. 

It is fundamental to showing public money is well spent. Without good governance the 

Council will struggle to deliver the outcomes set out in the corporate strategy.  

 

8.2 This statement has been considered by the Audit & Ethics Committee, which was 

satisfied that it is an accurate reflection of the governance framework and that the 

arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the 

governance framework. Several future developments have been highlighted and 

these are specifically addressed within the Action Plan. 

 

8.3 The Council is satisfied that its overall governance framework provides a substantial 

level of assurance of effectiveness, although several further development areas have 

been highlighted. Delivery of the Action Plan will be monitored during 2020/21. 

 

8.4 Our overall assessment is that the Annual Governance Statement is a balanced 

reflection of the governance environment and that an adequate framework exists 

within the Council to ensure an effective internal control environment is maintained. 

We are also satisfied that there are appropriate plans in place to address any 

significant governance issues and will monitor their implementation and operation. 

 

 

 

 

Mannie Ketley - Executive Director 
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 Date: 

 

 

 

 Councillor S Lowe - Leader of Rugby Borough Council 

 Date: 

 



Agenda No 7 
 

AGENDA MANAGEMENT SHEET 
 
Report Title: Strategic Risk Register Update 
  
Name of Committee: Audit and Ethics Committee 
  
Date of Meeting: 7 July 2020 
  
Report Director: Executive Director  
  
Portfolio: Corporate Resources 
  
Ward Relevance: None 
  
Prior Consultation: Strategic Risk Management Group 
  
Contact Officer: Chris Green, Corporate Assurance and 

Improvement Manager, Tel: 01788 533451 
  
Public or Private: Public 
  
Report Subject to Call-In: No 
  
Report En-Bloc: No 
  
Forward Plan: No 
  
Corporate Priorities: 
 
(CR) Corporate Resources 
(CH) Communities and Homes 
(EPR) Environment and Public 
Realm 
(GI) Growth and Investment 
 

This report relates to the following priority(ies): 
 To provide excellent, value for money 

services and sustainable growth 
 Achieve financial self-sufficiency by 2020 
 Enable our residents to live healthy, 

independent lives 
 Optimise income and identify new revenue 

opportunities (CR) 
 Prioritise use of resources to meet changing 

customer needs and demands (CR) 
 Ensure that the council works efficiently and 

effectively (CR) 
 Ensure residents have a home that works for 

them and is affordable (CH) 
 Deliver digitally-enabled services that 

residents can access (CH) 
 Understand our communities and enable 

people to take an active part in them (CH) 
 Enhance our local, open spaces to make 

them places where people want to be (EPR) 
 Continue to improve the efficiency of our 

waste and recycling services (EPR) 
 Protect the public (EPR) 
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 Promote sustainable growth and economic 
prosperity (GI) 

 Promote and grow Rugby’s visitor economy 
with our partners (GI) 

 Encourage healthy and active lifestyles to 
improve wellbeing within the borough (GI) 

 This report does not specifically relate to any 
Council priorities but       

Statutory/Policy Background: Risk Management Strategy. 
 
Section 3 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015 states that the Council must ensure it has 
a sound system of internal control which 
includes effective arrangements for the 
management of risk. 

  
Summary: The report details the Council's strategic risks 

and the arrangements in place for monitoring 
and managing those risks. 

  
Financial Implications: There are no financial implications arising 

directly from this report. 
  
Risk Management Implications: Failure to implement, improve and embed an 

effective risk management strategy would 
increase the risk that the Council does not 
achieve its objectives. 

  
Environmental Implications: There are no environmental implications arising 

from this report. 
  
Legal Implications: There are no legal implications arising from this 

report. 
  
Equality and Diversity: No assessment carried out as no policy or 

service delivery decision is being taken. 
  
Options: None 
  
Recommendations: The report be considered and noted. 

 
  
Reasons for Recommendation: Discharges the committee’s responsibilities 

under the Constitution. 
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Agenda No 7 
 

 
Audit and Ethics Committee - 7 July 2020 

 
Strategic Risk Register Update 

 
Public Report of the Executive Director 

 
Recommendation: 
 
The report be considered and noted. 

 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The Council monitors and manages its strategic risks through the Strategic 

Risk Register. The contents of the report highlight the high-priority strategic 
risks and show the arrangements in place to ensure these risks are monitored 
and managed appropriately.  

 
2. Strategic Risks 
 
2.1 The Strategic Risk Register is reviewed in detail and updated by the Senior 

Management Team at the Strategic Risk Management Group (SRMG) 
meeting. A full review of the Strategic Risk Register was carried out in 2019 to 
align it with the Corporate Strategy. The new Strategic Risk Register was 
approved by the SRMG in February 2020, and was considered again in June 
2020, taking into account the emergence of the COVID 19 pandemic and its 
associated impacts. At this stage a full review and update of the current 
Strategic Risk Register was not considered appropriate; the current corporate 
strategy is being reviewed by Cabinet and the Senior Management Team. A 
revised corporate strategy is being developed as a matter of priority and 
taking into account the dramatically changed climate within which the Council 
is now operating. The Strategic Risk Register has however been amended to 
include reference to the COVID 19 pandemic and its potential impact. A 
separate corporate risk register is in place to monitor and manage the specific 
risks related to the pandemic and emergency response. 

 
2.2 In accordance with the Risk Management Strategy the Audit & Ethics 

Committee receives reports which provide assurance on the effective 
management of the Council’s ‘Top Level’ risks. This report provides details of 
those risks, but has been expanded to provide members with the full Strategic 
Risk Register. The Strategic Risk Register was considered by the Audit & 
Ethics Committee in June 2020, but at the request of the Committee is being 
presented again to enable the latest update to be considered. 

 
2.3 It is not always possible to eliminate risk and given the nature and breadth of 

the Council’s activity and the ever-changing climate within which it operates, 
high level risks are unavoidable. It is also possible that risks are rated as high 
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level even though controls are in place to manage the level of risk. However, 
a high risk score is not necessarily a negative risk, it is purely the true 
indication of the likelihood of an event happening and the impact it could 
have. In such situations the level of risk could be even higher without those 
controls. Risk management is an ongoing process, which involves continual 
identification, analysis, treatment and monitoring. The Council’s approach to 
managing each risk depends upon the nature of the issue at hand. There are 
four options: 
• Tolerate – Decide to live with the risk and the possibility that it might occur 

and its possible consequences; 
• Terminate – Eliminate the risk, usually by deciding to change a course of 

action or stop a particular activity; 
• Transfer – Some of the financial risk may be transferred and it may be 

possible to transfer liability through contractual arrangements; 
• Treat – Control the risk and take action to reduce the likelihood that an 

event will occur or the impact if it does. 
 
2.4 In order that risks may be prioritised according to their severity, the Council 

operates a traffic light system.  Risks are scored within one of the following 
levels: - 

 
Risk Rating Level of Risk Prioritisation 
8-16 High (Red) Immediate attention 
4-6 Medium (Amber) Moderate risk, mitigation action 
1-3 Low (Green) Regular review 

  
 

The Council’s ‘Top Level’ risks are those which are assessed as ‘red’.  There 
are six ‘Top Level’ risks within this report and details are included within 
Appendix A. 

 
 
3. Managing Risk Arrangements 
 
3.1 All of the risks contained within the Strategic Risk Register are monitored and 

managed on a regular basis. 
 
3.2 The Strategic Risk Register is reviewed by Senior Management and 

subsequently endorsed by Cabinet on an annual basis.  The Strategic Risk 
Register will be issued for endorsement by Cabinet. 

 
3.3 Senior Management review the Strategic Risk Register and update the action 

plan on a quarterly basis at the Strategic Risk Management Group meeting – 
making any amendments to the register as required – thus ensuring that the 
Strategic Risk Register remains as up to date as possible. The date of the 
next review is August 2020.  
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Name of Meeting:  Audit and Ethics Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  7 July 2020 
 
Subject Matter:  Strategic Risk Register 
 
Originating Department: Corporate Resources 
 
 
DO ANY BACKGROUND PAPERS APPLY   YES   NO 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
Doc No Title of Document and Hyperlink 
Appendix A Strategic Risk Register 
  
  
  
  
  

The background papers relating to reports on planning applications and which are 
open to public inspection under Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972, 
consist of the planning applications, referred to in the reports, and all written 
responses to consultations made by the Local Planning Authority, in connection with 
those applications. 

 
 

 Exempt information is contained in the following documents: 
 
Doc No Relevant Paragraph of Schedule 12A 
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RUGBY BOROUGH COUNCIL                                                           
                         STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER 

 
 
CORPORATE STRATEGY PRIORITY :   ALL 
 
RISK TYPE :      Strategic 
 
COMPLETED BY:   Leadership Team & SRMG                             DATE:  June 2020 

 
[Risk Management Officer to complete] 
 
Risk Code :     
 
Category : 

 
 

 
 

Risk 

 
 

Opportunities 

 
 

Consequences 

 
 

Existing Internal Controls 

Assessment of Risk based on 
the review of existing controls Direction 

of Risk 
Likelihood Impact Risk 

Rating 
If the Council does not 
optimise income and identify 
new revenue opportunities 
then financial self-sufficiency 
might not be achieved by 
2021 
 
(1) 
 
 
Owner: Adam Norburn 

-Identify revenue streams -Reputational Damage 
-Complaints 
-Political interference 
-Service reductions may be 
required 
-Council Tax increases 
-Non compliance with statutory 
requirements if income generation 
takes precedence (e.g. 
Transparency Code) 
 

-Review of Commercial Lifeline and 
Handyman resources 
-Reviewing marketing resources 
towards income generation activities 
(action) 
-Policy to review fees and charges 
annually 
-Business planning activity 
-Medium Term Financial Planning 
-Review of quarterly finance reports 
-Completion of benchmarking with 
West Midlands District Councils 
 

3 3 9  ↔ 

Original 
Risk 

Score 
Further Action / Controls Desired Score 

Status: 
Being 

considered 
/In progress 
/Completed 

Officer Responsible 
Target 

completion 
date 

 
Actual 

completion 
date 

Review 
Frequency 

  Likelihood Impact Residual 
Risk Rating 

     
 

9 
 

(1) 
 

 
-Review key strands arising from the 
West Mids District report 

 
2 

 
3 

 
6 

 
In progress 

 
Adam Norburn 
 
 

 
31/12/2020 

  
Quarterly 
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Risk 

 
 

Opportunities 

 
 

Consequences 

 
 

Existing Internal Controls 

Assessment of Risk based on 
the review of existing controls 

Direction 
of Risk 

Likelihood Impact Risk 
Rating  

If the Council doesn’t 
prioritise its resources to 
meet the changing customer 
needs and demands then it 
won’t deliver value for 
money services. 
 
(2) 
 
 
Owner: Adam Norburn 

-Improve access to 
services and 
understanding customer 
needs 

-Reputational damage 
-Complaints 
-Overspending on services which 
do not meet the needs of the 
community 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-Development and greater use of 
digitalisation and IT 
-Business planning activity and 
action plans 
-Medium Term Financial Planning 
-Stakeholder consultation 
-Systems thinking reviews 
-Climate emergency working group 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 4 8  ↔ 

Original 
Risk 

Score 
Further Action / Controls Desired Score 

Status: 
Being 

considered 
/In progress 
/Completed 

Officer Responsible 
Target 

completion 
date 

 
Actual 

completion 
date 

Review 
Frequency 

  Likelihood Impact Residual 
Risk Rating 

     
8 
 

(2) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-Implementation of digitalisation strategy 
and action plan 

2 4 8 In progress Raj Chand 31/03/2021   Quarterly 
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Risk 

 
 

Opportunities 

 
 

Consequences 

 
 

Existing Internal Controls 

Assessment of Risk based on 
the review of existing controls 

Direction 
of Risk 

Likelihood Impact Risk 
Rating  

If the Council does not work 
efficiently and effectively 
then it will be unable to 
demonstrate that services 
represent value for money. 
 
(3) 
 
Owner: Mannie Ketley 

-Positive PR 
-Release resources 
-To maintain and 
improve our services 

-Reputational damage 
-Complaints 
-Political interference 
-Qualified external audit VFM 
opinion 
-Reduced service quality 
 

-Performance monitoring 
-Complaints and feedback policy 
-Benchmarking 
-Internal audit regime in place 
-Regular one to ones 
-Budget monitoring and quarterly 
financial reporting 
-Development and greater use of 
digitalisation and IT 
-Systems thinking reviews 
-Exploration of collaborative 
working with other organisations 
 

3 3 9  ↔ 

Original 
Risk 

Score 
Further Action / Controls Desired Score 

Status: 
Being 

considered 
/In progress 
/Completed 

Officer Responsible 
Target 

completion 
date 

 
Actual 

completion 
date 

Review 
Frequency 

  Likelihood Impact Residual 
Risk Rating 
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(3) 
 
 

-Cabinet review of key performance 
measures 
 
 
 
-Embed operational risk management 
into the business as usual running of the 
organisation 
 
-Embed operational performance 
management into the business as usual 
running of the organisation 
 
-Implement the review of the Independent 
Living and Control Centre service 
charges 

3 3 9 Being 
considered 
 
 
 
In progress 
 
 
 
In progress 
 
 
 
In progress 

Mannie Ketley 
 
 
 
 
Mannie Ketley/ Chris 
Green 
 
 
Mannie Ketley/ Chris 
Green 
 
 
Raj Chand/ Cindy 
Gleghorn 

To be 
confirmed 
with the 
Leader 
 
31/03/2021 
 
 
 
31/03/2021  
 
 
 
30/06/2020 

 To be 
confirmed 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
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Risk 

 
 

Opportunities 

 
 

Consequences 

 
 

Existing Internal Controls 

Assessment of Risk based on 
the review of existing controls 

Direction 
of Risk 

Likelihood Impact Risk 
Rating  

If the borough does not 
have sufficient and 
appropriate affordable 
housing, then our residents 
will be unable to live healthy 
independent lives. 
 
(4) 
 
Owner: Raj Chand 

-Increase suitable 
affordable housing 
-Improve quality of lives 

-Complaints 
-Possible breach of statutory 
responsibilities 
-Increased pressure on services 
-Social exclusion 
-Increased crime and disorder 

-Business planning activity and 
action plans 
-Medium Term Financial Planning 
-Stakeholder consultation 
-Implementation of new Housing 
Management System 
-Local Plan in place 
 

4 3 12  ↔ 

Original 
Risk 

Score 
Further Action / Controls Desired Score 

Status: 
Being 

considered 
/In progress 
/Completed 

Officer Responsible 
Target 

completion 
date 

 
Actual 

completion 
date 

Review 
Frequency 

  Likelihood Impact Residual 
Risk Rating 

     
9 
 

(4) 
 
 

-Delivery of housing strategy action plan 
including development of homelessness 
and financial inclusion strategies. 
 
-Review and preparation of business 
case in relation to garage sites and the 
high rise development sites. 
 

3 3 9 In progress 
 
 
 
Being 
considered 

Raj Chand 
 
 
 
Raj Chand/ Mannie 
Ketley 

31/12/2020 
 
 
 
31/12/2020 

 Quarterly 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
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Risk 

 
 

Opportunities 

 
 

Consequences 

 
 

Existing Internal Controls 

Assessment of Risk based on 
the review of existing controls 

Direction 
of Risk 

Likelihood Impact Risk 
Rating  

If the Council does not 
deliver digitally enabled 
services that residents can 
access then customers will 
not be able to access and 
receive services 
independently. 
 
(5) 
 
Owner: Raj Chand 

-Manage demand better 
-Access to 24/7 council 
services 
-Additional business 
opportunities 
-Delivering effective 
services 
-Release capacity 
-Increase customer in 
site 

-Social exclusion 
-Increased pressure on services  
-Increase in homelessness 
-Complaints 
-Reputational damage 

-Digitalisation board in place 
-Performance and data monitoring 
-Stakeholder consultation 
-Feedback and complaints 
procedures 
 

2 2 4 ↔ 

Original 
Risk 

Score 
Further Action / Controls Desired Score 

Status: 
Being 

considered 
/In progress 
/Completed 

Officer Responsible 
Target 

completion 
date 

 
Actual 

completion 
date 

Review 
Frequency 

  Likelihood Impact Residual 
Risk Rating 

     
4 
 

(5) 
 
 

-Implementation of digitalisation strategy 
action plan  

2 2 4 In progress Raj Chand 31/03/2021  Quarterly 
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Risk 

 
 

Opportunities 

 
 

Consequences 

 
 

Existing Internal Controls 

Assessment of Risk based on 
the review of existing controls 

Direction 
of Risk 

Likelihood Impact Risk 
Rating  

If the Council does not 
understand its communities 
and enable them to take an 
active part in them then our 
residents will be unable to 
live healthy independent 
lives. 
 
(6) 
 
Owner: Adam Norburn 
 

-Roll out more initiatives 
-Identify volunteers via 
community engagement 
-Understand the 
community better 

-Social exclusion 
-Increased pressure on public 
services 
-Change in political leadership 

-Stakeholder consultation 
-Equality and diversity action plans 
-Scrutiny reviews 
-Collaborative working with 
community partner organisations 
-Feedback and complaints 
procedures 

3 2 6  ↔ 

Original 
Risk 

Score 
Further Action / Controls Desired Score 

Status: 
Being 

considered 
/In progress 
/Completed 

Officer Responsible 
Target 

completion 
date 

 
Actual 

completion 
date 

Review 
Frequency 

  Likelihood Impact Residual 
Risk Rating 

     
6 
 

(6) 
 
 

-Implement the action plan arising from 
the Transparency Code audit. 
 
 
-Implement web casting of meetings. 
 
 
-Implement the scrutiny action plan. 

2 
 
 
 

2 4 In progress 
 
 
 
In progress 
 
 
In progress 

Adam Norburn 
 
 
 
Adam Norburn 
 
 
Adam Norburn 

31/10/2020 
 
 
 
30/06/2020 
 
 
30/06/2020 

 Quarterly 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
Quarterly 
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Risk 

 
 

Opportunities 

 
 

Consequences 

 
 

Existing Internal Controls 

Assessment of Risk based on 
the review of existing controls 

Direction 
of Risk 

Likelihood Impact Risk 
Rating  

If the Council does not 
enhance its local, open 
spaces to make them 
places where people want 
to be then  
-residents will be unable to 
live healthy independent 
lives 
-the borough would not be 
such an attractive place for 
inward investment 
 
(7) 
Owner: Dan Green 

-Increase local parks and 
spaces 
-Hold move events in 
open spaces 
-Creates community 
spirit 
-Improves bio diversity 
and greenspaces 
-Attracts more business 
to the area 

-Social exclusion 
-Reputational damage 
-Reduction in inward investment 
-Budget pressure 
 

-Stakeholder consultation 
-Scrutiny reviews 
-Performance and data monitoring 
-Collaborative working with partners 
-Business Planning activity 
-Feedback and complaints 
procedures 

2 2 4  ↔ 

Original 
Risk 

Score 
Further Action / Controls Desired Score 

Status: 
Being 

considered 
/In progress 
/Completed 

Officer Responsible 
Target 

completion 
date 

 
Actual 

completion 
date 

Review 
Frequency 

  Likelihood Impact Residual 
Risk Rating 

     
4 
 

(7) 
 
 
 

-Continued benchmarking of Open 
Spaces through schemes such as Green 
Flag and In Bloom 
 
-Increased engagement with Residents, 
Parish Councils and Third Sector 
Organisations to better understand public 
perception and increase community 
involvement 
 
-Increased engagement of businesses to 
understand aspirations and concerns 
relating to open spaces 
 
-Enhanced working with internal 
colleagues to inform future developments 

2 2 4 In progress 
 
 
 
In progress 
 
 
 
 
 
In progress 
 
 
 
In progress 

Dan Green 
 
 
 
Dan Green 
 
 
 
 
 
Dan Green 
 
 
 
Dan Green 

31/03/2021 
 
 
 
31/03/2021 
 
 
 
 
 
31/03/2021 
 
 
 
31/03/2021 

 Quarterly 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
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Risk 

 
 

Opportunities 

 
 

Consequences 

 
 

Existing Internal Controls 

Assessment of Risk based on 
the review of existing controls 

Direction 
of Risk 

Likelihood Impact Risk 
Rating  

If the Council does not 
continue to improve the 
efficiency of its waste and 
recycling services then it will 
be unable to demonstrate 
value for money and 
achieve financial self-
sufficiency. 
 
(8) 
 
Owner: Dan Green 

-Reduction in landfill 
-Developments in new 
technology 
-Improved clean and safe 
environment 
-Reduction in carbon 
footprint 

-Reputational damage 
-Complaints 
-Political interference 
-Service reductions may be 
required 
-Council Tax increases 
 

-Route optimisation software in 
place 
-Performance and data monitoring 
e.g. missed bins reporting 
-Budget monitoring 
 

2 2 4 ↔ 

Original 
Risk 

Score 
Further Action / Controls Desired Score 

Status: 
Being 

considered 
/In progress 
/Completed 

Officer Responsible 
Target 

completion 
date 

 
Actual 

completion 
date 

Review 
Frequency 

  Likelihood Impact Residual 
Risk Rating 

     
4 
 

(8) 
 
 

-More frequent/robust internal monitoring 
of compliance with legislation. 
 
-Engaging with sub regional partners to 
establish efficient means of processing 
dry mixed recycling. 
 
-Further use of data to understand 
performance and take action where 
necessary. 
 
-Developing the trade waste service 
through targeted marketing activities. 
 
-Reviewing round structures to increase 
efficiency. 
 
-Completion of systems thinking review in 
2020 

1 2 2 In progress 
 
 
In progress 
 
 
 
In progress 
 
 
 
In progress 
 
 
In progress 
 
 
In progress 

Dan Green 
 
 
Dan Green 
 
 
 
Dan Green 
 
 
 
Dan Green 
 
 
Dan Green 
 
 
Chris Green 

31/08/2020 
 
 
31/08/2020 
 
 
 
31/08/2020 
 
 
 
31/08/2020 
 
 
31/08/2020 
 
 
31/12/2020 

 Quarterly 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
Quarterly 
 
 
Quarterly 
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Risk 

 
 

Opportunities 

 
 

Consequences 

 
 

Existing Internal Controls 

Assessment of Risk based on 
the review of existing controls 

Direction 
of Risk 

Likelihood Impact Risk 
Rating  

If the Council does not 
protect the public then: 
-it wouldn’t meet its 
statutory responsibilities 
-the health and wellbeing of 
residents would be 
adversely affected. 
 
(9) 
 
Owner: Dan Green 

-More confidence in food 
hygiene 
-Making the town 
become popular as a 
night time destination 

-Loss of life 
-Injuries 
-Legal action taken against the 
Council 
-Reputational damage 
-Fines/prison sentences 
-Increase in complaints 

-Insurance arrangements in place 
-Collaborative working with partners 
and contractors 
-Monitoring and enforcement by 
regulatory services 
-Risk assessments in operational 
environments 
-Event plans 
-External legislation reviewed 
regularly to ensure RBC practice is 
compliant. 
 

1 4 4  ↔ 

Original 
Risk 

Score 
Further Action / Controls Desired Score 

Status: 
Being 

considered 
/In progress 
/Completed 

Officer Responsible 
Target 

completion 
date 

 
Actual 

completion 
date 

Review 
Frequency 

  Likelihood Impact Residual 
Risk Rating 

     
4 
 

(9) 
 
 

-Bench marking against neighbouring 
authorities to better understand 
performance and share best practice. 

1 4 4 Being 
considered 

Dan Green 31/03/2020  Quarterly 
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Risk 

 
 

Opportunities 

 
 

Consequences 

 
 

Existing Internal Controls 

Assessment of Risk based on 
the review of existing controls 

Direction 
of Risk 

Likelihood Impact Risk 
Rating  

If the Council does not 
promote sustainable growth 
and economic prosperity, 
then: 
-there would be adverse 
social, economic and 
environmental effects. 
-the borough’s infrastructure 
would be inadequate 
 
(10) 
 
Owner: Steph Chettle-Gibrat 

-Increase housing and 
job opportunities 
-Longevity for the town 
-Economic growth for 
new businesses/ start-
ups and move-ons 
-Diversity of the town 
improving experiences 
for residents and visitors 

-Reputational damage 
-Inability to maintain all current 
services 
-Income projections not met 
-Political interference 
-Government targets not met 
-Wellbeing of residents 
-Business closures and empty 
premises 
-Reduction in NDR income 
-Increased crime/ disorder 

-Annual monitoring report 
-Collaborative working with partners 
including the Rugby BID 
-Implementation of Local Plan, 
marketing plan and events strategy 
-Production of supplementary 
planning documents 
-Town Centre Strategy 
-Infrastructure delivery plan 
-Establishment of climate 
emergency working group 
-Economic development service – 
working with WCC and the LEP to 
provide additional business support 
services 
-Delivery of local adopted 
development scheme 
-Annual report and return to 
government 

2 4 8  ↔ 

Original 
Risk 

Score 
Further Action / Controls Desired Score 

Status: 
Being 

considered 
/In progress 
/Completed 

Officer Responsible 
Target 

completion 
date 

 
Actual 

completion 
date 

Review 
Frequency 

  Likelihood Impact Residual 
Risk Rating 

     
8 
 

(10) 
 
 

-Establish town centre development 
project team. 

2 4 8 In progress Steph Chettle-Gibrat 30/06/2020  Quarterly 
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Risk 

 
 

Opportunities 

 
 

Consequences 

 
 

Existing Internal Controls 

Assessment of Risk based on 
the review of existing controls 

Direction 
of Risk 

Likelihood Impact Risk 
Rating  

If the Council does not 
encourage healthy and 
active lifestyles to improve 
wellbeing in the borough 
then residents may be 
unable to live healthy 
independent lives. 
 
(11) 
 
Owner: Adam Norburn 

-Encouragement of sport, 
leisure and hobbies 
-Public purse 
savings/benefits  
-Increase in well-being 
i.e. HEART, Lifeline 

-Social exclusion 
-Increased pressure on services 
both at RBC and also on other 
service providers such as the 
NHS 
-Reputational damage 

-Stakeholder consultation 
-Collaboration with partners 
including community groups and 
local schools 
-Monitoring of performance data 
-Business planning including action 
plans 
-Leisure centre contract with GLL 
-Delivery of family weight 
management service with Compass 
- Promotion of parks and open 
spaces 

2 2 4  ↔ 

Original 
Risk 

Score 
Further Action / Controls Desired Score 

Status: 
Being 

considered 
/In progress 
/Completed 

Officer Responsible 
Target 

completion 
date 

 
Actual 

completion 
date 

Review 
Frequency 

  Likelihood Impact Residual 
Risk Rating 

     
 
 

No further actions at present. 
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Risk 

 
 

Opportunities 

 
 

Consequences 

 
 

Existing Internal Controls 

Assessment of Risk based on 
the review of existing controls 

Direction 
of Risk 

Likelihood Impact Risk 
Rating  

If there is a change of 
political leadership then 
strategic priorities might 
change 
 
(12) 
 
Owner: Adam Norburn 

-Review/ revise 
corporate focus and 
priorities 

-Potential medium to long term 
disruption 
-Staff morale impacted 
-Reputational damage 
 
 

-Action plans developed as 
required 
-Regular pattern of review and 
assessment of risks 
-Where assessment identifies that 
actions are required these are 
discussed at SMT; some matters 
will be raised informally with 
Cabinet and/ or Portfolio Holders 
-Corporate Strategy in place 

1 3 3  ↔ 

Original 
Risk 

Score 
Further Action / Controls Desired Score 

Status: 
Being 

considered 
/In progress 
/Completed 

Officer Responsible 
Target 

completion 
date 

 
Actual 

completion 
date 

Review 
Frequency 

  Likelihood Impact Residual 
Risk Rating 

     
 
 

No further actions at present. 
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Risk 

 
 

Opportunities 

 
 

Consequences 

 
 

Existing Internal Controls 

Assessment of Risk based on 
the review of existing controls 

Direction 
of Risk 

Likelihood Impact Risk 
Rating  

The COVID 19 pandemic 
might lead to the Council’s 
strategic objectives being 
changed, not being 
achieved, and/ or delivery 
being delayed. 
 
(13) 
 
Owner: Mannie Ketley 

-Review/ revise 
corporate focus and 
priorities 
-Reshape services to 
meet changes in 
residents’ needs and 
corporate priorities 

-Reputational damage 
-Stakeholder concern 
-Adverse media coverage 
-Political interference 
-Legal action/ fines if statutory 
obligations are not met 
 

-SMT overseeing strategic 
response to COVID 19 
-Weekly Q&A session with 
members 
-Cabinet review of strategic 
objectives in progress 
-COVID 19 tactical management 
group in place 
-Recovery questionnaires 
completed and returned by 
managers 
-Regular review of risks and 
delivery of action plans 
-Separate corporate COVID 19/ 
pandemic risk register in place, 
subject to regular review 
 

4 4 16 New 

Original 
Risk 

Score 
Further Action / Controls Desired Score 

Status: 
Being 

considered 
/In progress 
/Completed 

Officer Responsible 
Target 

completion 
date 

 
Actual 

completion 
date 

Review 
Frequency 

  Likelihood Impact Residual 
Risk Rating 

     
16 
 

Develop and approve a revised corporate 
strategy. 
 
 
 
 

4 2 8 In progress Mannie Ketley December 
2020 

 Quarterly 
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